
 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA AND SUMMARY REPORT 

January 13, 2015 – POLICY SESSION 

 

 
Mission Statement: To provide leadership in advancing core community values; sustain safety, security and health; 

and provide progressive, caring and effective services. We take pride in building a community where individuals, 

families and businesses can develop and thrive.   
 

Executive Conference Room 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 
6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

Discussion on Proposed Budget Amendments to the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 

 

Discussion on Possible Relocation of a Billboard located at approximately 100 South State 

Discussion on the Fourth of July Schedule of Events 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL AND IMMEDIATELY RECONVENE  

AS THE CDRA IN A WORK SESSION ** 
 

CDRA WORK SESSION 
Discussion on Proposed Budget Amendments to the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 

 

 (Any items not addressed prior to the Policy Session will be addressed in a Work Session  

immediately following the Policy Session) 

 
City Council Chambers 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Shepherd 

OPENING CEREMONY:   Councilmember LeBaron 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   November 25, 2014 – Work Session 

       

December 9, 2014 – Work Session 

 

      December 9, 2014 – Policy Session 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. PUBLIC HEARING TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET 

 
 BACKGROUND: State Law requires a public hearing before the City Council approves 

amendments to the City budget. Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director, will be presenting 

amendments for the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment. 



 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING THE 

PREPARATION OF THE 2015-2020 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT (CDBG) CONSOLIDATED PLAN  

 
 BACKGROUND: The Consolidated Plan is necessary for Clearfield City to qualify for 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds through the Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD). This public hearing will allow for information and comments by 

citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties, regarding the amount of federal assistance 

the City expects to receive from HUD, and the range of activities that may be undertaken, 

including the estimated amount that will benefit persons of low and moderate income.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment regarding the 2015-2020 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Consolidated Plan.  

 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

3. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

4. PRESENTATION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 BACKGROUND: Heather Christopherson of Ulrich and Associates, P.C. will present Clearfield 

City’s draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ending June 30, 2014 

and to address any questions the Mayor and Council may have concerning the report.  

 

5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-02 ADOPTING AMENDMENTS 

TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2015R-02 adopting amendments to the Fiscal Year 

2015 budget and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

6. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-01 ENCOURAGING THE STATE 

OF UTAH TO ADDRESS COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION FUNDING 

 
 BACKGROUND: The creation and maintenance of transportation infrastructure is a core 

responsibility of State and local government. There are many benefits to residents by funding the 

maintenance of current infrastructure and the creation of new comprehensive transportation 

options. This resolution encourages the State of Utah to address comprehensive transportation 

funding. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2015R-01 encouraging the State of Utah to address 

comprehensive transportation funding and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 

documents. 

 

7. UPDATE ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 FINANCIAL STATUS 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS: 
 Mayor’s Report 

 City Councils’ Reports 

 City Manager’s Report 

 Staffs’ Reports 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL AND RECONVENE AS THE CDRA** 
 

1. APPROVAL OF THE CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND 

RENEWAL AGENCY (CDRA) MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 25, 2014 WORK 

AND POLICY SESSIONS  

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

2. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AMENDMENTS TO THE CDRA FISCAL YEAR 

2015 BUDGET  

 

BACKGROUND:  State Law requires a public hearing before the Board approves amendments to 

the CDRA budget. Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director, is here to present amendments 

for the Fiscal Year 2015 budget. 
 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive public comment. 

 

SCHEDULED ITEM: 

3. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-01 ADOPTING AMENDMENTS 

TO THE CDRA FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2015R-01 adopting amendments to the CDRA 

Fiscal Year 2015 budget and authorize the Chair’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CDRA** 
 

 

Dated this 9
th

 day of January, 2015. 

 

/s/Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 

 
The City of Clearfield, in accordance with the ‘Americans with Disabilities Act’ provides 

accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens needing assistance.  

Persons requesting these accommodations for City sponsored public meetings, service programs or events 

should call Nancy Dean at 525-2714, giving her 48-hour notice.  

  
    



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

November 25, 2014 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

EXCUSED:   Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Brian Brower    City Attorney 

    Kelly Bennett   Police Sergeant  

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Antone Clark – Standard Examiner, Kathryn Murray, Mark Cram – Siemens, Lin 

Alder – McKinstry, John W Hansen – Developer, Brad Allen – Realtor  

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON THE “NAME THAT PARK” CONTEST 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reminded the Council that the City was conducting a 

“Name that Park” contest to select an official name for the park located on the corner of South 

Main and Gordon Avenue which had been referred to as West Park Village Park. He reported the 

City received 70 submissions and the Parks and Recreation Commission had narrowed 

consideration down to 11. He presented the proposed 11 names to the Council and it discussed 

the submissions. The Council selected the name of Cornerstone Park.  

 

DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 11, CHAPTER 

11E, DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT (D-R) ZONE  

 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, explained the Downtown Redevelopment (D-R) 

zone was established in approximately 2009. He stated when it was originally approved the City 

Code represented a best guess for the type of development the City believed would take place in 

the downtown area. He reported the Planning Commission had the opportunity to review the 



 

2 

 

proposed text amendments. He indicated the Staff Report differed slightly from the proposed 

language recommended and approved by the Planning Commission. Mr. Hess reviewed the 

proposed ordinance with the Council: 

 Change the language from “downtown areas” to be more inclusive and applicable to 

encourage development in other areas of the City. 

 Include more specific verbiage to final approval in the development agreement. 

 Forego or limit the requirement of the ground floor consisting of commercial/retail 

development. 

 Change the minimum square footage requirement specific to the residential component. 

 

Mr. Hess expressed his opinion the changes would be attractive to developers and wouldn’t 

necessarily change what had been previously approved by the City Council. 

 

Councilmember Bush expressed concern about the possibility of a development in which all 

residential units consisted of only 700 square feet. Mr. Hess believed the market would dictate 

the size of the residential units and shared some examples. JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, 

reported during the Planning Commission’s discussion it was determined the City could 

negotiate the number of those units within the development agreement. Mr. Hess believed the 

City would need to complete a project or two in order to fully understand what the regulations 

should be and how they would be administered. Councilmember Young inquired if the proposed 

zoning text amendments still gave the City the opportunity to deny development if it was 

something that wouldn’t benefit the City. Mr. Hess pointed out the Council had the authority to 

approve the development agreement. A discussion took place regarding locations in which the 

proposed D-R zone could be applied. Mr. Hess pointed out the intent of the D-R zone was to 

promote development in commercial corridors.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE AGREEMENT WITH THE SALT LAKE CHAMBER OF 

COMMERCE ON TRANSPORTATION FUNDING 

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, stated transportation funding was currently an issue that 

communities would need to address in the near future. He reported the Utah League of Cities and 

Towns (ULCT) and the Salt Lake Chamber of Commerce had partnered and created the Utah 

Transportation Coalition and was requesting support from participating cities. The Coalition was 

requesting a $1,000 contribution from the City in exchange for a tool kit consisting of 

advertising, social media education, information to be provided on the City’s website or in with 

utility billing, Legislative advocacy to provide transportation solutions. He announced staff 

believed the project was worth supporting and recommended approval of the Agreement. Mayor 

Shepherd asked if there was any objection to the Agreement. There was no objection from the 

Council.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE AWARD OF BID FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reported the janitorial contract was large and staff 

was requested to evaluate options related to the contract to reduce overall costs. He mentioned 

one of the options originally considered was providing in house janitorial services which would 



 

3 

 

cost the City approximately $96,000 in labor costs alone. He expressed his opinion there would 

not be a recognized cost savings with that option.  

 

Mr. Howes reported the City had completed a Request for Proposal (RFP) process and the City 

received seven proposals which varied in costs and services significantly. He stated he was not 

currently prepared to make a recommendation on the award for the series because he wanted to 

further study the submitted bids and request a best and final offer from the potential vendors. He 

pointed out the contract was for all City facilities.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, pointed out the extensive scope of services provided by the 

janitorial vendor and expressed his support for Mr. Howes’ further study of the proposals.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE AWARD OF BID FOR AN ENERGY PERFORMANCE CONTRACT 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, mentioned the Energy Performance Contract was a 

non-budgeted item which would need to be addressed through an amendment to the budget in 

January. He explained it was the City’s hope to realize some cost savings by upgrading to energy 

efficient materials in its light fixtures, boiler systems, etc. and using that cost savings to fund the 

improvements. He mentioned the City would also recognize a cost savings in credits which 

would be received through utility providers.  

 

Curtis Dickson, Community Services Deputy Director, stated two bids were received and he 

further clarified the project was a budget neutral way in which upgrades could be completed for 

lighting, mechanical systems, etc. for energy performance. He pointed out the costs associated 

with the contract were guaranteed performance based and shared an example of those costs.  

 

Mr. Howes stated the City had thoroughly evaluated both proposals and emphasized both 

companies would do a good job for the City. He announced it was his recommendation the 

contract be awarded to McKinstry. Adam Lenhard, City Manager, reminded the Council that the 

City had considered a similar contract approximately two years ago. He stated funds for the 

project would be recognized in the fund balance.  

 

Councilmember Bush moved to adjourn the work session and reconvene in a CDRA work 

session at 6:40 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Jones. The motion carried upon the 

following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones and Young. Voting 

NO – None.  Councilmembers LeBaron was not present for the vote.  

 

 

**The minutes for the CDRA are in a separate location** 

 

 

The work session reconvened at 7:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

 



 

4 

 

DISCUSSION ON CITY CODE – TITLE 11, CHAPTER 11C COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL 

(CR) ZONE IN RELATION TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

APPROXIMATELY 938 SOUTH 2000 EAST, CLEARFIELD 

 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, informed the Council that the property was located 

on the west side of University Park Boulevard and was currently in the process for a rezone from 

Commercial (C-2) to Commercial-Residential (C-R). He stated the rezone would allow high 

quality family homes on the back western portion of the property and, at the Planning 

Commission’s request, commercial along University Park Boulevard. He reported the Planning 

Commission had recommended approval with conditions and pointed out the rezone was 

contingent upon the execution of a development agreement. He stated the development 

agreement would identify specifics such as materials, landscaping, two car garages, etc. The 

development agreement would also call for the commercial development to occur prior to the 

residential component. Mr. Hess pointed out the development would be significantly smaller 

than the Clearfield Station development. He stated the developer had requested to address the 

Council since a zoning text amendment would also be needed to facilitate the development as 

proposed by the developer.   

 

John Hansen, Developer representing Mr. Rosenberg, property owner, referred to the plat and 

pointed out the topography challenges associated with any possible development of the property. 

Mr. Hess pointed out the CR Zone was put in place as a best guess for the type of zoning the City 

could expect for future development in these types of locations. Mr. Hansen indicated the 

development would be accessed by a new road which would dead end at a future City 

park/parking lot. He continued the road would be built to City standards and be dedicated to the 

City.  

 

Mr. Hansen reported he had marketed the property for commercial purposes for several years 

and there had been no interest. He requested the Council modify the zoning which would allow 

them to begin building and placing a deed restriction on the property designating the future 

commercial development. Brad Allen, Realtor, stated commercial development would be viable 

in the long term but didn’t believe there was a market for that at this time.  

 

Mr. Hansen emphasized they were requesting a timing allowance which would allow them to 

begin building the twin townhomes at the rear of the property and placing a deed restriction on 

the proposed commercial development. He believed they could meet all other requirements such 

as the square footage. He believed the deed restriction should provide some assurances and 

comfort to the City.  

 

Councilmember Bush inquired if the townhomes would be marketed to homebuyers or if they 

could be purchased as rental property. Mr. Hansen responded they would be sold and some 

purchasers could rent them. Councilmember Benson inquired if all units would consist of three 

bedrooms. Brad Allen, Realtor, explained the homes would be three bedrooms, two bath, 

consisting of 1500 square feet. He added they would also have two car garages with a sales price 

of approximately $190,000-$210,000 price range. Mayor Shepherd indicated there currently was 

a demand for this type of housing and price.  



 

5 

 

Mr. Hansen believed timing was of the essence to work with the developer of the parking lot for 

the Exetor building. He indicated they had a significant amount of dirt which would need to be 

moved in order to begin construction which could be used for the parking lot.  

 

Councilmember Bush inquired if all residential units would be built prior to the commercial. Mr. 

Hansen responded once someone was interested in the commercial component they would begin 

building it. Mayor Shepherd inquired what would need to happen for the City to allow for Mr. 

Hansen’s request. Mr. Hess indicated the City could designate construction could begin on the 

residential component “performance” based or “hardship” based or “development agreement” 

based. He believed if the Council approved a Zoning Text Amendment it would be applicable to 

all areas of the City and open the door for other developers to do the same thing in another 

location. He announced building permits had increased and believed the market would begin 

demanding something that wasn’t currently provided. He asked if the Council wanted to open it 

up altogether or require development to be discussion based through a development agreement.  

 

Councilmember Young expressed concern whether the developer was setting the commercial 

component aside in order to complete the residential and suggested the commercial might not 

ever happen. Mr. Hess pointed out the difficulty with commercial development in the City and 

used the Winegar’s area at 300 North/1000 West to illustrate his point.  

 

Mayor Shepherd commented he could approve the development with the deed restriction put in 

place. Mr. Hansen informed the Council that he would be purchasing the property and would be 

motivated to actively develop the commercial component. Mr. Hess commented the City had a 

wide breadth of ability to reject or approve a rezone request which would allow the City to 

recognize its long term vision. Brian Brower, City Attorney, emphasized the City would have no 

guarantee the commercial component would ever develop.  

 

Councilmember Bush asked if the City could restrict development through language in the 

zoning ordinance. Mr. Brower indicated the City had just done that during the previous policy 

session for the DR Zone. Councilmember Bush stated he wasn’t comfortable with the change 

city wide. Mr. Hansen emphasized he would make the future commercial pads look like 

developable pads in order to encourage the sale for development.   

 

Following the discussion, several Councilmembers expressed their willingness to consider a 

Zoning Text Amendment brought forward by the developer.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

December 9, 2014 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

EXCUSED:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief    

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 

    Brian German   Cemetery and Open Space Manager 

    Marliss Scott   Public Relations/Marketing  

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

     

VISITORS: Kathryn Murray 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

PRESENTATION ON OPEN SPACE AND THE CEMETERY 

 

Curtis Dickson, Community Services Deputy Director, introduced Brian German, Cemetery and 

Open Space Manager, to the Council and he shared a visual presentation specific to the cemetery 

and open spaces within the City. He identified the open spaces and explained the what and how 

they were maintained. He also identified proposed future projects associated with the cemetery 

and trails. He informed the Council that the City was also responsible for maintenance along the 

soundwall adjacent to the SR 193 extension which was equivalent to an additional 15 acres. He 

also mentioned there was manicured landscaping associated with the extension. He also 

identified the sponsors of the Adopt A Trail Program.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, asked Mr. German what the long term significant challenges were 

associated with his position at the City. Mr. German believed the biggest challenge had to do 

with staffing. He explained the City used a staffing agency to fill seasonal positions and he 

shared some examples to illustrate his point. Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, pointed out 



 

2 

 

Mr. German’s staff would also be assuming additional open space maintenance from Public 

Works. Mr. German believed additional staff would be needed as more work was assigned.  

 

DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE GENERAL PLAN, CHAPTER 4, 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, informed the Council that an application had been 

received for an amendment to the General Plan which would include new language to Chapter 4, 

Affordable Housing. He stated the language reflected the City had a few acres of undeveloped 

high density residential property still left in that zoning designation; therefore, the current policy 

of the City was to not allow additional rezones to R-2 or R-3 outside of the current Mixed Use 

zones. He reported the applicant had proposed language which read, “except for properties which 

were between one and three acres” with the intent that some of the smaller properties being 

developed be eligible for the R-2 or R-3 zoning designation. He shared an illustration which 

identified possible parcels which could be affected by the proposed language. He pointed out the 

property which spurred the request was larger than the designated three acres. He reported it was 

staff’s position to remove the limiting provision from the General Plan and the Planning 

Commission’s recommendation was to deny the language which had been provided by the 

applicant while recommending the applicant accept staff’s alternative motion to remove the 

limiting provision from the General Plan.  

 

Mr. Hess stated the year 2015 had previously been designated for a re-write of the General Plan 

which would allow staff to target and identify areas of the City where multi-family housing 

would be accepted. He explained the current General Plan didn’t allow for any flexibility for 

multi-family housing outside of the MU, Mixed Use zone. Councilmember LeBaron reported the 

Planning Commission’s decision was not unanimous.  

 

Councilmember Bush inquired if the Council needed to make a decision during the Council 

meeting and stated he liked the idea of addressing the General Plan altogether as a re-write. JJ 

Allen, Assistant City Manager, responded the applicant deserved a decision from the Council 

whether it approved the applicant’s proposal or an alternative or deny the entire application. He 

pointed out if the Council chose to approve the Planning Commission’s recommendation there 

would still be an incredible amount of discretion.  

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney, pointed out restrictions made it difficult for staff to accommodate 

good viable projects for future development.   

 

DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED FEE WAIVERS FOR FUTURE RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 

ON CERTAIN PARCELS AT LEGEND HILLS 

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, reviewed the history regarding the Legend Hills property and 

Weber Basin Water Conservancy District which resulted in a Memorandum of Understanding 

executed in 2007. He distributed a copy of the Memorandum. He announced a letter was recently 

received requesting a renewal or extension of the agreement.  

 



 

3 

 

Mr. Allen reported not a single dollar of the $52,000 fee waivers had been used due to the 

economic downturn and Mr. Belleau, Legend Hills, was requesting the City renew those waivers. 

He reported staff was not reluctant to renew the fee waivers; however, the new memorandum 

specified the waivers would only be eligible for new retail development and what parcels those 

could be applied to. 

 

Councilmember LeBaron reported he was on the Council at the time the original Memorandum 

of Understanding was approved and believed the Council at that time believed development 

would proceed rapidly because of the nearby proposed Midtown Village development which was 

all prior to the downturn in the economy.  

 

DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS AND CORRECTIONS TO TITLE 11, 

LAND USE, AND TITLE 12 SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, INCLUDING THE 

DEFINITIONS AND SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS FOR “SWAP MEET” 

 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, explained a series of amendments to Title 11 and 

Title 12, as well as a new use and reviewed the changes with the Council: 

 Add the CUP notice requirements to Table 11.2. 

 Add Home Occupations as a permitted use. Home Occupations was a use which was 

permitted in Title 11; however, it was not listed as a permitted or conditional use in any 

of the Residential Codes. 

 Nondepository lending – Add the provision that a nondepository lending establishment 

shall not be located within 880 feet from any tattoo or body piercing establishment. 

 Sign Regulation interpretation – remove the call out to the “Board of Adjustment” and 

replace with “Planning Commission.” 

 Subdivision Regulations, Exceptions to avoid hardships – remove the call out to the 

“Board of Adjustment” and replace with “Planning Commission.” 

 Swap Meets would be listed as Conditional Uses in C-2 and M-1 zones. 

 

Mr. Hess reviewed the proposed definition and supplementary regulations that applied to “Swap 

Meet” with the Council. He reported the amendment was spurred by receipt of a business license 

application. He added it wasn’t the first time an inquiry had been made about swap meets; 

therefore, staff had put together some provisions for the use.  

 

Councilmember Bush asked if there were designated time limits for operation or if the swap 

meet would be allowed to operate indefinitely. Mr. Hess responded during his research prior to 

drafting the supplementary regulations, he had reviewed numerous municipalities’ codes and 

mentioned some of them limited the number of events or times in which the swap meets could 

operate. He indicated the Council could consider limitations if it desired and shared some 

examples. A discussion took place regarding time limits for the swap meet use.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, clarified the proposed language didn’t specify the use be added to 

any specific zones. Mr. Hess responded it would be a conditional use to the C-2 and M-1 Zones. 

Councilmember Young didn’t believe addressing time limits would be a bad idea in order to 

avoid something permanent that the City might not desire. Brian Brower, City Attorney, 

suggested eliminating the language which stated it would be a conditional use in C-2 and M-1 



 

4 

 

but rather opt to not designate the use in any zone at this time. He expressed his opinion it would 

be in the City’s best interest to get a definition on the books and then address where it was 

allowed at a later date.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, suggested if the Council desired a time restriction it could be 

identified in the Supplementary Regulations and a discussion took place. Mr. Brower suggested 

also including language in both Supplementary Regulations and Title 4 for consistency purposes. 

Mayor Shepherd believed the Council should only approve the definition at this time. Mr. 

Brower commented if the Council desired to approve only the definition during the policy 

session it would be necessary for the Council to state such for the record during the motion. He 

continued the motion could be made to pass the definition only but not allow the use in any 

zones until staff presented more specifics for allowed uses.  

 

Nancy Dean, City Recorder, pointed out the proposed ordinance had been drafted slightly 

different than the Planning Commission’s recommendation in regards to permitted uses for 

Home Occupation because staff had inadvertently neglected to include the Agricultural Zone as a 

permitted use in its discussion with the Planning Commission. Mr. Hess added Home 

Occupations was not allowed in Mobile Home Parks yet but it was allowed in other multi-family 

areas. He stated the City had received very few requests for Home Occupations in Mobile Home 

Parks. Mr. Brower clarified the Planning Commission had considered that use and recommended 

to continue that practice.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE AWARD OF BID FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, distributed the bid tabulation for the janitorial 

services bid to the Council and reviewed the proposals. He stated after a thorough review process 

of all bids he was comfortable in recommending awarding the bid to Greathouse Cleaning. He 

pointed out the significant savings that would be recognized with that proposal and mentioned he 

had received several positive recommendations. There were no questions or concerns from the 

Council regarding Mr. Howes’ recommendation.  

 

Councilmember Bush moved to adjourn and reconvene in a City Council policy session at 

6:58 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Jones. All voting AYE.  

 

The work session reconvened at 7:41 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON PARTICIPATION WITH LOCAL FIRST UTAH 

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, referred to the Strategic Plan which indicated the City would 

promote the importance of shopping locally. He informed the Council of Local First Utah which 

was an organization whose purpose was to promote local businesses. He explained the City 

hosted a meeting with representatives from Local First in addition to local business owners at 

which time the Local First program was explained. He expressed his opinion the event had been 

a success. He announced Marliss Scott, Public Relations/Marketing, had been designated to 

spearhead the campaign.    

  



 

5 

 

Ms. Scott shared a visual presentation and distributed a handout which highlighted the package 

options for the City to consider in sponsorship/partnering with Local First Utah and pointed out 

the benefit in partnering with them. Ms. Scott reviewed the three sponsorship options for the 

Council to consider. Ms. Scott indicated she supported Option 2 because it offered a customized 

marketing component.  

 

Mr. Allen pointed out Clearfield City would be highlighted as a partnering community with the 

sponsorship. Ms. Scott announced funds had been appropriated during the budget process which 

could be used for the program.   

 

Councilmember LeBaron inquired how Local First would be remove businesses from its website 

if they went out of business. Mr. Allen believed that would be a question for Local First. Ms. 

Scott believed the City would need to provide Local First with that information. Councilmember 

Young asked if Local First had provided any traffic information data about its website. Mr. Allen 

stated that issue had been brought up during the meeting but he couldn’t remember the specific 

number. He believed the annual sponsorship was more about the marketing materials and 

window clings. Mayor Shepherd believed the biggest benefit would be the message it would 

send to local businesses. Mr. Allen mentioned there was a group of dynamic individuals from 

local businesses that participated in the meeting. He mentioned as a result of the meeting several 

of the participants had already visited Local First and signed up. 

 

Councilmember Young suggested having a follow-up meeting with the businesses to determine 

the success of the program. Councilmember Bush also suggested holding an evening meeting to 

attract other business owners. Mr. Allen stated the City would take the lead role and hopefully 

the business owners would take on a leadership role. The Council discussed the sponsorship 

options.   

 

The Council expressed its support for the $2,500 annual contribution for Local First Utah. 

Councilmember Jones asked when the partnership/membership would be effective. Mr. Allen 

indicated right away.   

 

DISCUSSION ON THE DESIGN FOR CITY GATEWAY MONUMENTS 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, mentioned the City’s consultants from Project 

Engineering Consultants (PEC) were unable to attend the meeting and reminded the Council of 

the joint meeting with the Parks & Recreation Commission last spring regarding the gateway 

monuments. He requested feedback from the Council prior to the review of the final draft of the 

gateway monuments which was scheduled for Wednesday, December 10, 2014.  

 

Mr. Howes stated four locations had been identified for placement of gateway monuments and 

reported funds were appropriated in the CDRA (Community Development and Renewal Agency) 

budget for the project. The four identified locations were: 

 650 North/I-15 Interchange  -  to the right of the northbound off-ramp situated in such a 

way as to be seen when exiting the freeway and entering Falcon Hill 

 700 South/I-15 Interchange – the northbound off-ramp 

 55 South State Street – in front of the Municipal Building, east of State Street 



 

6 

 

 Cornerstone Park – approximately fifty feet north from the corner of South Main Street 

and Gordon Avenue 

 

He reviewed the illustrations of the proposed monument signs and their respective locations. He 

pointed out the two signs located near the off-ramps would be approximately nine feet tall in 

height to be easily seen by motorists. He reviewed the sizes of the other two signs and the 

proposed materials. He anticipated construction of the signs could begin as early as April 2015.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 

December 9, 2014 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

EXCUSED:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief    

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir.  

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

     

VISITORS: Don McKinnon – Davis Behavioral Health, Jared Schofield – Jennmar Corporation 

of Utah, Amber Self, Kathryn Murray 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd informed the citizens present that if they would like to comment during Public 

Hearings or Citizen Comments there were forms to fill out by the door. 

 

Councilmember Jones conducted the Opening Ceremony.  

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 18, 2014 SPECIAL AND WORK 

SESSIONS AND THE NOVEMBER 25, 2014 POLICY SESSION 

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve the minutes from the November 18, 2014 special 

and work sessions and the November 25, 2014 policy session, as written, seconded by 

Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

 

 



 

2 

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON GPA 1411-0003, A REQUEST BY ED 

GREEN FOR PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 4, AFFORDABLE HOUSING, OF 

THE CITY’S GENERAL PLAN  

  

The applicant, Ed Green, requested amendments to Chapter 4, Affordable Housing, of the City’s 

General Plan. The amendments would include language that would allow for rezones to R-2, 

two-family residential, and R-3, multi-family residential, in limited cases. The proposed 

amendment would provide flexibility for developers and the City to consider residential as an 

additional land use on parcels of property that had shown an inability to sell as commercial. The 

Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 3, 2014 and recommended denial of 

the applicant’s amendments but recommended approval of staff’s alternative recommendation 

for amending the Affordable Housing element of the General Plan.  
 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, explained the General Plan Amendment was 

brought forward through an applicant’s request. He indicated the Planning Commission 

considered the request and recommended approval of the application as well as an alternate staff 

recommendation for the Amendment. He reported the application, as proposed by the developer, 

would be to add language to Chapter 4, Affordable Housing, which would allow properties 

between one and three acres to be eligible for rezone to R-2 and R-3 (multi family residential).  

 

Mr. Hess stated staff determined there were over 240 properties which currently fell within that 

definition and met those criteria. He believed the unknown related to those properties which 

could be subdivided or combined in order to create the one to three acre parcels, led staff to 

present an alternative recommendation to remove the limiting provision of the General Plan 

altogether, the last sentence in Chapter 4 which read, “There are still approximately five acres of 

undeveloped high-density residential property in the City; therefore, current policy is that no 

additional property will be rezoned for the development of two-family or multi-family dwellings, 

except as part of an approved R-3R, MU, C-R or D-R Zone project.” Mr. Hess reported it was 

the Planning Commission’s recommendation to deny the applicant’s recommendation.      

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 
 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to close the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Jones. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON ZTA 1411-0006 – PROPOSED 

AMENDMENTS AND CORRECTIONS TO TITLE 11, LAND USE AND TITLE 12, 

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, INCLUDING THE DEFINITION AND 

SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS FOR “SWAP MEET” 

 

Staff identified a few minor corrections which needed to be made to language in Title 11, Land 

Use, and Title 12, Subdivision Regulations. Additionally, a request had been made for a use that 

most closely resembled a “Swap Meet.” City Code did not have that use listed or defined in its 

definitions or supplementary regulations, so proposed language had been drafted to include it. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 3, 2014 and recommended 

approval of the text amendments.  
 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, reported the proposed changes were to Titles 11 and 

12 which had been noted to staff during the year as well as a requested change by staff based on 

a submitted business license application for a use currently not defined in the City Code. He 

reviewed the proposed changes: 

 Clarify and add Conditional Use Notice requirements to the Requirement Table. 

 Add Home Occupations as Permitted Uses in all Residential and Agricultural Zones 

outside of Residential Mobile Homes. 

 Duplicate the provision made for tattoo and body piercing establishment limiting their 

location to non-depository institutions within the non-depository institution section, 

limiting their location within 880 feet from one another. 

 Replace Board of Adjustment with Planning Commission in the Sign Regulations and 

Subdivision Regulations. 

 Create a new definition for Swap Meet. 

 Add “Swap Meet” to Supplementary Regulations in Title 11, Chapter 13, including the 

requirement of a license, listing restricted items, and requiring a report of any stolen 

items and that pawn brokers and second hand businesses would not be considered Swap 

Meets 

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 
 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember Bush moved to close the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember LeBaron. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON FSP 1411-0004, A REQUEST BY JARED 

SCHOFIELD FOR FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL OF THE SUMMIT REALTY II 

– JENNMAR SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 155 EAST 550 SOUTH 

(TIN: 12-003-0164, 12-003-0236) 

  

The proposed subdivision plat created two lots from one single lot. The newly created lot, owned 

by Summit Realty, would be used by the Jennmar Company to expand its manufacturing and 

enclosed storage area. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 3, 2014 and 

recommended approval of the plat.  
 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, explained the plat request by Jared Schofield was to 

subdivide a piece of property currently owned by Jerry’s Impact Machine. He stated the parcel 

would be used in the future for development of indoor storage and additional parking for 

Jennmar. He clarified the building consisting of Jerry’s Machine Shop would continue to meet 

all setback requirements in the M-1, Manufacturing, zone. He stated the one request that was 

different from the proposal was the inclusion of a ten-foot public utility easement surrounding 

the lots. He also stated the plat, as currently drawn, reflected a private street on the west side of 

Jerry’s Impact Machine Shop coming from Jennmar. He clarified that was now a public 

dedicated street per the UDOT street dedication plat. He believed UDOT had not yet recorded 

that plat. He reported it would be staff’s recommendation the survey lines be checked in relation 

to both plats to confirm the creation of the street dedication next to Jerry’s Machine shop.   
 

Councilmember Bush requested clarification regarding the identified City Engineer’s items listed 

in the staff report. Mr. Hess responded Scott Nelson’s, City Engineer, concern was pursuant to a 

site plan in which he had requested outflow of utilities, utility maps, etc. He stated there were 

currently no additional utilities specific to new development reflected for the property.   
 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 
 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember Young moved to close the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Jones. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  
   

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON FSP 1411-0005, A REQUEST BY DON 

MCKINNON, DAVIS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, FOR FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT 

APPROVAL FOR THE SMITH ESTATES AMENDMENT 3 SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 

APPROXIMATELY 836 SOUTH STATE STREET (TIN: 12-069-0001, 12-069-0003,  

12-069-0004)  

 

The proposed subdivision plat would combine four separate lots owned by Davis Behavioral 

Health into one lot. The City agreed to participate financially in the removal of three structures 

on the properties and a condition of that participation required the combination of the lots in 



 

5 

 

order to create a single pad site for future commercial development. The Planning Commission 

held a public hearing on December 3, 2014 and recommended approval of the subdivision plat.  
 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, clarified the agenda item was a plat amendment as 

opposed to preliminary and final subdivision plat approval. He reminded the Council that it had 

previously agreed to participate in the demolition of three buildings owned by Davis Behavioral 

Health if the County would combine the four single lots into one single lot to limit their use as 

individual pad sites for possible future development. He stated the plat amendment would create 

a single lot out of the four lots. He added a ten-foot public utility easement surrounding the entire 

lot was recommended. He mentioned there was an existing three or four bay garage which 

remained on the property and would continue to exist. He stated staff recommended it be 

reflected on the plat with an indication on whether it was proposed for removal or would 

continue to exist. He mentioned all utilities had been capped at or near the street when the 

structures were demolished and future development would be pursuant to a site plan and one 

hundred percent new utilities.  
 

Councilmember Bush requested clarification on the number of parcels being combined as there 

were only three parcel numbers reflected. Mr. Hess responded there was a small, skinny parcel 

between two of the larger parcels which didn’t have an existing structure. He clarified four tax 

identification numbers were reflected in his staff report. He assumed once the parcels were 

combined the County would reflect a central address for the new parcel to identify it.  

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 
 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember Jones moved to close the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  
   

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

There were no citizen comments.  

 

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney, requested the additional verbiage, “as approved by the Planning 

Commission” be included in the motion for the following two agenda items. He explained 

significant discussion had taken place during its meeting in which specific items were called out 

and were part of its recommendation to the City Council. He believed that would cover any 

questions regarding easements or buildings associated with the new FSP. He added it would also 

make the Council’s action inclusive of the additional provisions.  

 

 



 

6 

 

APPROVAL OF FSP 1411-0004, A REQUEST BY JARED SCHOFIELD FOR FINAL 

SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL OF THE SUMMIT REALTY II – JENNMAR 

SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 155 EAST 550 SOUTH (TIN: 12-003-

0164, 12-003-0236) 

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve FSP 1411-0004, a request by Jared Schofield 

for Final Subdivision Plat approval of the Summit Realty II – Jennmar Subdivision located 

at approximately 155 East 550 South (TIN: 12-003-0164, 12-003-0236), as recommended by 

the Planning Commission, and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 

documents, seconded by Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon the following 

vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – 

None. Councilmember Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

APPROVAL OF FSP 1411-0005, A REQUEST BY DON MCKINNON, DAVIS 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, FOR FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL FOR THE 

SMITH ESTATES AMENDMENT 3 SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 836 

SOUTH STATE STREET (TIN: 12-069-0001, 12-069-0003, 12-069-0004)  

 

Councilmember Jones moved to approve FSP 1411-0005, a request by Don McKinnon, 

Davis Behavioral Health, for Final Subdivision Plat approval of the Smith Estates 

Amendment 3 Subdivision located at approximately 836 South State Street  

(TIN: 12-069-0001, 12-069-0003, 12-069-0004), as recommended by the Planning 

Commission, and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded 

by Councilmember LeBaron. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING GRANTING CERTAIN FEE 

WAIVERS FOR FUTURE RETAIL DEVELOPMENT ON SPECIFIC PARCELS OF LEGEND 

HILLS PROPERTY 

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, explained in February 2007, to help preserve and facilitate the 

development of prime commercial property in Legend Hills, the City Council granted $52,000 

waiver of building permit fees and application fees.  Due to the severe recession, no portions of 

the waivers were utilized before expiring five years later.  The economy had recovered and there 

was potential for new commercial development so the developer was requesting to renew those 

waivers.  If approved, the new MOU would grant $52,000 in waivers of building permit fees and 

land use application fees (but not impact fees) for retail development on certain parcels of 

Legend Hills property (Parcel ID numbers 09-341-0305, 09-341-0306, 09-023-0082 and 09-377-

0306) for a new five year period.  

 

Mr. Allen reported staff was proposing a new Memorandum of Understanding that would be 

provided to the developer offering $52,000 in waivers; but restricted to new retail development 

which was identified in the new Memorandum of Understanding.  

 



 

7 

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve the Memorandum of Understanding granting 

certain fee waivers for future retail development on specific parcels of Legend Hills 

property and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded by 

Councilmember Jones. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember 

Benson was not present for the vote.  

   

APPROVAL OF THE AWARD OF BID FOR ENERGY PERFORMANCE SERVICES 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reminded the Council that the item had been 

explained during a previous work session. He stated staff had solicited bids for Energy 

Performance Contract services and explained the vendor would be looking at the City’s 

electricity and natural gas usage. Once the information was obtained, the City would be advised 

on upgrading certain equipment and the savings would be used to pay for the upgrades. Two 

vendors submitted qualified bids and each bid was reviewed and ranked by staff based on the 

guidelines included in the Request for Proposals (RFP).  He reported based on the review, staff 

was recommending McKinstry be awarded the contract for providing the services in the amount 

of $30,000. He added it guaranteed a certain amount of savings for each project. He pointed out 

this was not a budgeted item and would be addressed in budget amendments which would come 

before the Council next month.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 

Councilmember Bush moved to approve the Award of Bid for Energy Performance 

Services to McKinstry and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, 

seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting 

AYE – Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None.  
Councilmember Benson was not present for the vote.  
  

APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-29 APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 4, 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING, OF THE CITY’S GENERAL PLAN 

 

Councilmember LeBaron inquired if additional language reflecting the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation would be required in the motion. Brian Brower, City Attorney, responded the 

Planning Commission’s recommendation was noted and had been taken into account when 

drafting the ordinance; however, if the Council desired to proceed with the applicant’s proposal 

or something different altogether then additional verbiage should be included in the motion.  

 

Councilmember LeBaron commented he was prepared to support the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation.  

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve Ordinance 2014-29 approving amendments to 

Chapter 4, Affordable Housing, of the City’s General Plan and authorize the Mayor’s 

signature to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Jones. The motion 

carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and 

Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

 

 



 

8 

 

APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-30 APPROVING AMENDMENTS AND 

CORRECTIONS TO TITLE 11, LAND USE AND TITLE 12, SUBDIVISION 

REGULATIONS, INCLUDING THE DEFINITION AND SUPPLEMENTARY 

REGULATIONS FOR “SWAP MEET” 

 

Councilmember Young mentioned as a result of the work session discussion held prior to the 

meeting he had concerns with some definitions and rules which would apply to “Swap Meet” 

which needed to be further defined and clarified.  

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve Ordinance 2014-30 approving amendments and 

corrections to Title 11, Land Use, and Title 12, Subdivision Regulations, including the 

definition and supplementary regulations for “Swap Meet” but striking the mention of the 

authorized zones until a time in which staff was prepared to make additional 

recommendations, and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, 

seconded by Councilmember Bush. Brian Brower, City Attorney, requested clarification 

regarding Councilmember Young’s motion. He clarified Councilmember Young was requesting 

two lines be removed at the top of page 3 which read, “Title 11, Chapter 11, Articles B and D of 

the Clearfield City Code are hereby amended by adding “Swap Meet” as a conditional use in each of 

those chapters respectively. Councilmember Young stated that was correct. The second 

concurred. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers 

Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember Benson was not 

present for the vote.  

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2014R-24 MAKING APPOINTMENTS TO THE NORTH 

DAVIS FIRE DISTRICT (NDFD) ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD 

 

Legislation required the City to appoint elected officials to special districts which imposed taxes 

and fees. Mayor Mark Shepherd, Councilmember Mike LeBaron and Councilmember Kathryn 

Murray had been providing representation for the City. Mayor Shepherd recommended 

appointing Councilmember Ron Jones and reappointing Councilmember LeBaron and Mayor 

Shepherd as the City’s representatives to the North Davis Fire District (NDFD) Administrative 

Board.   
 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve Resolution 2014R-24 making appointments to 

the North Davis Fire District (NDFD) Administrative Board and authorize the Mayor’s 

signature to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Bush. The motion 

carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and 

Young. Voting NO – None. Councilmember Benson was not present for the vote.  

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS 

 
Mayor Shepherd 
1. Announced he was glad to be back in the country.   

2.  Indicated this was the last meeting of the year and stated he was looking forward to a busy 2015.  

  

 

 



 

9 

 

Councilmember Bush  
1. Announced the Parks & Recreation Commission would be judging the outdoor Christmas light 

displays.   

2. Informed the Council that the North Davis Sewer District (NDSD) would be having a public 

hearing during its meeting on Thursday, December 11, 2014 in conjunction with approving the 2015 

budget. 

3.  Reminded the Council that the Kiwanis Club was conducting a coat drive to benefit students 

attending elementary schools within the City. He informed those in attendance ways in which 

contributions could be made.  

4. Announced the Kiwanis Club had partnered with Pizza Pie Café, located in Clinton City, to 

conduct a fundraiser. Pizza Pie Café would contribute twenty five percent of the purchase to the coat 

drive when customers mentioned Clearfield Kiwanis Club beginning Monday, December 29, 2014 

continuing through Thursday, January 1, 2015.  

5. Expressed a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year and appreciation to staff.  

 

Councilmember Jones – Stated it had been a great year of learning as a councilmember and expressed 

appreciation to staff for their assistance.  

 

Councilmember LeBaron  
1. Stated he had enjoyed serving with Kathryn Murray on the NDFD Administrative Board.  

2. Expressed appreciation to City staff for everything done on behalf for the residents of the City. 

He mentioned the City employees had teamed up with the Family Connection Center’s Sub for Santa. He 

reported donations of toys and necessities would be accepted through Friday, December 19, 2014 at either 

City Hall or the Aquatic Center. He encouraged participation. 

 
Councilmember Young – Expressed a Merry Christmas to all and expressed his appreciation to staff, 

volunteers and residents who worked to make the City a better place to live.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager 
1.  Stated his monthly report had been sent to the Council on Monday, December 8, 2014. He 

mentioned he was looking forward to 2015. He indicated staff would be updating the Strategic Plan in 

2015.  

2.  He requested members of the Council consider how well staff was communicating with the 

Council and let him know of concerns or suggestions. He emphasized it was his goal to provide pertinent 

information to the Council when  and how it was needed.  

3. Reminded the Council of the City’s Holiday Party put on by the Employee’s Association on 

Friday, December 12, 2014, at the Davis Conference Center.   

 

STAFFS’ REPORTS 

 
Nancy Dean, City Recorder 

1. Directed the Council to the handout on the dais of the 2015 Annual Meeting Schedule.  

2. Informed the Council of a possible Special Session later in the month. 

 

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to adjourn the policy session and reconvene in a work 

session at 7:40 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the 

following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting 

NO – None. Councilmember Benson was not present for the vote.  



Staff Report 
To: Mayor Mark Shepherd and City Councilors 

From: Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director 

Date: January 7, 2015 

Re: Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Amendments 

Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the FY 2015 budget amendments. 

Description / Background 

The attached table below lists actual and proposed expenditures that do not have or exceed FY 2015 
budget authority and require budget amendments as allowed by Utah Code Title 10 Chapter 6 Section 
124 to 129.  

The first four items, A-D, require the use of fund balance in the General Fund, totaling $110,000. Items 
E to J have an offsetting source, totaling $65,029.  Items K to M, are reallocating funds within the 
account.  These items are not necessary to amend, but more clearly communicates with the Council 
and public. 
 
In capital projects, item O takes the surplus difference between budget and actual for S. Main to use 
for Pacific Street and 400 East.  Item P uses chip seal money that was transferred the Capital Project 
Fund in FY14 but was not used. 
 
List of Attachments 

• FY2015 Budget Amend Items Worksheet 



FY2015 Budget Amendment Items December 31, 2014

Division
Division 

# Account Expense Account Title
Expense 
Adjust Description

Source 
Account Source Account Title

General Fund
A City Council 104111 613201 Utah Retirement Systems 5,000 URS Rate Increase 381008 Fund Balance

B Streets 104413 631003 Insurance Fees 10,000 Increase for 18 Mo. Premiums for Bridges 381008 Fund Balance

C Transfers 104810 691004 Transfers to Other Funds 50,000 City Hall Roof ReplaceSet Aside - Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 381008 Fund Balance

D Transfers 104810 691004 Transfers to Other Funds 45,000 Purchase New Van- Transfer to Fleet Fund 381008 Fund Balance

E Patrol 104212 611201 Overtime 7,375 ICAC Grant 334001 State Grants
621301 Training 2,125 334001 State Grants
674001 Equipment 2,000 334001 State Grants
661001 Miscellaneous Supplies 1,500 334001 State Grants

F Patrol 104212 674001 Equipment 3,500 SAFG Grant 334001 State Grants

G Patrol 104212 674001 Equipment 8,309 JAG Grant 334001 State Grants

H Patrol 104212 674001 Equipment 2,200 Bullet Proof Vest Grant-bringing total to $4,600 334001 State Grants

I Aquatic Center 104565 645002 Donation Revenue 14,000 Donation Revenue 369003 Donation Revenue

J CDBG 104632 693001 Pass Through 10,500 Analysis of Impediments 693001 Pass Through - CDBG Admin
693001 Pass Through 13,520 CDBG 5 year Consolidated Plan Update 693001 Pass Through - CDBG Admin

K Buildings 104161 631006 Other Professional Fees 4,200 Fix Baseball, Soccer & Skate Park Lighting 631006 Other Profess. Fees- Reallocation of Acct

L Parks 104521 631006 Other Professional Fees 3,200 Fix Baseball, Soccer & Skate Park Lighting 631006 Other Profess. Fees- Reallocation of Acct

M Comm. Services Admin. 104511 645001 Special Dept Allowance 5,000 Clearfield Foundation for Arts, Parks & Recreation-Seed Money 645001 Special Dept Allow.-Reallocation of Acct

Total New Use of Fund Balance Items 110,000
Total New Revenue Source Items 65,029

Total Reallocation of Current Budget Items 12,400
Total General Fund Amendments 187,429



Division
Division 

# Account Expense Account Title
Expense 
Adjust Description

Source 
Account Source Account Title

Capital Projects
N Buildings 454161 673001 Capital Projects 50,000 City Hall Roof Replacement Set Aside 381004 Transfer from GF

O Streets 454413 673001 Capital Projects 300,000 Pacific Street-Reconstruction 673001 Reprogram from South Main
100,000 400 East-Overlay 673001 Reprogram from South Main

P Streets 454413 673001 Capital Projects 80,000 Chip Seal- FY14 Chip Seal Money Carryover 381008 Fund Balance

Community Development and Renewal Agency(CDRA)
Q CDRA Administration 204611 645001 Special Dept Allowance 50,000 Downtown Façade and Site Improvement Program 381008 CDRA Fund Balance

Internal Service Fund - Fleet
R ISF Fleet 614441 674001 Equipment Purchases 45,000 Purchase New Van 381004 Transfer from GF



      

Source 
Adjustment

5,000

10,000

50,000

45,000

7,375
2,125
2,000
1,500

3,500

8,309

2,200

14,000

10,500
13,520

4,200

3,200

5,000



Source 
Adjustment

50,000

300,000
100,000

80,000

50,000

45,000



Clearfield City Corporation 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Executive Summary - Audit report
For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014

Independent Auditors’ Report (p.19):  “Unqualified Opinion” or clean opinion.             
Reference paragraph "Opinions"

Management's Discussion & Analysis (p.22-35):  A narrative overview of the financial activities of the City.

Ulrich & Associates, PC

In conclusion, the overall health of the City is very good. Clearfield has responded to the economic downturn in years past, by
controlling costs with minimal impact on services provided to its citizens. Management should be commended for anticipating the
effect of decreased revenues and responding proactively. The City continues to be conservative in its spending practices. We are
pleased to report that our testing and interviews did not find any significant errors or problems.  

We thought it would again be helpful to provide you with an executive summary of audit report highlights along with the full audit
report. Our goal with this is to give the council the highlights of our report without overwhelming you with 152 pages of the
report.  We have referenced selected pages from the report.

Highlights from the financial statements and page reference in the report.  

1. Page 43. The unreserved (committed, assigned and unassigned) fund balance of the general fund of $5,143,488 represents
37.70% of current year revenues. State law allows a maximum of 25% which would be $3,410,453. The City is over the limit
by $1,733,036. For the coming year the City plans on spending the excess on the many infrastructure projects around the City.
Other funds do not have limitations.  See page 123 for a 10 year history of governmental fund balances.

2. Page 47. Third line from bottom "net change in fund balances". This shows the increase or (decrease) to fund balances for
the year.  All funds increased in fund balance for the year.  

3. Page 54. Analysis of General fund budget and actual amounts. Third line from the bottom. Actual results were favorable in
the amount of $1,274,097.  This was due to expenditures being lower than expected and revenues being higher than expected.

4. Page 56 and 57. Summary of the assets and liabilities and net position of the proprietary funds. Third line from bottom
(unrestricted) represents the amounts available for future periods. Many projects have already been identified that would reduce
this amount in future periods. The far right column accounts for the costs associated with management of the fleet vehicles the
City utilizes to provide services and risk management.

5. Page 58 and 59. bottom of page 58 - Net Operating Income - the total of all utility funds showed an operating gain of
$654,891. Please note that, with the exception of the Public Administration and Waste Funds, most funds would have shown a
large profit if depreciation (non cash) was not a factor. In order to fund depreciation (or future replacement costs), the goal is to
have operating income at least break-even when including depreciation.  

6. Page 60 third row from bottom - Shows the amount cash increased (decreased) in the funds for the year. There were no
funds that showed a decrease in cash.  

7. Page 103 Third line from bottom - shows the increase or decrease in fund balance during the year. The bottom line shows
fund balances at year end. 

8. Page 109 Third line from bottom - shows the increase or decrease in net position during the year for the fleet management
and risk management internal service funds.  The bottom line shows net position at year end. 

9. Pages 118 - 140 Various schedules showing comparison with prior years. Interesting information in regards to historical
perspectives and trends over the last ten years.



of

Adam Lenhard, City Manager
Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Clearfield, Utah
CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014



Blank



For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

I. INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of Transmittal 5
GFOA Certificate of Achievement 13
GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 15
City Officials 16
Organization Chart 17

II. FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report 19
Management's Discussion and Analysis 22
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position 38
Statement of Activities 40

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 42
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Net Position 44
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 46
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Activities 48

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund 49
Community Development & Renewal Agency Fund 55

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 56
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund

Net Position - Proprietary Funds 58
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 60

Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Fund - An Agency Fund 62
Notes to Financial Statements 64

Clearfield City Corporation
Table of Contents

1



For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Clearfield City Corporation
Table of Contents

Supplemental Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual
      Capital Projects Fund 100

   G.O. Bond 101
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 102
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 103
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Fund 104
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Parks Fund 105
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 106

Combining Statement of Net Position - Internal Service Funds 108
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position - Internal Service Funds 109
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds 110
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of General Capital Assets - By Source 112
Schedule of General Capital Assets - By Function and Activity 113
Schedule of Changes in General Capital Assets - By Function and Activity 114

III. STATISTICAL SECTION

Net Position by Component 118
Changes in Net Position 119
Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by Source - accrual 122
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 123
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 124
Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by Source - modified accrual 126
Taxable and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 127
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 128
Principal Taxpayers 129

Property Tax Levies and Collections 130
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 131
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt

And Net General Bonded Debt Per Capita 132
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 133
Legal Debt Margin Information 134
Revenue Bond Coverage 1352



For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Clearfield City Corporation
Table of Contents

III. STATISTICAL SECTION

Demographic and Economic Statistics 136
Principal Employers 137
Full-time City Government Employees By Function 138
Operating Indicators by Function 139
Capital Assets Statistics by Function 140

IV. OTHER REPORTS

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
 On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
 Of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

    Government Auditing Standards 143

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
    In Accordance With the State Compliance Audit Guide 145
State Legal Compliance - Schedule of Findings 149
Schedule of Expenditures of State Grants, Contracts, and Loan Funds 152

3



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

4



 

 

 

 

December 12, 2014 

 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and the Citizens of Clearfield City 

 

It is my pleasure to present the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Clearfield City 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

This report is formatted to comply with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement 34.  Additionally, State law requires that all local governments publish a complete set of 
financial statements presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants.  This CAFR is hereby issued and submitted to you for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, in 
accordance with these requirements. 

The government‐wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position that provide the total 
net position of the City including all capital assets and the Statement of Activities that shows the cost of 
providing government services. 

This report is published to provide the Clearfield City Council, staff, citizens, the State of Utah and other 
interested groups, including investors and creditors, and grantor agencies, with detailed information 
concerning the financial condition and activities of the City government.  Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all 
disclosures, rests with City Management.    

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, 
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should 
be read in conjunction with it. 

 



 6

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
History and Background 
 
Clearfield originally incorporated on July 17, 1922.  The first elementary school opened in 1907.  
The North Davis Jr. High School was built and opened in September 1939, and in 1960, 
Clearfield High became the first high school in northern Davis County. 
 
Bordering the east side of Clearfield City is Hill Air Force Base (HAFB).  The Base was established 
in 1941 when World War II broke out.  Less than a year later, Army and Navy engineers chose 
Clearfield as the site for the largest U.S. Naval Supply Depot.  The Supply Depot was built in 
1942, creating jobs that drew people from as far away as Idaho.  In 1963 the Clearfield Naval 
Supply Depot became what is known as the Freeport Center. 
 
After the military installations were established, Clearfield’s population grew rapidly.  
Government sponsored housing projects developed.  Roads, culinary water reservoirs, water 
and sewer lines, sidewalks, and curb and gutters were installed to meet the needs of the new 
citizens. 
 
Clearfield is one of more than 124 centers throughout the United States where the 
Management Training Corporation operates and manages a facility.  Also known as Clearfield 
Job Corp it was established in 1966 to provide training to “at risk” youth, to equip them with 
skills to enter the workforce and to prepare them to interact socially.  It currently houses and 
provides training for young people from every state in the U.S. and over 20 countries.  
Clearfield Job Corps is the 3rd largest facility for students in the nation. 
 
Location and Transportation 
 
Clearfield City is the third largest city in Davis County.  The City encompasses 7.67 square miles 
and is approximately 92% developed.  Located in Northern Utah, Clearfield is 38 miles north of 
Salt Lake City.  Clearfield City is easily accessible by Interstate 15, which runs North and South 
through the City.  The Salt Lake International Airport can be reached within 35 minutes and the 
Utah Transit Authority (UTA) provides daily mass transit service throughout the City and along 
the Wasatch Front. 
 
ORGANIZATION 
 
Clearfield is a City of the Third class, (population between 30,000 and 60,000), operating under 
the Council‐Manager form of government by ordinance.  The legislative body is comprised of 
five council members and the Mayor, who establishes policy and procedure for the 
administration, organization, operation, conduct and business of the City. They approve, adopt, 
and amend the budget.  They are assisted by the City Manager who is appointed by the Mayor 
and approved by the City Council, and is responsible for implementing City policy and 
overseeing the day‐to‐day management of the City. 
 



 7

The Mayor and Council members are elected at large to serve four‐year terms.  Elections, which 
are held every two years, are staggered to help facilitate the continuity of the City Council.   
 
The Combined Financial Statements of the City include all government activities, organizations 
and functions for which the City is financially accountable as defined by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board.   
 
SERVICES 
 
Public Safety: 
 

 Police 
 Dispatch Services 
 Emergency 911 

 Code Enforcement 
 
Legislative and Administrative Services: 
 

 Accounting, Budgeting, Investments 

 Justice Court 
 Human Resources 

 Information Technology 

 Planning and Zoning 
 Business Licensing  
 Records Management 

 
Highways and Streets: 
 

 Street Improvements 

 Sidewalk, curb and gutter 
 Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance 

 
Community Services: 
 

 Indoor/Outdoor  Recreation programs for Youth and Adults year round 

 Clearfield City Aquatic Center 
 Amphitheater 

 Parks, Pavilion rentals for parties, reunions and picnics 
 Tennis Courts, Outdoor Basketball Courts, Softball and Baseball Fields, Soccer and Football 

Fields 

 Cemetery 

 Indoor Community Recreational Center 

 Urban Trails 
 
 
 



 8

Major services provided under the Proprietary and Internal Service Funds include the following: 
 
Utility Administrative Services: 
 

 Billing 
 Collections 
 Customer Service 

 Meter Read Data Organization 
 
Water, Sewer and Storm Sewer: 
 

 Well Maintenance 

 Line Maintenance 

 Line Upgrade and Installation 
 
Waste Collection: 
 

 Pick‐up Service, contracted through Waste Management 
 

Internal Services: 

 Fleet Management 

 Risk Management 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
Clearfield City boasts a prime location in northern Davis County.  Bordering on the east side of 
the City is Hill Air Force Base.  Hill is one of the largest employers in the State of Utah and has 
been awarded several contracts to maintain military aircraft.   The development of the 550 acre 
Falcon Hill project is underway, with the first building completed in 2012 and occupied by 
Northrop Grumman.  It is anticipated that 6 – 8 million square feet of new office space and 
incidental retail will be built over the next twenty years.  Clearfield has been selected to provide 
municipal services to the project, and an interlocal agreement for such is anticipated soon.   
 
A few Clearfield businesses have recently announced significant expansions and investment in 
the City.  Lifetime Products will add 142 new jobs to its Clearfield facilities and will make an 
estimated $41 million capital investment.  ATK Aerospace Structures has begun an expansion 
that will create 800 new jobs over the next twenty years, with a total investment of over $100 
million.  Clearfield City will provide local incentives to ATK in support of this project.  Other 
Clearfield manufacturers are also growing and exploring expansion plans, which will hopefully be 
finalized in 2015. 
 
The City and Utah Transit Authority are still working together to plan and develop the 70‐acre 
rail stop.  This stop will serve an estimated 3,000 riders a day.   Master planning has begun on 
this site and will eventually accommodate flex‐business space, traditional office space, multi‐
family housing, a charter school, and ancillary retail.  The developer is preparing to begin the 
entitlement process in anticipation of beginning construction in 2015. 



 9

 
Clearfield is aggressively working with developers in master planning the redevelopment of the 
downtown business district.  The City has acquired several acres of prime real estate in its 
downtown which it is aggressively marketing for redevelopment as new office and retail space.   
 
The SR193 project is complete.  The road is a five lane facility that will dramatically improve 
access to the northern entrance of the Freeport Center.  It is anticipated that the road will also 
increase property values and lead to additional development along its corridor.   
 
MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
Streets and Roads ‐   In FY2014, the Streets and Roads division chip sealed 55 streets, 7.09 

miles, 146,009 square yards of pavement surface. Installed 140 feet of 
sidewalk on the north side of 300 North between 75 West and 94 West. 
This was a UDOT Safe sidewalk project which the City received funding 
from the State to make sidewalk improvements. 450 West Street from 
2225 South to 2300 South CDBG project was reconstructed, new 
asphalt paving, and new curb, gutter and sidewalk. The water line was 
upgraded from a 6 inch line to a 8 inch line, a new 8 inch sanitary sewer 
line was installed and a new 15 inch and 24 inch storm drain was 
constructed. 

 
Public Safety ‐   During FY2014, the Public Safety Department was able to complete the 

Armadillo project.  The Armadillo is currently parked behind the police 
department and all related articles have been positive.  The 
battery/solar charging system was tested and should last at least five 
days in the field, two additional memory cards were added for 
additional video.  The first deployment was on February 13, 2014 to Hill 
Air Force Base Elementary; school administration requested the vehicle 
after being placed in a “lockout” status due to a person making threats 
of workplace violence on the base.  The Armadillo was taken to the 
Council Town Hall meeting on May 6th.   It was also used at Island View 
Park several times through May and June – the Parks and Recreation 
department requested it because while it was parked there, damage to 
the bathroom area, graffiti and garbage can vandalism halted only to 
return after it was removed. A grant for $10,000 was awarded to 
“Enforce Underage Drinking Laws” which was used to continue 
compliance checks of local businesses focusing on keeping alcohol from 
minors.  Other grants included a JAG grant for police radios and a SAFG 
grant used to purchase wristwatch transmitters for Investigations and 
small body cameras for the detective division.  

   
Proprietary  /  
Internal Service Funds ‐  The City provides Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer and Waste 

Management Services to residents and its businesses through 
Proprietary Funds.  Over 6,500 utility accounts are administered for 
these services. The City continued its line replacement program for the 
water, sewer and storm sewer infrastructure.  



 10

 
The Fleet Fund is an Internal Services Fund which manages all street 
licensed vehicles along with unlicensed heavy duty and light duty 
equipment.  This fund also provides vehicle repair for the North Davis 
Fire District and their equipment. 

 
Finance &  
Administration ‐   Governmental Finance Officers Association of the United States and 

Canada (GFOA) presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
to Clearfield City Corporation for the Annual Budget beginning July 1, 
2013 (FY2014). 

 
  Clearfield City was also awarded the Certificate of Achievement for 

Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). The Certificate of 
Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of 
governmental accounting and financial reporting. This award is for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Clearfield City has been awarded this 
certificate 15 out of the last 17 fiscal years.    

     
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Accounting System and Budgetary Control 
 
The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified 
accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable, and 
expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are 
incurred.  The City’s accounting records for utilities and other proprietary activities are 
maintained on the accrual basis. 
 
In developing and maintaining the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the 
adequacy of internal control structure.  Internal accounting controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: 
 

(1)  The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and 
 

(2)  The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 

(a) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be                  
derived; and 
(b) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and                       
judgments by management. 

 
I believe the City’s internal controls adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable 
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 
 
The City operates an integrated budgetary and accounting system, which incorporates the 
adoption of a formal legal budget.  The City Council sets goals and objectives for the City staff 



 11

which then adopts the annual budget prepared by City Management.  State statutes define the 
legal level of budgetary control at the department level.  Expenditures should not exceed 
appropriations at that level.  Individual Departments can produce financial reports from current 
data at any time, where the department head is responsible for monitoring their own 
departmental budgets.  If needed, the budget is reopened as required to consider necessary 
adjustments. 
 
Financial Policies  
 
Clearfield City Council has adopted several financial policies along with strategic plans to give 
overall planning and guidance to staff.  Two primary policies are the Fund Balance and Debt 
Service.  The Fund Balance policy is established to give guidance on the unreserved portion on 
what levels to maintain and how to prioritize any excess.   The Debt Service policy is designed to 
give guidance on types of long term debt and how it may be issued.   
 
Clearfield City also adopted a 10 year strategic plan.  This plan not only determines where we 
want to go, but exactly how we’ll get there.  The plan it identifies goals, strategies and tactics 
which then provide the step‐by‐step process of achieving them.  This current plan can be found 
on the city’s web site.        
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Independent Audit 
 
Section 10‐6‐150 of the Utah Code Unannotated, and section III.D.01 of the State of Utah 
Uniform Accounting Manual require third class cities to prepare an annual financial report, and 
that an annual audit be conducted by an independent certified public accountant.  The City has 
contracted with Ulrich and Associates, P.C., Certified Public Accountants, and their independent 
auditor’s report has been included in this report. 
 
Acknowledgments 
 
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Division and City employees in the Business 
License, Public Works, Administration and Community Services Departments who were 
instrumental in the successful completion of this report.  
 
I would like to thank the Mayor and members of the City Council for their interest and support in 
the financial operations of the City, for demonstrating fiscal responsibility, and for their striving 
to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of their respective offices. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Rich Knapp       
Administrative Services Director  



This page left blank intentionally

12





This page left blank intentionally

14





For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adam Lenhard City Manager
JJ Allen Assistant City Manager
Brian Brower City Attorney

Nancy Dean City Recorder
Rich Knapp City Treasurer

Rich Knapp Administrative Services Director
Scott Hodge Public Works Director
Eric Howes Community Services Director
Greg Krusi Police Chief

Clearfield City Corporation
City Officials

Department Heads

Executive Budgetary

Statutory Appointed Officials

16



City Attorney City Recorder
Records Management

Administrative Assistant
Newsletter

Police Public Works

Patrol Street Maintenance
Investigations Utility Maintenance

Community Policing Fleet Management
Dispatch

Traffic Enforcement
Safety

Emergency Preparedness
Code Enforcement

Planning Commission

Board of Appeals

Parks & Recreation Commission
Board of Adjustment

Information Technologies Buildings and Grounds
Parks

Aquatic Center

Development

Clearfield City, Utah Organization Chart

Mayor & Council

City Manager

Community

City Treasurer

Audit 

Human Resources
Budget Business License

Planning and Zoning
CDBG

CDRA
Building Authority
Housing Authority

Youth Council
Community Council

Administrative Services

Cemetery

Payroll
Capital Assets

Risk Management

Accounting
Utility Administration

Building Permits

Recreation Marketing/PR

Assistant City Manager

Justice Court
Inspections

Economic Development

Community Services

17



FINANCIAL SECTION

18



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City 
Council 
Clearfield City Corporation 
Clearfield, 
Utah 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Clearfield City Corporation, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes 
to the financial statements which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.   

Management's  Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting  principles generally  accepted  in the United  States 
of America; this includes  the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
did not audit the financial statements of North Davis Fire District.  These financial statements 
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the component unit, North Davis Fire 
District, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 



Opinions

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clearfield City Corporation as of June 30,

2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof

and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and major special revenue funds for

the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

20



Other Information

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Ogden, UT
December 12, 2014

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Clearfield City Corporation’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, statistical section, and
capital asset schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Ulrich & Associates, P.C.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated
December 12, 2014 on our consideration of Clearfield City Corporation's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards  and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

21



22 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 2014 
 
The independent auditors’ opinion on basic financial statements preceding this section of the 
report specifically refers to the Basic Financial Statements that start on page 38.  The 
management’s discussion and analysis is not specifically audited. However this discussion is 
“required supplementary information” and must be included in the report.  This information is 
provided to help citizens and users of this report understand what happened financially during 
the past year, how it compared to prior years, and provide information on important things that 
will happen in the future. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 Fiscal Year 2014 (FY2014) actual General Fund revenues were $281,496 above expected 

or final budgeted numbers before Other Financing Sources.  This is a 2.1% increase over 
budgeted revenue.  Final budgeted revenues before Other Financing Sources were 
$13,316,659 and final actual amounts are $13,598,155.  The largest increase from 
budgeted numbers came from Taxes.  Sales and Use taxes were $216,762 above 
budgeted, Property taxes were $31,688 above budgeted amounts and Energy Sales taxes 
were $132,797 above budgeted amounts.  Overall taxes came in $346,312 above final 
budgeted numbers. Fines and Forfeitures were down $145,940 from budgeted numbers.  
Another revenue category that came in under final budgeted numbers was Parks and 
Recreation which was down $104,001.         
         

 General Fund revenue before Other Financing Sources was up $38,573 in FY2014 from 
actual general fund revenues as compared to the same revenues in FY2013.  Revenues 
from Taxes increased $162,841 from FY13 with revenues from fines and forfeiture 
decreasing $77,336.       
 

 Expenditures of $14,845,482 and revenues of $14,868,466 in the general fund combined 
to have a net change in fund balance of $22,984.    

 
 The total assets of Clearfield City increased by $766,696 to $109,238,662.  Total 

liabilities decreased by $1,810,043 to $23,611,512.   The largest component of the 
decrease in liabilities was from payment of the outstanding amount due on the Revenue 
and General Obligation Bonds. 

 
 The total net position of $83,573,235 are made up of $57,597,232 invested in capital 

assets net of related debt, $5,007,923 in restricted net position and $20,968,080 in 
unrestricted net position. 
 

 Outstanding Long Term General Obligation Bonds and Revenue Bonds government wide 
decreased by $1,702,307. General Obligation Bonds decreased by $770,000.  Revenue 
Bonds decreased by $1,182,914.     
 

 
 



23 
 

 The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) does state the North Davis Fire 
District in the report as a component unit which is a separate column.  For the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, this report will focus on the Governmental and 
Business-type activities excluding the Fire District.    

 
 

Overview of Financial Statements 
 
There are three components in Clearfield City’s basic financial statements: 1st government-wide 
financial statements-pages 38 and 40, 2nd fund financial statements-pages 42 to 62 and 3rd notes 
to the financial statements-pages 64 through 97.   
 
GASB Statement no. 34 requires the addition of a government-wide financial statement 
presentation.  The government-wide financial statements focus on operational accountability. 
Operation accountability is how efficiently and effectively the City uses resources to meet city 
objectives and provide city services. The government-wide financial reports also help measure 
the ability to continue to provide services for the foreseeable future by presenting net position 
and using full accrual accounting instead of the modified accrual accounting historically used.  
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report city activities under two 
categories: governmental activities and business-type activities.  Governmental activities are 
those principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.  Business-type activities 
are those that recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. 
 
The notes to financial statements are essential to understanding the details underlying the 
statements.  Notes that were required in prior years are still included in this year’s report. This 
year’s notes also have more detailed information and explanations of government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements: pages 38 to 40. 
 
Clearfield City’s Statement of Net Position: page 38. 
 
Clearfield City’s Statement of Net Position is reported as of June 30, 2014, which is the end of 
the fiscal year.   This statement is a “picture” of the City’s assets and liabilities on the last day of 
the fiscal year. On June 30, 2014 the City’s total net position exceeded liabilities by $83,573,235.  
The statement shows that unrestricted net position of $20,968,080 are enough to cover the 
current liabilities of $4,323,612. 
 
Assets 
Clearfield City’s assets on June 30, 2014 were $109,238,662 for an increase of $766,696 from 
the previous fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. Cash and cash equivalents increased $2,032,254, 
and taxes receivable increased $977,842. Decreases in assets include an other receivables 
decrease of $853,209. 
    
Of the total assets about $79,660,615 is tied up in capital assets (i.e. land, buildings, streets, 
sewer and water systems, equipment, and projects being built). Please note that the capital assets 



24 
 

are “net of accumulated depreciation”.  This means the values are an indication of the age of the 
assets.  An older asset will have more depreciation subtracted from the original cost of the asset 
and will have a smaller value. For the Governmental Activities including the Fleet Internal 
Service Fund (ISF), accumulated depreciation is approximately $40.8 million dollars or 60% of 
the purchase price or estimated historical purchase price for the older infrastructure that was 
valued and added to the listing.  For the Business-type activities, accumulated depreciation is 
approximately $39.8 million dollars and is 47% of the purchase price.  More information on 
depreciation is available in the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 70 and 83 - 85. 
Schedules of general capital assets are on pages 112 to 114. 
 
Liabilities 
Clearfield City’s liabilities on June 30, 2014 were $23,611,512.   Non-current liabilities are 82% 
and current liabilities are 18% of the total liabilities. The 18% is $4,323,612 and represents what 
the City will need to pay out in the coming year.  This includes debt payments that are due in the 
coming year. The 82% of non-current liabilities is $19,287,900, with $19,079,235 in revenue & 
general obligation bond debt and $208,655 for noncurrent compensated absences.    Liabilities 
decreased from the prior year by $1,810,043.  This decrease can be seen primarily in outstanding 
amount for General Obligation Bond and for outstanding amounts for the Water Revenue Bonds.    
 
For detailed information see pages 88 to 91, which has the debt section of Clearfield City’s 
Notes to Financial Statements.  
  
Current Liabilities    Non-current Liabilities 
Leases, loans, notes payable   10.5% Loans- Bonds      74.3%  
Accounts Payable      7.2% Compensated Absences      .8%  
G.O. & Revenue bonds     7.2%                ______     
                 24.8%       75.2% 
 
The net position section of the Statement of Net Position is the difference between the City’s 
assets and liabilities. The net position is classified as invested in capital assets net of related debt; 
restricted for capital projects net of related debt, restricted for debt and unrestricted.   
 
Capital Leases and Long Term Debt 
 
As of June 30, 2014 Clearfield City has no outstanding Capital Leases.   
 
The City has issued several bonds in previous years to assist in building and acquiring capital 
assets.  The City has one General Obligation Bond outstanding that was originally issued in 
Fiscal year 1999 for $15,000,000.  This bond was partially refunded in April 2005.  The purpose 
of this bond was to build an overpass and construct the municipal building.  The outstanding 
balance on this bond as of June 30, 2014 was $6,390,000.  This is a decrease of $770,000 from 
the prior fiscal year.   
 
The City also has three revenue bonds outstanding.  The first was a Sales Tax Revenue bond 
issued in 2003 to construct an aquatic center, skate park, and several utility projects.   In 
December 2006, $9,700,000 was issued for refunding a portion of the original bond.  There is 



25 
 

$10,782,206 outstanding at the end of the fiscal year.  $520,000 was paid down towards the 
principle outstanding amount during the fiscal year.  The second revenue bond outstanding was 
issued in July 2009.   The City issued a Revenue Bond for $2,223,000.  This bond was 
refinanced in FY2010 and the outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 is $1,520,000.   
 
Other bonds are outstanding and can be referenced in the Note Section pages 88 to 91. 
 
Clearfield City’s Statement of Activities: page 40. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents normal programs and functions that the City continually 
provides year after year.  The statement is for the year ended June 30, 2014 and covers the time 
period of July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014. It shows how much revenue the City generated during 
the year and the expenses for the same period. The presentation shows governmental programs 
and business-type activities. Governmental activities presented include General Government, 
Public Safety, Highways and Public Works, Community Services (Parks and Recreation), 
Community Development and interest on long-term debt.  Business-type activities include all 
utility services provided by the City, namely water, sewer, waste collection (garbage) and storm 
drain.   
 
 
General government activities summary 
 
Government activities are services provided to both external (citizens) and internal (city 
departments) customers.  The charges, grants, and contributions for services are collectively 
labeled program revenues. Typically program revenues do not cover the cost of providing the 
services.    On the Total Primary Government line in the Governmental Activities column of the 
Statement of Activities the $9,316,860 in parenthesis represents the cost of services that were not 
covered with program revenues.  The general revenues and fees of $12,697,743 collected by 
Clearfield City for governmental activities was enough to offset the operating cost of services not 
covered with program revenues.  The increase to Net Position was $3,380,883.      

 
The Statement of Activities is a useful report for seeing how property tax, sales tax, other taxes 
and interest earned were spent. For example, total expenses for Public Safety (police, dispatch, 
emergency services and not including the North Davis Fire District), is $4,196,122.  The 
revenues or charges for services related to Public Safety totals $1,219,731 with $77,383 in 
operating grants and contributions and $34,614 for Capital Grants.  The $2,926,547 in 
parenthesis on the public safety line represents how much of the total expenses are not covered 
through Program Revenues and rely on general revenue.  Therefore, program revenues covered 
only 31% of program expenses, general revenues are need to cover the rest.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



26 
 

The programs supported by general fund revenues  (in order of how much they depend on 
general revenues to operate, with percentage of funding coming from general fund revenues) are: 
 

    Amount of   % of program     
       program     funded with        

    funded w/GF  General revenues  
  

1st General Government  $3,233,789            73 %  
2nd Public Safety   $2,926,547            69 %  
3rd Community Services  $2,387,079           57 %  
4th Interest on long-term debt $   828,074         100 %  
5th  Community Development  $   460,111         100 % 
6th Highways    $  -518,740          0.0 % 
    
Governmental Activities expenditures before contributions or transfers increased  
$257,209 in 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013.   
 

Governmental Activities Expense History

2010  2011 2012 2013  2014

Expenses: 
General Government  $4,944,458 $4,363,191 $4,175,063 $4,408,533  $4,419,080

Public Safety  3,789,561 4,038,550 3,893,612 4,298,248  4,258,275

Highway & Streets  1,363,122 1,204,022 1,407,454 579,064  583,792

Community Services  3,381,382 3,518,420 3,480,388 3,755,723  4,196,122

Community Development  782,623 1,018,528 514,315 534,675  460,111

Other  1,083,758 1,066,514 974,740 912,002  828,074

Total Expenses  $15,344,904 $15,209,225 $14,445,572 $14,488,245  $14,745,454

 
 
Business-type activities summary 
  
The Statement of Activities also presents as Clearfield’s business-type activities Water, Sanitary 
Sewer, Solid Waste, and Storm Sewer utilities.   
 
The business-type activities run by Clearfield City had an increase of net Operating Revenues of 
$244,970 for a total of $654,891.  The majority of this increase net operating revenue came from 
sewer increases to cover increased rate from the sewer district. Non-operating revenue 
(expenses) had a decrease of $478,257, from loss on disposal related to replacement of sewer 
lines. When interest income, impact fees, miscellaneous revenue, gain on disposal of capital 
assets and transfers to the general fund are included, net position decreased $419,645 to 
$56,680,944.   
 
 
 

 



27 
 

Net Position 
 
The total net position for both governmental-type activities and business type activities are 
$83,573,235.  The change in net position is a useful indicator of the City’s financial position, 
especially if several years are available for comparison.   Since FY2009, the five year change in 
Net Position has increased by $4,073,231 for the business type activities.   For the same time 
period, Governmental activities have had an increase in Net Position of $10,553,217.     

 
The following two charts compares fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 (FY2013) and fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2014 (FY2014) of the Changes in Net position and a comparison of Net 
Position. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This section intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28 
 

Comparison of Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities  Business‐type Activities 

2013  2014  2013  2014 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services   $         4,267,468   $    4,224,954    $      8,199,933    $    8,781,224  

Operating Grants & Contributions                 883,706             899,337  

Capital Grants and Contributions                 345,019             304,303            1,461,653                           ‐  

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes   $         5,249,766   $    5,200,014  

General Sales & Use Tax              3,511,629          3,648,705  

Other Taxes              3,171,735          3,257,562  

Investment Income                    77,621              99,266                 84,951                41,848  

Other Revenue                    44,714             (67,631)              337,201                     880  

Total Revenues   $       17,551,658   $ 17,566,510    $   10,083,738    $    8,823,952  

Expenses: 

General Government   $         4,408,533   $    4,419,080  

Public Safety              4,298,248          4,258,275  

Highway & Streets                 579,064             583,792  

Community Services              3,755,723          4,196,122  

Community Development                 534,675             460,111  

Other                 912,002             828,074  

Utilities                 7,607,473          8,683,770  

Total Expenses   $       14,488,245   $ 14,745,454    $      7,607,473    $    8,683,770  

Excess (deficency) before transfers   $         3,063,413   $    2,821,056    $      2,476,265    $       140,182  

Contributions of Capital Assets                              ‐                          ‐                            ‐                           ‐  

Transfers   $            439,081    $       559,827    $       (439,081)   $      (559,827) 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position   $         3,502,494   $    3,380,883    $      2,037,184    $      (419,645) 

Net Position, beg. of year, as adjusted   $       20,201,719   $ 23,511,408    $   55,599,247    $  57,100,589  

Net Position, ending of year   $       23,704,213   $ 26,892,291    $   57,636,431    $  56,680,944  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 
 

Fiscal Year Comparison of Net Position 

Governmental Activities  Business‐type Activities 

2013  2014  2013  2014 

Current and Other Assets   $  14,940,433    $ 17,158,583    $  14,525,791    $ 13,553,612  

Capital Assets (net of depr.)       33,205,768       32,917,166        45,799,974       45,609,301  

Total Assets   $  48,146,201    $ 50,075,749    $  60,325,765    $ 59,162,913  

Deferred Outflows   $       209,210    $                 ‐      $                   ‐       

Total Deferred Outflows   $       209,210    $                 ‐      $                   ‐      $                 ‐    

Other Liabilities   $    3,333,042    $   3,540,417    $        904,826    $      991,860  

Long Term Debt Outstanding       19,399,179       17,589,126           1,784,508         1,490,109  

Total Liabilities   $  22,732,221    $ 21,129,543    $    2,689,334    $   2,481,969  

Deferred Inflows   $    1,918,977    $   2,053,915       $                 ‐    

Total Deferred Inflows   $    1,918,977    $   2,053,915    $                   ‐      $                 ‐    

Net Investment in Capital Assets   $  12,312,930    $ 13,743,040    $  43,787,842    $ 43,854,192  

Restricted         3,693,214         3,151,603           1,982,181         1,856,320  

Unrestricted         7,698,069         9,997,648        11,866,408       10,970,432  

Total Net Position   $  23,704,213    $ 26,892,291    $  57,636,431    $ 56,680,944  

 
 
 
Fund financial statements: pages 42 to 62. 
 
Clearfield City records transactions in different funds.  The funds are a grouping of related 
accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that are segregated for specific 
activities or objectives.  Fund financial statements provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and fund balances.  Fund statements are budget oriented and focus on what has 
happened during the fiscal year.  For example, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances show how the fund balances changed 
from the beginning of the year to the end of the year.   

 
Clearfield City, like other state and local governments, use fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

  
General Government funds summary 

 
The General Government funds reported by the City are the General Fund, the Community 
Development Renewal Agency (CDRA) Fund, the Capital Project Fund and Other Governmental 
Funds. 

 
 



30 
 

General Fund:  pages 49 to 54. 
  

During the year $13,598,155 came into the General Fund before Other Financing Sources.    This 
is a decrease of $38,753 from the previous year.  The primary decrease came one time 
miscellaneous revenue.  Taxes still remain the largest source of revenue received in the General 
Fund with 61% of the total—$8,270,312.  For the prior year taxes represented 59% or 
$8,107,471 of the total revenue source before other financing sources. 
 

 
 
 
 
The next chart compares the normal general fund revenue for Fiscal year 2013 and 2014. 
On the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for Governmental 
Funds, the general fund revenues increased $38,573 from 2013 to 2014 (before transfers or other 
sources).  This amount represents a .3% increase in these revenue sources.  The largest decrease 
is in fines and forfeitures revenue of $77,336. Followed by a decrease in rent & other services of 
$109,996, and a decrease in property tax of $60,062.  These decreases were offset by an increase 
in sales tax revenue of $137,076, an increase in energy tax revenue of $88,233, and an increase 
in parks and recreation $72,864.    
 

Taxes 8,270,312 , 
61%

Intergovernmental  
1,203,640 , 9%

Charges for 
services

2,626,777 , 19%

Fines & forfeitures 
700,060 , 5%

Interest
50,844 , 1%

Miscellaneous 
20,325 , 0%

Rents & other 
services 726,197 , 

5%

$13,598,155 GENERAL FUND SOURCES FY2014



31 
 

 
 
 
General Fund Spending: 
 
The General Fund’s actual operating expenditures increase by $253,856 before any debt service 
or transfers to other funds.  This represents a 2 % increase from the prior year actual for the same 
functions. After transfers to other funds are included the total expenditures increased by $96,256 
as compared to the prior year. This increase in transfers was mainly to spending excess FY 2013 
fund balance. 
 
Percentage and amount of general fund spending by broad functions is presented below. 
 
 

‐ 500,000  1,000,000  1,500,000  2,000,000  2,500,000  3,000,000  3,500,000  4,000,000 

Special police services

Fines and forfeitures

Rents and other services

Class "C" road allotment

Franchise taxes

General property taxes

Parks and recreation

Energy sales & use tax

General sales & use taxes

General Fund Revenue FY13 to FY14

FY14 FY13



32 
 

 
 
 
 
The next chart compares general fund spending for 2013 and 2014 by governmental activity. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

General 
government,  

3,674,092 , 25%

Public safety,  
4,182,267 , 28%

Highways,  
697,295 , 5%

Community 
services,  

3,735,613 , 25%

Community 
development,  
534,927 , 3%

Debt service,  
991,231 , 7%

Transfers to other 
funds, 1,030,057 , 

7%

$14,845,482 GENERAL FUND SPENDING 2014

0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000

General government

Public safety

Highways

Community services

Community development

Debt service

Transfers to other funds

General Fund Spending 2013 to 2014

FY14 FY13



33 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Development and Renewal Agency: page 55. 
 

Total revenue of $3,138,487 was generated in 2014. This is a decrease of $36,206 from FY2013.  
Community Development and Renewal Agency (CDRA) revenue includes property tax 
increment monies, rent from RDA owned properties, and interest.    

 
The Clearfield CDRA’s balance sheet reflects an inter-fund loan payable of $1,015,167.  This 
loan is due to the Water Administration Fund.  One of the largest assets is land held for resale 
and most of this land is collateral for the debt the redevelopment agency has incurred.  

 
The CDRA pays a portion of the Sales Tax Revenue Bond 2003, and that bond was refunded in 
December 2006.  The CDRA transfers their bond payment to the general fund semi-annually.   
The Net Change in Fund Balance for the CDRA Fund increased $1,698,561 to end the year at 
$5,796,199.   

 
Capital Projects Fund: page 100. 

 
The Capital Projects Fund began the fiscal year with a fund balance of $1,161,037.  During the 
year, $1,018,145 was spent related to capital projects.  $1,030,057 was transferred in during the 
year to fund new authorized capital projects.  The fund balance had a net increase of $13,570 to 
end the fiscal year with a $1,174,607 fund balance. 

 
Debt Service / General Obligation Bond Fund: page 101. 

 
The Debt Service Fund was created when the City issued the original General Obligation bond in 
Fiscal 1999.  This fund is used to account for principle and interest payments on the general 
obligation bond and the refunding general obligation bond.  In FY2014 $793,113 was received in 
this fund as revenue.  This revenue is budgeted from a portion of the certified tax rate.  In 
FY2014 this rate related to the G.O. debt was 0.000763.  The revenue collected from the 
property taxes was not enough to cover the debt service for the year, $392,193 was transferred in 
from the proprietary funds for the current year debt service.  

 
Proprietary Funds Summary:  pages 56 to 61. 

 
Proprietary funds include the Water, Sewer, Solid Waste Collection, and Storm Drain 
departments.  All of the City’s business type activities except, Storm Drain and Utility 
Administration, have a positive net income before transfers in or out.  The Utility Administration 
fund shows a loss of $108,813.  The Utility Administration fund is handled as an overhead 
administration for all of the utilities and the loss is allocated over the remaining utilities.   The 



34 
 

Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drain and Solid Waste utilities all showed a positive income 
before and after transfers in the fiscal year.   

 
Proprietary funds are the same as the business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  The Business-type Activities column on the Statement of Net Position has the same 
total assets, total liabilities, and total net position as the total column on the Statement of Net 
Position Proprietary Fund statement.   

 
The statement of Net Position for Proprietary Funds shows a total operating revenue of 
$8,782,104 for the fiscal year ending 2014.  For all proprietary funds this is an increase of 
$244,970 compared to the prior year revenues before transfers.  The increase is due to an 
increase in rates for water, sewer, and storm drain.   
  
The Proprietary funds also had operating expenses including depreciation totaling $8,127,213 
before non-operating revenues or expenditures; this is up $639,619 from the prior year.  After 
non-operating revenues and expenses, the proprietary funds had a net decrease of $419,645. 
 
The Water Fund has one outstanding revenue bond that was issued in 2007.  The bond proceeds 
were used to upgrade and replace existing line infrastructure.  The original issued amount was 
for $3,330,000.  The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 is $1,745,000.  The maturity date is 
scheduled for May 2020. 
 
Internal Service Funds-Fleet and Risk Management   pages 108 to 110. 
 
The purpose of the fleet fund is to centralize the vehicle repair, service and replacement and to be 
able to cost out those services to the departments who utilize these services.  The assets in this 
fund are all of the street licensed vehicles the City has along with unlicensed heavy and light 
duty vehicles and equipment. Revenues totaled $800,722 with Operating Expenses including 
depreciation to be $801,805 for a net operating loss of $1,083.  The fund also received a gain of 
$63,219 on the sale of fixed assets.  The increase to net position was $62,136. 
 
The Risk Management Fund was created in FY2013.  The fund was created to help Clearfield 
City assign and develop costs for the city insurance.  The general fund, enterprise, and fleet 
funds are charged to generate the revenue for this fund.  In FY 2014 revenue was $300,418.  
Insurance costs for the city were $254,508.  The increase to net position was $8,783. 
 
 
Notes to Financial Statements: pages 64 to 97. 
 
The Notes to the financial statement presents important details and schedules explaining 
Clearfield City’s significant accounting policies, reconciliation of the Government-wide 
statement to the Fund Financial Statements, stewardship, compliance, accountability and detailed 
notes on all funds.   
 
Funds not presented earlier are classified as non-major governmental funds and these are 
presented on pages 102 to 106. Clearfield City has the following non-major funds: 



35 
 

  
  Park Capital Project Fund 
  The Cemetery Perpetual Care Permanent Fund 
 
The Combining Balance Sheet Non-major Governmental Funds and the Combining Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Non-major Governmental Funds are 
presented on pages 102 and 103. Budget and actual comparisons for the non-major funds are 
presented on pages 105 to 106.  Budget and actual comparisons for major capital projects fund 
and G.O bond fund are presented on pages 100 and 101. 
 
 
Requests for information: 
 
It is granted that in a city the size of Clearfield the accounting for over $100 million in assets and 
over $27 million of annual revenues and other financing sources for 2014 is bound to be a 
complex undertaking.  GASB Statement no. 34 reporting model is the government accounting 
industry’s effort to bring to light the most relevant issues that are reported to citizens, elected 
officials, and city government employees.   
 
The City’s various departments will be happy to answer any additional questions which you may 
have as you review this report.  In particular the Administrative Services Director can be reached 
at (801) 525-2720 Monday through Friday from 8 A.M to 5 P.M. MST. 
 



This page left blank intentionally

36



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37



Governmental Business-type North Davis
Activities Activities Total Fire District

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10,984,682$     10,034,155 21,018,837 2,333,690     
Accounts receivable (net) -                    861,792        861,792        156,772        
Property, sales, & franchise
   taxes receivable 3,147,278         -               3,147,278     2,392,376     
Other receivables 325,671            -               325,671        -               
Prepaid items 175,367            524,847        700,214        -               
Internal balances (386,043)           386,043        -               -               
Restricted cash 1,777,480         1,746,775     3,524,255     -               
Restricted land held for sale 1,134,148         -               1,134,148     -               
Capital assets (net of 
    accumulated depreciation):
   Land 4,943,221         1,404,577     6,347,798     200,110        
   Water stock & rights 25,200              9,162            34,362          -               

Buildings 17 324 103 793 138 18 117 241 2 568 555

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

   Buildings 17,324,103      793,138      18,117,241 2,568,555    
   Improvements 1,259,262         258,140        1,517,402     -               
   Machinery & equipment 2,464,537         713,680        3,178,217     763,885        
   Infrastructure 6,305,631         40,679,201   46,984,832   -               
   Construction in process 595,212            1,751,403     2,346,615     -               

   Total assets 50,075,749$     59,162,913 109,238,662 8,415,388     

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

38



Governmental Business-type North Davis
Activities Activities Total Fire District

Liabilities
Accounts payable
   and accrued liabilities 1,172,061$       673,722        1,845,783     132,181        
Accrued interest payable 371,038           11,633 382,671       34,544         
Compensated absences - current 230,631            14,527          245,158        -               
Capital lease payable - current -                    -               -               55,294          
General obligation bonds 
    payable - current 800,000            -               800,000        -               
Revenue bonds payable - current 785,000            265,000        1,050,000     150,000        
Compensated 
    absences - noncurrent 181,687            26,978          208,665        144,820        
Capital lease payable - noncurrent -                    -               -               436,226        
General obligation bonds
    payable - noncurrent 5,697,482         -               5,697,482     -               
Revenue bonds 
    payable - noncurrent 11,891,644       1,490,109     13,381,753   2,250,000     

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Net Position - Continued

June 30, 2014

   Total liabilities 21,129,543       2,481,969     23,611,512   3,203,065     
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue-
     property taxes 2,053,915         -               2,053,915     1,950,211     

   Total deferred inflows
          of resources 2,053,915         -               2,053,915     1,950,211     
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 13,743,040       43,854,192   57,597,232   641,030        
Restricted for:
   Debt service 1,124,461         83,700          1,208,161     64,186          
   Perpetual care
     Expendable 29,294              -               29,294          -               
     Nonexpendable 166,915            -               166,915        -               
   Capital projects 152,532            1,663,075     1,815,607     -               
   E-911 394,136            -               394,136        -               
   Community redevelopment 1,134,148         -               1,134,148     -               
   Other 150,117            109,545        259,662        220,611        
Unrestricted 9,997,648         10,970,432   20,968,080   2,336,285     

Total net position 26,892,291$     56,680,944   83,573,235   3,262,112     

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
39



Function/Programs Operating Capital Component Unit
Primary government Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type North Davis

Governmental activities: Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Fire District
General government 4,419,080$   1,185,291   -              -              (3,233,789)$ (3,233,789)  
Public safety 4,258,275     1,219,731   77,383        34,614        (2,926,547)   (2,926,547)  
Highways and public improvements 583,792        61,254        771,589      269,689      518,740        518,740       
Community services 4,196,122     1,758,678   50,365        -              (2,387,079)   (2,387,079)  
Community development 460,111        -              -              -              (460,111)      (460,111)     
Interest on long-term debt 828,074        -              -              -              (828,074)      (828,074)     

   Total governmental activities 14,745,454   4,224,954   899,337      304,303      (9,316,860)   (9,316,860)  
Business-type activities:

Public utility 8,683,770     8,781,224   -              -              -               97,454          97,454         

   Total business-type activities 8,683,770     8,781,224   -              -              -               97,454          97,454         

Total primary government 23,429,224$ 13,006,178 899,337      304,303      (9,316,860)   97,454          (9,219,406)  

Component unit

Program Revenues
Primary Government

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net (Expenses) Revenues & Changes in Net Position

40

North Davis Fire District 3,027,810$   877,718      818             -              (2,149,274)     

    Total component unit 3,027,810$   877,718      818             -              (2,149,274)     

General revenues:
   Property taxes 5,200,014     -               5,200,014    2,315,257      
   General sales and use tax 3,648,705     -               3,648,705    -                 
   Franchise tax 888,626        -               888,626       -                 
   Energy use tax 2,361,797     -               2,361,797    -                 
   Transient room tax 7,139            -               7,139           
   Interest earnings 99,266          41,848          141,114       10,102           
   Miscellaneous (67,631)        880               (66,751)       12,000           
Transfers 559,827        (559,827)      -              -                 
Contribution of capital assets -               -               -              -                 
      Total general revenues 12,697,743   (517,099)      12,180,644  2,337,359      
         Change in net position 3,380,883     (419,645)      2,961,238    188,085         
Net position - beginning, as adjusted 23,511,408   57,100,589   80,611,997  3,074,027      
Net position - ending 26,892,291$ 56,680,944 83,573,235 3,262,112    

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

40



This page left blank intentionally

41



Special Revenue
Community Debt 

Development Service Other Total
General & Renewal Capital G.O. Governmental Governmental

Fund Agency Fund Projects Bond Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,827,618$   6,136,723 -            -            20,341       10,984,682  
Property, sales, and franchise taxes receivable 2,307,117 -                 -            840,161 -            3,147,278    
Other receivables 320,108 2,513             -            -            -            322,621       
Prepaid items 150,117 -                 -            -            -            150,117       
Due from other funds -               -                 1,222,162 89,858 -            1,312,020    
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,428,739 -                 -            -            348,741     1,777,480    
Restricted land held for sale -               1,134,148      -            -            -            1,134,148    

     Total assets 9,033,699   7,273,384    1,222,162 930,019  369,082   18,828,346

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable 297,380 4,428             47,555 -            -            349,363       
Accrued liabilities 769,744 45,005 -            -            -            814,749       
Interfund loans payable -               1,015,167 -            -            -            1,015,167    
Due to other funds 30,477 412,585         -            -            56,683       499,745       

   Total liabilities 1,097,601     1,477,185      47,555      -            56,683       2,679,024    

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue-
     property taxes 1,213,754 -                 -            840,161 -            2,053,915    
     Total deferred inflows
         of resources 1,213,754$   -                 -            840,161 -            2,053,915

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

42



Special Revenue
Community Debt 

Development Service Other Total
General & Renewal Capital G.O. Governmental Governmental

Fund Agency Fund Projects Bond Fund Funds Funds
Fund Balances

Nonspendable
   Prepaid items 150,117$      -                 -            -            -            150,117       
   Land held as inventory -               1,134,148      -            -            -            1,134,148    
Restricted for:

Debt service 1,034,603     -                 -            89,858      -            1,124,461    
Capital projects -               -                 -            -            152,532     152,532       
Cemetery perpetual care -               -                 -            -            196,209     196,209       
E-911 394,136        -                 -            -            -            394,136       

Committed 1,340,742     150,000         685,201    -            -            2,175,943    
Assigned, reported in:

Capital projects - improvements -               -                 489,406    -            -            489,406       
Special revenue - community development -               4,512,051      -            -            -            4,512,051    

Unassigned, reported in:
Capital projects -               -                 -            -            (36,342)     (36,342)       
General fund 3,802,746     -                 -            -            -            3,802,746    

   Total fund balances 6,722,344     5,796,199      1,174,607 89,858      312,399     14,095,407  
      Total liabilities, deferred
        inflows of resources, 
        and fund balances 9,033,699$  7,273,384    1,222,162 930,019  369,082   18,828,346

Clearfield City Corporation
Balance Sheet - Continued

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

43



Total fund balances - governmental fund types: 14,095,407$  

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 32,917,166   

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
fund are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. (162,800)       

Long-term liabilities,includingbonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Also, issuance costs, premiums,
and discounts are not currently expensed but amortized over the life of the loan. (19,957,482)  

Net position of governmental activities 26,892,291$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

44



This page left blank intentionally

45



Special Revenue
Community Debt

Development Service Other Total
General & Renewal Capital G.O. Governmental Governmental

Fund Agency Fund Projects Bond Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes 8,270,312$   3,042,856 -               793,113       -               12,106,281    
Rents and other services 726,197        73,798 -               -               -               799,995         
Intergovernmental 1,203,640     -                    -               -               7,185           1,210,825      
Charges for services 2,626,777     -                    -               -               -               2,626,777      
Impact fees -                -                    -               -               61,254         61,254           
Fines and forfeitures 700,060        -                    -               -               -               700,060         
Interest 50,844          21,833 1,658           -               1,531           75,866           
Miscellaneous revenue 20,325          -                    -               -               -               20,325           

   Total revenues 13,598,155   3,138,487         1,658           793,113       69,970         17,601,383    
Expenditures
Current

General government 3,674,092     141,059 -               -               50,000         3,865,151      
Public safety 4,182,267     -                    -               -               -               4,182,267      
Highways and public improvements 419,032        -                    -               -               -               419,032         
Community services 3,735,613     -                    -               -               -               3,735,613      
Community development 534,927        -                    -               -               -               534,927         

Capital outlay -                -                    1,018,145 -               -               1,018,145      
Debt service

Principal retirement 755,000        155,000            -               770,000       -               1,680,000      
Interest and fiscal charges 514,494        12,812              -               326,250       -               853,556         
   Total expenditures 13,815,425   308,871            1,018,145    1,096,250    50,000         16,288,691    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

46



Special Revenue
Community Debt 

Development Service Other Total
General & Renewal Capital G.O. Governmental Governmental

Fund Agency Fund Projects Bond Fund Funds Funds

Excess (deficiency) revenues over
(under) expenditures (217,270)$     2,829,616         (1,016,487)   (303,137)      19,970         1,312,692      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds (cost) from disposal of capital assets 43,655          (74,816)             -               -               -               (31,161)          
Transfers in 1,226,656     -                    1,030,057 392,193 -               2,648,906      
Transfers (out) (1,030,057)    (1,056,239)        -               -               (2,783)          (2,089,079)     

Total other financing sources and (uses) 240,254        (1,131,055)        1,030,057    392,193       (2,783)          528,666         

Net change in fund balances 22,984          1,698,561         13,570         89,056         17,187         1,841,358      
Fund balances - beginning of year 6,699,360     4,097,638 1,161,037 802 295,212       12,254,049    
Fund balances - end of year 6,722,344$   5,796,199         1,174,607    89,858         312,399       14,095,407    

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds - Continued

47



Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,841,358$     

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (559,966)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued; whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 1,680,000

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of the
internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 337,269

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. 82,222

Change in net position of governmental activities 3,380,883$     

Clearfield City Corporation
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

48



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes

General property taxes 1,332,357$    1,332,357 1,364,045 31,688        
General sales and use taxes 3,431,943 3,431,943 3,648,705 216,762      
Franchise taxes 923,000 923,000 888,626 (34,374)       
Energy sales and use tax 2,229,000 2,229,000 2,361,797 132,797      
Transient room tax 7,700             7,700            7,139 (561)            

7,924,000      7,924,000     8,270,312    346,312      
Intergovernmental

Class "C" road allotment 737,000 737,000 771,589 34,589        
State liquor allotment 40,000 40,000 38,702 (1,298)         
Other grants 20,150 41,125 24,040 (17,085)       
Federal grants 237,641 272,255 369,309 97,054        

1,034,791      1,090,380     1,203,640    113,260      
Charges for services

Special police services 507,233 507,233 519,671 12,438        
Licenses and permits 329,230 329,230 348,428 19,198        
Parks and recreation 1,778,014 1,854,034 1,750,033 (104,001)     
Cemetery lots and services 9,000 9,000 8,645 (355)            

2,623,477      2,699,497     2,626,777    (72,720)       

Fines and forfeitures 846,000 846,000 700,060 (145,940)     

Interest 17,000 17,000 50,844 33,844        

Miscellaneous 14,000           14,000          20,325 6,325          

Rents and other services 725,782 725,782 726,197 415             

Other Financing Sources
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                 -                43,655         43,655        
Transfers in 1,113,314 1,116,097 1,226,656 110,559      

Total other financing sources 1,113,314      1,116,097     1,270,311    154,214      
Total revenues and other

financing sources 14,298,364$  14,432,756   14,868,466  435,710      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

49



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Expenditures

General government
Legislative

Salaries and wages 56,040$         70,297 56,290 14,007        
Employee benefits 82,337 82,337 72,414 9,923          
Council & mayor 37,250 37,250 23,798 13,452        
Materials, supplies, and services 34,574 42,010 41,355 655             

210,201 231,894      193,857       38,037        
Judicial

Salaries and wages 219,947 219,947 216,225 3,722          
Employee benefits 70,171 70,171 78,883 (8,712)         
Professional services 84,060 84,060 80,987 3,073          
Materials, supplies, and services 16,534 16,534 11,660 4,874          

390,712 390,712      387,755       2,957          
Executive

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Executive
Salaries and wages 487,168         487,168      489,582       (2,414)         
Employee benefits 180,283         180,283      181,832       (1,549)         
Professional services 25,465           25,465        12,802         12,663        
Materials, supplies, and services 117,810         117,810      101,885       15,925        

810,726         810,726      786,101       24,625        
Administrative services

Salaries and wages 665,220         665,220      594,351       70,869        
Employee benefits 307,221         307,221      239,286       67,935        
Professional services 114,502         114,502      101,515       12,987        
Materials, supplies, and services 398,228         393,428      360,458       32,970        
Capital outlay 88,690           88,690        55,076         33,614        

1,573,861      1,569,061   1,350,686    218,375      
Non-departmental

Materials, supplies, and services 425,822 424,742 326,530 98,212        
Utilities 650,100 650,100 573,628 76,472        
Telephone 24,000 24,000 35,477 (11,477)       

1,099,922$    1,098,842   935,635       163,207      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

50



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Expenditures - continued

Elections
Materials, supplies, and services 24,000$         24,000 20,058         3,942          

24,000           24,000        20,058         3,942          

Total general government 4,109,422      4,125,235   3,674,092    451,143      

Public safety
Police

Salaries and wages 2,357,083 2,362,343 2,343,276 19,067        
Employee benefits 1,234,052 1,234,052 1,183,226 50,826        
Professional services 153,364 153,364 150,523 2,841          
Materials, supplies, and services 415,700 454,208 379,159 75,049        
Capital outlay 31,000 44,475 39,668 4,807          

4,191,199      4,248,442   4,095,852    152,590      
Start grant

Salaries and wages 64,236           64,236 50,899 13,337        
Employee benefits 35,547           35,547 26,846 8,701          
Materials, supplies, and services 18,360 18,360 8,670 9,690          

118,143         118,143      86,415         31,728        

Total public safety 4,309,342$    4,366,585   4,182,267    184,318      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

51



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Expenditures - continued
Highways and public improvements
Streets and highways

Salaries and wages 101,375$       101,375 100,341 1,034          
Employee benefits 43,158 43,158 42,957 201             
Professional services 37,271 37,271 26,093 11,178        
Materials, supplies, and services 298,457 298,457 249,641 48,816        
Principal payments 235,000         235,000      235,000       -              
Interest payments 46,750 46,750 43,263 3,487          

Total highways and 
public improvements 762,011       762,011    697,295      64,716      

Community services
Salaries and wages 1,808,505 1,808,505 1,753,255 55,250
Employee benefits 473,048 473,048 444,113 28,935
Professional services 324,005 324,005 285,602 38,403
M i l li d i 972 273 1 038 076 1 159 838 (121 762)Materials, supplies, and services 972,273 1,038,076 1,159,838 (121,762)   
Capital outlay 269,000 309,000 92,805 216,195

Total community services 3,846,831$    3,952,634   3,735,613    217,021      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

52



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Expenditures - continued

Community development
Administration

Professional services 45,906$         45,906 48,312 (2,406)         
Materials, supplies, and services 193,285 193,285 172,284 21,001        

239,191         239,191      220,596       18,595        
CDBG urban redevelopment

Salaries and wages 11,643 11,643 23,101 (11,458)       
Employee benefits 6,198 6,198 7,439 (1,241)         
Materials, supplies, and services 57,122 57,122 28,843 28,279        

74,963           74,963        59,383         15,580        

Building development services
Salaries and wages 166,171 166,171 157,266 8,905          
Employee benefits 75,202 75,202 66,370 8,832        p y , , , ,
Professional services 38,428 38,428 22,507 15,921        
Materials, supplies, and services 16,623 16,623 8,805 7,818          

296,424         296,424      254,948       41,476        

Total community development 610,578         610,578      534,927       75,651        

Debt service
Principal payments 520,000         520,000      520,000       -              
Interest payments 469,956 469,956 471,231 (1,275)         

Total debt service 989,956         989,956      991,231       (1,275)         

Total expenditures 14,628,140$  14,806,999 13,815,425  991,574      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

53



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund - Continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out 861,995$       876,870 1,030,057 (153,187)     

Total other financing uses 861,995         876,870      1,030,057    (153,187)     

Net change in fund balances (1,191,771)     (1,251,113)  22,984         1,274,097   

Fund balances, beginning
    of year 6,699,360 6,699,360   6,699,360    -              

Fund balances, end of year 5,507,589$    5,448,247   6,722,344    1,274,097   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

54



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues

Taxes 2,699,811$ 2,699,811 3,042,856 343,045     
Rents and other services 47,492 47,492 73,798 26,306       
Interest 15,000 15,000 21,833 6,833         

2,762,303   2,762,303   3,138,487   376,184     

Expenditures

Current operating
General government 1,838,993 1,511,611 141,059 1,370,552  

Debt service
Principal retirement 155,000      155,000      155,000 -             
Interest payments 17,407        17,407        12,812 4,595         

Total expenditures 2,011,400   1,684,018   308,871      1,375,147  

Excess of revenue over (under)
expenditures 750,903      1,078,285   2,829,616   1,751,331  

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Land inventory contributed -              -             (74,816)       (74,816)      
Operating transfers in 287,174      614,556      -              (614,556)    
Operating transfers (out) (1,038,077)  (1,495,459) (1,056,239)  439,220     
Total other financing sources
   (uses) (750,903)     (880,903)    (1,131,055)  (250,152)    

Net change in fund balances -              197,382      1,698,561   1,501,179  

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,097,638   4,097,638   4,097,638   -             

Fund balances, end of year 4,097,638$ 4,295,020   5,796,199   1,501,179  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Community Development & Renewal Agency Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

55



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents -$               4,202,588 2,041,063 1,218,882 2,571,622 10,034,155  -               
Accounts receivable (net) 22,758            364,783 262,729      127,157    84,365 861,792       3,050            
Due from other funds -                 -               128,642      -           -             128,642       29,443          
Prepaid items -                 524,847 -              -           -             524,847       25,250          
Restricted cash and 
   cash equivalents -                 1,115,138 213,017 -           418,620     1,746,775    -               
Interfund loan - CDRA 1,015,167 -               -              -           -             1,015,167    -               
    Total current assets 1,037,925        6,207,356    2,645,451   1,346,039 3,074,607  14,311,378  57,743          

Noncurrent assets
Water stock and rights -                 9,162 -              -           -             9,162           -               
Land, equipment, buildings, 
    and improvements -                 34,295,966 21,411,398 -           25,868,292 81,575,656  3,264,369     
Less: accumulated depreciation -                 (16,196,685) (10,327,822) -           (11,202,413) (37,726,920) (2,086,802)   
Construction in process -                 687,476 811,094      -           252,833 1,751,403    -               
   Total noncurrent assets -                 18,795,919  11,894,670 -           14,918,712 45,609,301  1,177,567     

   Total assets 1,037,925$      25,003,275  14,540,121 1,346,039 17,993,319 59,920,679  1,235,310     
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and 
    accrued liabilities 12,671$          98,025 223,814 75,760 165,540 575,810       7,949            
Customer deposits 109,545 -               -              -           -             109,545       -               
Due to other funds 757,766 -               -              -           -             757,766       212,594        
Compensated absences - current 3,816 4,770 5,941 -           -             14,527         -               
Revenue bond payable - current -                 265,000       -              -           -             265,000       -               
   Total current liabilities 883,798$         367,795       229,755      75,760      165,540     1,722,648    220,543        

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

56



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Non current liabilities
Compensated 
   absences - noncurrent 7,087$            8,858 11,033 -           -             26,978         -               
Revenue bond payable
   - noncurrent -                 1,490,109 -              -           -             1,490,109    -               
   Total noncurrent liabilities 7,087              1,498,967    11,033        -           -             1,517,087    -               
      Total liabilities 890,885           1,866,762    240,788      75,760      165,540     3,239,735    220,543        

Net position
   Net investment in capital assets -                 17,040,810  11,894,670 -           14,918,712 43,854,192  1,177,567     
   Restricted
        Impact fees -                 1,031,438    213,017 -           418,620     1,663,075    -               
        Debt service -                 83,700         -              -           -             83,700         -               
        Other 109,545           -               -              -           -             109,545       -               
   Unrestricted 37,495            4,980,565    2,191,646   1,270,279 2,490,447  10,970,432  (162,800)      
      Total net position 147,040           23,136,513  14,299,333 1,270,279 17,827,779 56,680,944  1,014,767     
Total liabilities and net position 1,037,925$      25,003,275 14,540,121 1,346,039 17,993,319 59,920,679  1,235,310     

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Net Position - Continued

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

57



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Operating Revenues
Charges for services 149,946$            3,459,034 2,757,461 1,239,842 894,103 8,500,386        1,084,597
Impact fees -                     171,996 65,882 -            42,960 280,838           -                  
Miscellaneous -                     -             880 -            -            880                  16,543

Total operating
         revenues 149,946              3,631,030   2,824,223    1,239,842 937,063    8,782,104        1,101,140        
Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 116,401 295,636 190,806 36,421 96,598 735,862           154,413           
Employee benefits 56,596 143,292 80,483 13,105 42,209 335,685           -                  
Maintenance,

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

Clearfield City Corporation

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

58

Maintenance,
   supplies, and contracts 85,762 1,877,423 1,768,607 1,034,126 177,297 4,943,215        672,677
Depreciation and 
   amortization -                     884,463      563,498       -            664,490    2,112,451        229,223           

      Total operating
        expenses 258,759              3,200,814   2,603,394    1,083,652 980,594    8,127,213        1,056,313        
Net operating income (108,813)$           430,216      220,829       156,190   (43,531)     654,891           44,827             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

58



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
   Gain/(loss) on disposal
     of capital assets -$                   (46,674)      (431,583)     -            -            (478,257)         63,219
   Interest revenue 5,647 20,868 6,027 2,532        6,774 41,848             -                  
   Interest expense -                     (78,300)      -              -            -            (78,300)           -                  
      Total nonoperating 
         revenues (expenses) 5,647                  (104,106)    (425,556)     2,532        6,774        (514,709)         63,219             
Income (loss) before 
 contributions and transfers (103,166)             326,110      (204,727)     158,722   (36,757)     140,182           108,046           

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Continued

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

59

   Transfers in 106,652 -             -              -            -            106,652           -                  
   Transfers (out) -                     (356,677)    (181,073)     (95,740)    (32,989)     (666,479)         -                  

       Change in net position 3,486                  (30,567)      (385,800)     62,982     (69,746)     (419,645)         108,046           
   Total net position 
       - beginning, as adjusted 143,554 23,167,080 14,685,133 1,207,297 17,897,525 57,100,589      906,721

Total net position - ending 147,040$            23,136,513   14,299,333    1,270,279  17,827,779 56,680,944        1,014,767          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

59



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Cash flows from operating activitie
Receipts from customers 160,859$     3,594,589 2,797,125 1,251,506 934,294     8,738,373  1,102,771   
Payments to suppliers (80,022)       (1,820,650) (1,903,064) (1,033,843) (65,565)     (4,903,144) (515,966)     
Payments to employees (170,315)     (444,137)   (269,374)  (49,526)     (138,807)   (1,072,159) (154,413)     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitie (89,478)       1,329,802 624,687    168,137    729,922     2,763,070  432,392      
Cash flows from noncapital financing activitie

Advances (to) from other funds (22,821)       17,657      (117,594)  114,361    2,871        (5,526)       (224,247)     
Transfers from other funds 106,652      -           -           -           -            106,652     -              
Transfers to other funds -              (356,677)   (181,073)  (95,740)     (32,989)     (666,479)   -              

Net cash provided (used) by
   noncapital financing activities 83,831        (339,020)   (298,667)  18,621      (30,118)     (565,353)   (224,247)     

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Purchases of capital assets -              (2,006,744) (697,847)  -           (231,286)   (2,935,877) (246,308)     
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -              -           -           -           -            -            38,163        
Principal paid on capital debt -              (255,000)   -           -           -            (255,000)   -              
Interest paid on capital debt -              (78,300)     -           -           -            (78,300)     -              

Net cash provided (used) by capital
   and related financing activities -              (2,340,044) (697,847)  -           (231,286)   (3,269,177) (208,145)     

Cash flows from investing activitie
Interest and dividends received 5,647          20,868      6,027       2,532        6,774        41,848      -              

Net cash provided (used) by
   investing activities 5,647          20,868      6,027       2,532        6,774        41,848      -              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
  cash equivalents -              (1,328,394) (365,800)  189,290    475,292     (1,029,612) -              
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning -              6,646,120 2,619,880 1,029,592 2,514,950 12,810,542 -              

Cash and cash equivalents - ending -$              5,317,726   2,254,080   1,218,882  2,990,242    11,780,930  -                

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

60



Governmental 
Activities - 

Public Utility Water Sewer Waste Storm Internal Service
Administration Utility Utility Collection Drain Total Funds

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) (108,813)$     430,216      220,829      156,190     (43,531)       654,891       44,827          
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
   net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense -                884,463      563,498      -            664,490       2,112,451    229,223        
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (16,427)         (36,441)       (27,098)      11,664       (2,769)         (71,071)       1,631            
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid items -                19,164        -             -            -              19,164        178,153        
Increase /(decrease) in accounts payable 5,740            39,632        (134,457)    283            111,732       22,930        (21,442)         
Increase /(decrease) in customer deposits 27,340          -             -             -            -              27,340        -                
Increase /(decrease) in compensated absences 2,682            (5,209)         1,915         -            -              (612)            -                
Increase /(decrease) in unearned revenue -                (2,023)         -             -            -              (2,023)         -                

Total adjustments 19,335          899,586      403,858      11,947       773,453       2,108,179    387,565        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (89,478)$       1,329,802   624,687      168,137     729,922       2,763,070    432,392        

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

61



Offsite 
Improvements

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 50,691$           

Liabilities

Due to developers 50,691             

Total liabilities 50,691$          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

June 30, 2014
Fiduciary Fund - An Agency Fund

62



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

63



Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting entity

June 30, 2014
Notes to Financial Statements

Clearfield City Corporation

Complete financial statements for the component units may be obtained at the entities'
administrative offices, 381 North 3150 West, West Point, Utah 84015.

Clearfield City Corporation (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor
and a five member council. The City's major operations include public safety, highways and
roads, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services. The City's fiscal authority includes responsibility for final approval
over budgeting appropriations, for funding deficits and operating deficiencies, disposal of
surplus funds, control over the collection and disbursement of funds, and maintenance of title to
assets. The financial statements include the various departments, agencies, and other
organizational units governed by the City Council. The accompanying financial statements
present the government and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be
financially accountable.   

Blended component units.   Clearfield City Community Development and Renewal Agency is 
blended in the accompanying  basic financial statements.

Blending means that component unit balances and transactions are combined with balances and
transactions of the primary government. Although legally separate from the City, the above
component units are blended because they are governed by boards comprised of the City
council members. The City retains fiscal responsibility for these entities. These entities are
reported as special revenue funds.

Discretely presented component units. The North Davis Fire District provides emergency
services to Clearfield City and West Point City. The seven member governing board of the
District is appointed by Clearfield City. The City votes to approve property taxes imposed by
the District.

Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even
though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately
presented as funds of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it
is legally separate from the government.

64



Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

Description Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
changes in net position) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process
of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a
significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Basis of presentation - government-wide financial statements

While separate government-wide and fund statements are presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds,
while business-type activities incorporate data from the government's enterprise funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are: 1) reasonable allocation of costs where the
amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and 2) other charges
between the government’s General Fund and utility functions and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

Basis of presentation - fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government's funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental
and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

65



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

The community development & renewal agency fund accounts for and reports community
development & renewal agency transactions conducted by Clearfield City, including property
acquisition, site improvements, preparation cost, installation of public improvements, and
administration cost, most of which are funded through property taxes and rents charged on properties
held.

The risk management internal service fund  - accounts for and reports risk management for the City.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The fleet management internal service fund - accounts for and reports the fleet vehicles owned by the 
City.

The waste collection fund  accounts for and reports the activities of the government's waste collection 
operations.

The offsite improvement fund accounts for and reports the funds collected from developers for offsite
improvements and is a fiduciary fund.

The sewer utility fund  accounts for and reports the activities of the government's sewer operations.

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for and reports all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The storm drain fund  accounts for and reports the activities of the government's storm sewer 
operations.

The G.O. bond fund is used to account for and report principal and interest on the general obligation
bonds used to finance construction in the City. 

The public utility administration fund  accounts for and reports the administration of the City's public 
utility system. 

The capital projects fund accounts for and reports the ongoing acquisition and replacement of major
capital assets and infrastructure improvements needed to maintain the operations of the City. General
government resources provide the primary source of funding with grants and other government
resources which provide additional funding as available.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water utility fund  accounts for and reports the activities of the government's water distribution 
operations.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

66



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due to/from other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities
column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund
financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting . Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources or economic resources . The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

67



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position/fund balance

1.  Deposits and investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting . Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt
and acquisition under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Certain resources of the City’s governmental funds are set aside for the following: debt, class C
roads, capital improvements, and E911 as required by applicable federal and state regulations.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met,
including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability
period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure driven grants are recognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred, all other eligibility requirements have
been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue
source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the government.

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The
reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

68



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

2.  Prepaid items

3.  Receivables 

This section intentionally left blank.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Franchise taxes are collected by telephone, natural gas and electric utilities, and by cable TV
operations and are remitted to the City monthly.

All trade, property, sales, and franchise tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible. Trade accounts receivable in excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable
allowance for uncollectible.

Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and remitted to the City shortly after collection.
Property taxes are levied based on property values as of January 1 of each year, with liens posted as of
the same date. Taxes are due and payable on November 1 and delinquent after 12 o'clock noon on
November 30 of each year.

Sales taxes are collected by the State Tax Commission and remitted to the City monthly.

69



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

4.  Capital assets

Years Years
Buildings 50 System infrastructure 30
Building improvements 15-20 Vehicles  5-10
Public domain infrastructure 50 Equipment  3-7

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
of the primary government, as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the government chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition
date or amount. The government was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of
these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to
be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or
estimated acquisition year). As the government constructs or acquires additional capital assets each
period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported
value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to
capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or increase its estimated useful
life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Assets

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of interest capitalized depends on the
specific circumstances. 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable government or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Assets

70



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

5. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

6.  Long-term obligations

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
term of the related debt.

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of deferred
inflow of resources. Property taxes to be collected in November were unavailable in the current fiscal
year. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available.

71



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

7. Net position flow assumption

8.  Fund balance flow assumptions

9. Fund balance/net position policies

Government-wide financial statements

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balance of any bonds, mortgages, notes
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

Restricted net position - Net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups
such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund
balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.
Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose,
committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance
is applied last.

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to
report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted – net
position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied.

Equity is classified in the government-wide financial statements as net position and is displayed in
three components:

72



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

9. Fund balance/net position policies - continued

Fund financial statements

Unassigned fund balance - Residual classification of the General Fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purpose within the General Fund.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance
is further classified as Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned. Descriptions
of each follow:

Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance - Amounts restricted by enabling legislation. Also reported if, (a) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws regulations or other governments, or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision making authority,
the City Council. That formal action is by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal
year.  The commitment can only be removed through the same action.

Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained by the government's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has by resolution
authorized the finance director to assign fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it
does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations
in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal
of an assignment.

73



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

Revenues and expenditures/expenses

1.   Program revenues

2.   Property taxes

3.  Compensated absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of service.
Unused vacation up to 240 hours may carryover into the next year and is paid upon termination. Sick
leave in excess of 80 hours may be converted to five days vacation leave or to cash at one-fourth of the
amount. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those
dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues.

Sick leave is forfeited upon termination. Certain eligible employees, can, upon retirement, convert
unused sick leave into prepaid health insurance premiums (up to 5 years) or receive an equivalent
lump sum payment.

The government's policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits, which
are eligible for payment upon separation from government service. The liability for such leave is
reported as incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
those amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the liability has matured as a result of
employee resignations or retirements. The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related
benefits, where applicable.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property on January 1st of each year. Taxes are
levied on property owners in July and are payable by November 30th. Collections are periodically
distributed to the taxing entities, with final settlement due March 31st of the subsequent year. The City
records a receivable and deferred revenue for delinquent taxes, but no allowance for doubtful accounts
is made as uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through
foreclosure.

74



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies - continued

4.   Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Capital related items:

Cost of capital assets 73,709,682$   
Accumulated depreciation (40,792,516)   

Total difference 32,917,166$   

Deferred revenue/costs:

Bond discount 15,312$          

15,312$          

Long-term assets applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not available to pay for current
expenditures and thus are deferred in government funds. The statement of net position includes the
following costs:

When capital assets (property, plant, and equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are
purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, the statement of net position includes those capital assets among the assets of the City as a
whole.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund
balances and net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
net position. This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of
net position versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the utility funds and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

75



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued

Long-term debt transactions:

General obligation bonds 6,390,000$     
Revenue bonds 12,670,000     
Bond discount (15,312)          
Bond premium 129,438          
Interest payable on long-term debt 371,038          
Compensated absences 412,318          

Total difference 19,957,482$   

Fleet Risk
Management Management

Net position of the internal service funds             (217,493)$     54,693         

Capital outlay 839,624$        
Loss on disposal of capital assets 5,635              
Depreciation expense (1,405,225)     

Net difference as reported (559,966)$      

Internal service funds:

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “internal service funds are used by management to
charge the costs of equipment and risk to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.” The details of
this difference are as follows:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. The
first element of this reconciliation states that capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as
expenditures, while the government-wide statement of activities allocates these costs over the useful
lives of the assets as depreciation. While shown in the reconciliation as the net difference, the
elements of this difference are as follows:

B. Explanation of differences between governmental fund operating statements and the statement of
activities.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities in the fund financials. All liabilities
(both current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net position. Balances at June 30, 2014
were:

76



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued

Principal repayments:
General obligation debt 770,000$        
Revenue bond obligations 910,000          

Net difference as reported 1,680,000$     

Compensated absences 33,340$          
Amortization of bond premiums 23,400            
Amortization of bond discounts (1,093)            
Accrued interest 26,575            

Net difference as reported 82,222$          

Fleet Risk
Management Management

Changes in net position 62,136$          45,910          
Depreciation on fleet assets 229,223          -                

Net difference reported 291,359$       45,910         

Another element of the reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.”  The details of the difference are as follows:

Another element of the reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this difference are as follows: 

Another element of the reconciliation states that "Internal service funds are used by management to
charge the costs of service equipment and central stores to individual funds. The net revenue of
certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities." The details of this
are as follows:

77



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary information

Budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds are prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Encumbrances are used only as an internal management control
device during the year. Appropriations lapse at year end. Therefore, encumbrances are not reflected
in the accompanying financial statements. However, encumbrances generally are reappropriated and
honored as part of the following year's budget. The Council made several supplemental budgetary
appropriations throughout the year. Budget and actual statements for funds reported as major are
included in this report. The supplemental budgetary appropriations made in nonmajor funds were not
material. During the current year, the expenditures exceeded appropriations in various departments
and funds as noted in the Schedule of Findings.

Budgets are prepared and adopted, in accordance with State law, by the Clearfield City Council on a
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, debt service, and capital
projects funds. Tentative budgets must be adopted on or before June 22nd for the following fiscal
year, beginning July 1. Final adoption of the budget must be no later than August 17th. Budgets may
be increased by resolution of the City Council at any time during the year. A public hearing must be
held regarding any proposed increase in a fund's appropriations. The budget is adopted by fund,
function, and department. The government's department heads may make transfers of appropriations
within a department. Transfers of appropriations between Departments require the approval of the
City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is at the departmental level. Appropriations lapse
at June 30. 

Utah State law allows for any unassigned fund balance in excess of 5% of total revenues of the
General Fund to be utilized for budget purposes. The law also allows for the accumulation of a fund
balance in the General Fund in an amount equal to 25% of the total current year revenue of the
General Fund. In the event that the fund balance, at the end of the fiscal year, is in excess of that
allowed, the City has one year to determine an appropriate use and then the excess must be included as
an available resource in the General Fund budget. For the current year, the City is not in compliance
based on the above range.  The General Fund is over state compliance limits by $1,733,036.

78



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

Deposits and investments

Fair Value
Cash on deposit 1,363,104$     
Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund 23,401,471     

24,764,575$   

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the local government's deposits may not be recovered. The local government's policy for
managing custodial credit risk is to adhere to the Money Management Act. The Act requires all
deposits of the local government to be in a qualified depository, defined as any financial institution
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the federal government and which has been certified by
the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the
rules of the Utah Money Management Council. As of June 30, 2014, $863,104 of the $1,363,104
balance of deposits was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The City maintains cash accounts with local institutions and investment pools with the Utah Public
Treasurers' Investment Fund, which is available for use by all funds.

The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State Treasurer
about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening the banking
and credit structure of the state, and review the rules adopted under the authority of the State of Utah
Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds.

The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code, Section 51,
Chapter 7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the depositing of
City funds in a qualified depository. The Act defines a qualified depository as any financial institution
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal Government and which has been certified by
the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering
to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.

As of June 30, 2014, the City had the following deposits and investments:

79



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The local government's policy for limiting the credit risk of investments is to comply
with the Money Management Act. The Act requires investment transactions to be conducted only
through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities.
Permitted investments include deposits or qualified depositories; repurchase agreements; commercial
paper that is classified as "first-tier" by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, one
of which must be Moody's Investor Services or Standard & Poors; bankers acceptances; obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government sponsored enterprises; bonds and notes of political
subdivisions of the State of Utah; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated "A"
or higher by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations as defined in the Act.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in
the possession of an outside party. The local government is authorized to invest in the Utah Public
Treasurer's Investment Fund (PTIF), an external pooled investment fund managed by the Utah State
Treasurer and subject to the Act and Council requirements. The PTIF is not registered with the SEC
as an investment company, and deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the
State of Utah. The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income,
gains, and losses, net of administration fees, of the PTIF are allocated based upon the participants'
average daily balances. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City had investments of $23,401,471
with the PTIF at fair value. The entire balance had a maturity less than one year. The PTIF pool has
not been rated.

Deposits and investments - continued

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The Entity’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising
from increasing interest rates is to comply with the State’s Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11
of the Money Management Act requires that the remaining term to maturity of investments may not
exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act further limits the remaining term
to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, fixed rate negotiable
deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270-365 days or less. In addition, variable rate
negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to final maturity
exceeding 2 years.  

80



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Cash on hand and on deposit
Cash on hand 5,050$          

 Cash on deposit 1,187,262     
Utah State Treasurer's investment pool account 23,401,471   

Total cash and investments 24,593,783$

Cash and cash equivalents 21,018,837$ 
Restricted cash 3,524,255     

24,543,092   

50,691          

Total cash and investments 24,593,783$

Cash and investments - government-wide statement of net 
position
Cash and cash equivalents - statement of fiduciary assets and 
liabilities

Deposits and investments - continued

Concentration of credit risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The City’s policy for reducing this risk of
loss is to comply with the Rules of the Money Management Council, as applicable. Rule 17 of the
Money Management Council limits investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate
obligations to 5-10% depending upon the total dollar amount held in the portfolio. 

Components of cash and investments (including interest earning deposits) at June 30, 2014, are as
follows:

Cash and investments are included in the accompanying combined statement of net position as
follows:

81



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Receivables

Governmental Business-type Total

Accounts, net 145,882$      864,842          1,010,724     
B & C road 143,185        -                 143,185        
Property taxes 2,212,947     -                 2,212,947     
Intergovernmental 967,885 -                 967,885        

3,469,899$  864,842        4,334,741   

Unavailable Unearned

Property taxes 2,053,915$     -                

2,053,915$     -                

Receivables as of year end for the government's general and enterprise funds are as follows:

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

The business-type accounts receivable includes $12,547 in allowance for doubtful accounts for utility
services.

     Total deferred / unearned revenue for 
governmental funds

82



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Capital assets

Primary Government

Governmental Activities: Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 4,943,221$        -                      -                    4,943,221           

Construction in progress 683,160             553,499               641,447             595,212              

Water rights 25,200               -                      -                    25,200                

Total capital assets not being

depreciated 5,651,581          553,499               641,447             5,563,633           

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 25,077,511        23,000                 -                    25,100,511         

Improvements 1,784,907          167,800               -                    1,952,707           

Machinery and equipment 6,720,715          873,625               336,342             7,257,998           

Infrastructure 33,809,361        184,831               159,359             33,834,833         

Total capital assets being depreciated 67,392,494        1,249,256            495,701             68,146,049         

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 7,122,919          653,489               -                    7,776,408           

Improvements 601,819             91,626                 -                    693,445              

Machinery and equipment 4,574,271          510,848               291,658             4,793,461           

Infrastructure 27,539,299        149,262               159,359             27,529,202         

Total accumulated depreciation 39,838,308        1,405,225            451,017             40,792,516         

Total capital assets, 

being depreciated, net 27,554,186        (155,969)             44,684               27,353,533         

Governmental activities

capital assets, net 33,205,767$      397,530               686,131             32,917,166         

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

83



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Capital assets - continued

Primary Government

Business-type Activities: Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Construction in process 1,098,558$        1,760,387            1,107,542          1,751,403           

Land 1,404,577          -                      -                    1,404,577           

Water stock and rights 9,162                 -                      -                    9,162                  

Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 2,512,297          1,760,387            1,107,542          3,165,142           

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 2,965,522          414,157               -                    3,379,679           

Improvements 308,789             36,852                 -                    345,641              

Infrastructure 74,015,354        1,651,728            741,847             74,925,235         

Machinery and equipment 1,522,504          -                      1,980                 1,520,524           

Total capital assets being depreciated 78,812,169        2,102,737            743,827             80,171,079         

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 2,555,072          31,469                 -                    2,586,541           

Improvements 72,043               15,458                 -                    87,501                

Infrastructure 32,676,569        1,978,401            408,936             34,246,034         

Machinery and equipment 721,701             87,123                 1,980                 806,844              

Total accumulated depreciation 36,025,385        2,112,451            410,916             37,726,920         

Total capital assets,

being depreciated, net 42,786,784        (9,714)                 332,911             42,444,159         

Business-type activities capital

assets, net 45,299,081$      1,750,673            1,440,453          45,609,301         

84



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Capital assets - continued

Governmental activities:
General government 463,221$        
Public safety 86,507            
Public works 3,530              
Highways and public improvements 156,760          
Community services 465,984          
Internal service fund 229,223          

Total depreciation expense-
governmental activities 1,405,225       

Business-type activities:
Water 884,463          
Sewer 563,498          
Storm sewer 664,490          

Total depreciation expense -
business-type activities 2,112,451       

Total depreciation expense 3,517,676$     

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

This section intentionally left blank.

85



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Discretely presented component unit - North Davis Fire District

Business-type Activities: Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 200,110$           -                      -                    200,110              

Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 200,110             -                      -                    200,110              

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 3,006,948          -                      -                    3,006,948           

Machinery and equipment 2,086,886          187,824               50,000               2,224,710           

Total capital assets being depreciated 5,093,834          187,824               50,000               5,231,658           

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 363,219             75,174                 -                    438,393              

Machinery and equipment 1,232,985          277,840               50,000               1,460,825           

Total accumulated depreciation 1,596,204          353,014               50,000               1,899,218           

Total capital assets,

being depreciated, net 3,497,630          (165,190)             -                    3,332,440           

Business-type activities capital

assets, net 3,697,740$        (165,190)             -                    3,532,550           

This section intentionally left blank.

86



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers

Due from Due to
Fund Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund -$              30,477            
Community Development
    & Renewal Agency -                412,585          
Capital Projects 1,222,162     -                  
G.O. Bond Fund 89,858          -                 
Public Utility Administration -                757,766          
Water Utility -                -                 
Sewer Utility 128,642        -                 
Internal Service Fund - Fleet -                212,594          
Internal Service Fund - Risk 29,443          -                 
Nonmajor Governmental -                56,683            

1,470,105$   1,470,105       

Loans Loans
Receivable Payable

Fund Other Funds Other Funds

Community Development
    & Renewal Agency -$              1,015,167       
Public Utility Administration 1,015,167     -                 

1,015,167$   1,015,167       

Interfund transfers:

General G.O. Capital Non-Major Total
Transfers out: Fund Bond Fund Projects Governmental Transfers out
General Fund -$              -              1,030,057     -               1,030,057     
CDRA Fund 1,056,238     -              -               -               1,056,238     
Enterprise funds 167,635        392,193      -               -               559,828        

Total 1,226,656$   392,193      1,030,057     -               2,648,906     

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Interfund receivables and payables are created when expenditures are paid by one fund on behalf of
another.  In addition, allocations of expenditures between funds are recorded as due to/from until paid. 

Transfer in

During the year, transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to
the debt service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due and 2) move general
fund resources to provide an annual subsidy to the capital projects fund.

87



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Leases commitments

Operating Leases

Long-term debt

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities:

Bonds payable

General obligation

   bonds 7,160,000$   -                (770,000)        6,390,000     800,000         
General obligation

   bonds - premium 125,396        -                (17,914)          107,482        -                 
Revenue bonds 13,580,000   -                (910,000)        12,670,000   785,000         
Revenue bonds

   - discount (16,405)         -                1,093              (15,312)         -                 
Revenue bonds

   - premium 27,442          -                (5,486)            21,956          -                 

Total bonds payable 20,876,433   -                (1,702,307)     19,174,126   1,585,000      

Compensated absences 445,658        215,940        (249,280)        412,318        230,631         
Governmental activity

long-term liabilities 21,322,091$ 215,940        (1,951,587)     19,586,444   1,815,631      

Business-type activities:

Bonds payable

Revenue bonds 2,000,000$   -                (255,000)        1,745,000     265,000         
Revenue bonds

   - premium 12,132 -                (2,023)            10,109 -                 
Compensated absences 42,117          42,050          (42,662)          41,505          14,527           

Business-type activities:

long-term liabilities 2,054,249$   42,050          (299,685)        1,796,614     279,527         

The governmental activities compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

The City has entered into various operating leases with local individuals and businesses for the use of
property held for redevelopment. These leases are month to month and are cancelable at any time by
either party.  For the year ended June 30, 2014 lease revenue amounted to $72,697.

88



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Long-term debt - continued

General obligation issues at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

Original Amount
Interest Rate 

Range
Final Maturity 

Date

Current 
Outstanding 

Balance

10,105,000$      3.0% - 5.0% 2021 6,390,000           

Governmental activities 6,390,000$         

Tax revenue issues at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

Original Amount
Interest Rate 

Range
Final Maturity 

Date

Current 
Outstanding 

Balance

Sales tax revenue bonds

14,650,000$      2.0% - 5.0% 2028 1,710,000           

9,700,000$        3.625% - 4.150% 2028 9,440,000           

2,210,000$        1.5% - 3.25% 2019 1,520,000           

CRDA tax Increment Bonds

1,399,000$        2.55% - 4.30% 2014 -                     

Water revenue bonds

3,330,000$        4.00% 2020 1,745,000           

14,415,000$       

Governmental activities 12,670,000$       

Business-type activities 1,745,000           

14,415,000$       

2004

2007

2010

2005

2003

2006

Refunding bonds for series 2009 
sales tax bonds.

Refunding bonds for series 2000 
tax increment bonds.

Series Purpose

Series Purpose

Refunding bonds for series 1998 
used to finance the acquisition and 
construction of major capital 
facilities

Finance the acquisition and 
construction of major capital 
facilities.

Refunding bonds for partial 
refunding of series 2003 bonds.

To finance the costs of acquiring or 
constructing such projects as: 
aquatic center, park improvements, 
overpass repairs, water and sewer 
improvements

89



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Long-term debt - continued

Years 

Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

800,000$           293,025             785,000             484,600               265,000             69,800                

830,000             259,025             810,000             457,226               275,000             59,200                

870,000             223,750             845,000             428,079               285,000             48,200                

900,000             180,250             875,000             396,407               295,000             36,800                

950,000             139,750             915,000             370,213               305,000             25,000                

2,040,000          149,000             3,940,000          1,319,107            320,000             12,800                

-                    -                    450,000             481,137               -                    -                     

Total 6,390,000$        1,244,800          8,620,000          3,936,769            1,745,000          251,800              

Advance and current refunding

General Obligation Sales Tax Revenue Water Revenue 

2015

2018

In 2010, the government issued $2,210,000 of tax increment revenue refunding bonds to provide
resources to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of $2,223,000 on tax increment revenue bonds. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the
governmental activities column of the statement of net position. This advance refunding originally
reduced total debt service payments over 9 years by $265,212. The transaction resulted in an economic
gain of $198,828. The outstanding principal balance of the defeased bond as of June 30, 2014 was
$1,444,000.

2025-2029

In 2006, the government issued $9,700,000 of tax increment revenue refunding bonds to provide
resources to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of $8,820,000 on tax increment revenue bonds. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the
governmental activities column of the statement of net position. This advance refunding originally
reduced total debt service payments over 21 years by $886,817. The transaction resulted in an economic
gain of $328,167. The outstanding principal balance of the defeased bond as of June 30, 2014 was
$8,820,000.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

In April 2005, the City issued $10,105,000 in general obligation bonds to partially refund previous
general obligation bonds with an outstanding balance of $12,090,000. The City has invested the
proceeds in State and Local Government Securities (SLGS's) such that $9,790,000 of the previous bond
balance was refunded. The refunding of the $9,790,000 is considered an in-substance defeasance and
the liability has been removed from the governmental activities column of the statement of net position.
This advance refunding originally reduced total debt service payments over 16 years by $425,125. The
transaction resulted in an economic gain of $308,423. The outstanding principal balance of the defeased
bond as of June 30, 2014 was $6,455,000.

2016

2017

2019

2020-2024

90



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Advance and current refunding - continued

Discretely presented component unit - North Davis Fire District

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Revenue bonds 2,543,000$   -                (143,000)        2,400,000     150,000         
Capital leases 545,209        -                (53,689)          491,520        55,294           
Compensated absences 100,273        44,547          -                 144,820        -                 

Total component unit

long-term liabilities 3,188,482$   44,547        (196,689)      3,036,340   205,294        

In 2004, the government issued $1,399,000 of tax increment revenue refunding bonds to provide
resources to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of $1,187,000 on tax increment revenue bonds. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the
governmental activities column of the statement of net position. This advance refunding originally
reduced total debt service payments over 10 years by $351,950. The transaction resulted in an economic
gain of $112,118. The outstanding principal balance of the defeased bond as of June 30, 2014 was
$515,000.

Operating leases are leases for which the District will not gain title to the property being leased.
Therefore, the related assets and liabilities are not recorded on the financial statements. The District
has no operating leases at June 30, 2014.

The District purchased an aerial fire truck during the year, financed by a capital lease in the principal
amount of $600,000. Leases that in substance are purchases are reported as capital lease obligations.
In the government-wide statements, assets and liabilities resulting from capital leases are recorded at
the inception of the lease at either the lower of fair value or the present value of the future minimum
lease payments. The principal portion of lease payments reduces the liability and the interest portion
is expensed. In government fund statements, both the principal and interest portions of capital lease
payments are recorded as expenditures. The first principal and interest payment of $69,991 was
made on September 14, 2012.

91



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - continued

Discretely presented component unit - North Davis Fire District - continued

Year Ending Governmental
 June 30 Activities
2014 69,991$          
2015 69,991            
2016 69,991            
2017 69,991            
2018 69,991            
Thereafter 209,969          

Total minimum lease payments 559,924          
Less: amount representing interest (68,404)          

Present value of minimum lease payments 491,520$       

Revenue Bonds

Year Ending
 June 30 Principal Interest

2015 150,000$      81,120            
2016 155,000        76,050            
2017 160,000        70,811            
2018 165,000        65,403            
2019 170,000        59,826            
2020-2024 950,000        208,546          
2025-2027 650,000        44,447            

Total 2,400,000$  606,203        

In February of 2013, the District amended the terms of the bonds at a lower 3.38% interest rate adding
$18,000 in Bond Issuance costs to the bond payable. The transaction resulted in future savings on
debt service payments of $252,192 over the remaining 14 years of bonds. The District has pledged
future revenues to repay these bonds. 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as
of June 30, 2014, were as follows:

The District issued $3,100,000 in Revenue Bonds on January 9, 2008 with an interest rate of 4.63%.
Bond proceeds were used to fund the construction of the new fire station in West Point City which
was completed in March, 2008.  

92



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 5 - Other Information

Risk management

Retirement plans

Plan description

Funding policy

Tier 1 Public Safety Employees' Contributory Retirement System
Tier 1 Public Safety Employees' Noncontributory Retirement 

Tier 2 Public Safety Employees' Contributory Retirement System

The City contributes to the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
(the Systems) administered by the Utah Retirement Systems (the URS).

Tier 2 Public Employees' Contributory Retirement System

Tier 1 Public Employees' Noncontributory Retirement System

The 2014 contribution rates and employer contributions required and paid (in dollars for the years
ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 are outlined below:

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the Utah Code
Annotated 1953 as amended. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the
administration of the Utah Retirement Systems and Plans under the direction of the Utah State
Retirement Board (the Board) whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems issue a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement System, Local Governmental
Noncontributory Retirement System, and Public Safety Retirement System for employers with Social
Security coverage. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing the Utah Retirement Systems, 540
East 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 84102 or by calling 1-800-365-8772.

The contribution requirements of the Systems are authorized by statute and specified by the Utah State
Retirement Board. The contribution rates are actuarially determined rates. Plan members in the Tier 1
Public Employees' Contributory Retirement System are required to contribute a percentage of their
annual covered salary and the City is required to contribute a percentage of the employee's annual
covered salary (currently the City pays both the employee and employer rate.) The City is required to
contribute a percentage of salary for members in the noncontributory systems; currently no
contribution is required of the employee.

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial
insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the
past three years.

93



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 5 - Other Information - continued

Retirement plans - continued

Employee

Contribution City's

Paid by City Contribution 2014 2013 2012

Tier 1 Retirement Systems

Public Employees 

Noncontributory n/a 17.29% 508,305$        505,433$      463,956$       
Public Safety 

Noncontributory n/a 32.14% 449,220$        431,262$      406,345$       
Tier 2 Retirement Systems

Public Employees 

Contributory n/a 13.99% 36,111$          22,526$        9,811$           
Public Safety 

Contributory n/a 20.85% 5,585$            1,543$          3,365$           

Deferred Compensation Plan

Defined Contribution Plan

The 401(k) plan provided by International City Management Association (ICMA) is a multiple-
employer defined contribution plan. All employees of the City who participate in the Utah Retirement
System contributory or noncontributory plan are eligible to participate in the plan. Employees are
immediately 100 percent vested in their contributions to the plan. Employee contributions to the
401(k) plan and the Deferred Compensation Plan are voluntary. Employer contributions are also
voluntary and are determined by the City Council and are intended to standardize a minimum
retirement contribution of 13% for all full-time employees participating in the Utah Retirement
System. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the
Clearfield City Council. The City's contributions to the 401(k) plan were $59,717 for the year ended
June 30, 2014. 

Percent of Covered Payroll

Employer Contributions

The City offers its employees a Deferred Compensation Plan (the Plan) in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion
of their salary until future years. The payment of deferred compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death, or emergency. The City's contributions to the 457 Deferred
Compensation Plan were $50,390 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

The City's contributions in dollars to each of the systems for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and
2012 were equal to the required contributions for each year.

94



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 5 - Other Information - continued

Commitments and Contingencies

Fund
Capital 

Purchases
Capital 

Improvements Other Total
General Fund 21,000$        1,237,420       82,322          1,340,742      
Community Development

and Renewal Fund -                150,000          -                150,000         
Capital Projects Fund -                685,201          -                685,201         
Water Fund -                1,100,605       -                1,100,605      
Sewer Fund -                671,807          -                671,807         
Storm Sewer Fund -                314,531          -                314,531         

21,000$       4,159,564     82,322         4,262,886     

Risk management

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. For certain of these cases, where it is probable that a claim
will be paid, the City has determined that such claims would be covered under the City's insurance
policy. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City
Attorney's Office, the resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the
financial condition of the City.

The City has commitments related to capital improvements, capital purchases, and other contractual
agreements at June 30, 2014, for the following:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial
insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the
past three years.

95



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 5 - Other Information - continued

Community Development & Renewal Agency

Area #6 222,726$        
Area #7 294,315
Area #8 170,534
Area #9 297,197
Area #10 330,351
EDA 1,727,733

  Total Increment Money 3,042,856$     

Interfund loan with enterprise administration fund 1,015,167$     
Advances from and amounts due to 
  other funds 412,585

1,427,752$     

During the year, the CDRA expended monies in the categories below as follows:

Administration Costs 141,059$        
Debt repayment and bond issuance costs 167,812          

308,871$        

Tax increment monies were generated from the following project areas within the Community
Development & Renewal Agency:

Outstanding debt of the CDRA consists of the following:

96



Clearfield City Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2014

Note 5 - Other Information - continued

Conduit debt obligations

Balance at
Company June 30, 2014
Oakstone, L.C. 1997A and B 15,000,000$ 
Utah Stamping Company 2005 3,000,000     

Prior period adjustments

Subsequent events

On November 4, 2014 the City issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 in the
amount of $5,465,000. These bonds we issued in full payment of the General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2005.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 12, 2014, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.  

The City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities
for the acquisition and construction of residential low-income housing and the purchase of
manufacturing equipment. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely
from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership
of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issue. Neither the
City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.  As of June 30, 2014, the following bonds were outstanding:

The Oakstone bonds were refunded in September of 2008, resulting in a more favorable rate for the
borrower.

The City has implemented GASB 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Standards
require that costs of issuance no longer be amortized over the term of the debt, but are expensed in the
period incurred. As a result, the net position of the water fund has decreased by $34,948, and the net
position reported of the governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements has
decreased by $192,805.

The City determined that there was an error in the calculation of depreciation expense. This resulted
in a $291,073 decrease in the beginning net position of the Water Fund. A similar adjustment was
made to the Sewer Fund for $209,821.

97



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

98



Governmental Fund Descriptions
June 30, 2014

Clearfield City Corporation

Capital Projects Funds

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for the ongoing acquisition and replacement of major
capital assets and infrastructure improvements needed to maintain the operations of the City.
General government resources provide the primary source of funding with grants and other
government resources providing additional funding as available.

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than
those financed by proprietary and trust funds.

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to the accumulation of resources and payment of general obligation bond
principal and interest from governmental resources and special assessment bond principal and
interest from special assessment levies when the government is obligated in some manner for the
payment.

G.O. Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for principal and interest on the general obligation
bonds used to finance construction in the City.

Capital Projects Funds

Permanent Fund

Cemetery Perpetual Care Permanent Fund - This fund is used to account for principal trust
amounts received and related interest income. The interest portion of the trust is used to maintain
the City’s cemetery.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are legally restricted to the
extent that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs.

Parks Fund - This fund is used to account for the acquisition and development of City parks.
Federal and State grant revenues along with general governmental resources provide funding for
these projects.

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than
those financed by proprietary and trust funds.

99



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Interest -$              -                 1,658 1,658            

Expenditures
Capital outlay 861,995 1,861,658 1,018,145 843,513        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (861,995)       (1,861,658)     (1,016,487)   845,171        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 861,995 876,870 1,030,057 153,187        

  Total other financing 
    sources (uses) 861,995         876,870         1,030,057 153,187

Net change in fund balances -                (984,788)        13,570         998,358        

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,161,037      1,161,037      1,161,037    -               

Fund balances, end of year 1,161,037$    176,249         1,174,607    998,358        

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

100



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues

Taxes 716,000$   716,000 793,113 77,113        

  Total revenues 716,000     716,000     793,113      77,113        

Expenditures
Bond issue costs 500 500 500 -             
Principal retirement 770,000     770,000     770,000 -             
Interest and fiscal charges 325,750 325,750 325,750      -             

  Total expenditures 1,096,250  1,096,250  1,096,250 -             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (380,250)    (380,250)    (303,137)    77,113        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 380,250 380,250 392,193 11,943        

Total other financing 
     sources (uses) 380,250     380,250     392,193      11,943        

Net change in fund balances -             -             89,056        89,056        

Fund balances, beginning of year 802 802            802 -             

Fund balances, end of year 802$         802          89,858      89,056       

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - G.O. Bond
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

101



Capital Permanent
Projects Fund

Total
Cemetery Nonmajor
Perpetual Governmental

Parks Care Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -$                  20,341               20,341               
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 152,532 196,209             348,741             

     Total assets 152,532          216,550           369,082             

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Due to other funds 36,342              20,341               56,683               

   Total liabilities 36,342              20,341               56,683               

Fund balances
Restricted for:
   Capital projects 152,532            -                    152,532             
   Cemetery perpetual care -                    196,209             196,209             
Unassigned, reported in:

Capital projects funds (36,342)             -                    (36,342)             

Total fund balances 116,190            196,209             312,399             

Total liabilities and fund balances 152,532$         216,550           369,082             

Clearfield City Corporation
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

102



Capital  Permanent
Projects Fund Total

Cemetery Nonmajor
Perpetual Governmental

Revenues Parks Care Fund
Intergovernmental -$              7,185 7,185              
Impact fees 61,254 -                  61,254            
Interest 573 958 1,531              

   Total 61,827          8,143              69,970            

Expenditures
General government 50,000 -                  50,000            

   Total expenditures 50,000          -                  50,000            

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over

   (under) expenditures 11,827          8,143              19,970            

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers (out) -                (2,783)             (2,783)             

Total other financing sources (uses) -                (2,783)             (2,783)             

Net change in fund balances 11,827          5,360              17,187            

Fund balances, beginning
of year 104,363 190,849 295,212          

Fund balances, end
of year 116,190$     196,209        312,399          

Clearfield City Corporation
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

103



Fiduciary Fund

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deductions June 30, 2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 63,691$         59,000           (72,000)       50,691           

Total assets 63,691$        59,000         (72,000)     50,691          

Liabilities

Due to developers 63,691$         59,000           (72,000)       50,691           

Total liabilities 63,691$         59,000           (72,000)       50,691           

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Clearfield City Corporation

104



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Interest 1,384$       1,384         573 (811)             
Impact fees 23,031       23,031       61,254 38,223          

24,415       24,415       61,827        37,412          

Expenditures
General government -             -             50,000        (50,000)        

Excess of revenue over
expenditures 24,415       24,415       11,827        (12,588)        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) -             -             -              -               

Total other financing
sources (uses) -             -             -              -               

Net change in fund balances 24,415       24,415       11,827        (12,588)        

Fund balances, beginning of year 104,363     104,363     104,363      -               

Fund balances, end of year 128,778$  128,778   116,190    (12,588)       

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Parks Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

105



Variance
Actual With

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues

Interest 1,000$       1,000       958            (42)                  
Intergovernmental 9,000         9,000       7,185         (1,815)             

Total revenues 10,000       10,000     8,143         (1,857)             

Expenditures
General government 10,000 12,783 -            12,783            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures -             (2,783)      8,143         10,926            

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers (out) -             -           (2,783)       (2,783)             
Total other financing

sources (uses) -             -           (2,783)       (2,783)             

Net change in fund balances -             (2,783)      5,360         8,143              

Fund balances, beginning of year 190,849     190,849   190,849     -                  

Fund balances, end of year 190,849$  188,066 196,209   8,143             

Budgeted Amounts

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

106



Internal Fund Descriptions
June 30, 2014

Clearfield City Corporation

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for services provided to other departments or agencies of
the government, or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fleet Management Fund – to account for the government’s transportation fleet including fleet
acquisition and disposal, preventative maintenance, repairs, and the rental of motor vehicles to
other departments and related costs.

Risk Management Fund – to account for the central management and billing of workers’
compensation, general liability, and property damage.

107



Fleet Risk
Management Management Total

Assets
Current assets

Accounts receivable (net) 3,050$                    -                   3,050                   
Due from other funds -                         29,443             29,443                 
Prepaid items -                         25,250 25,250                 
    Total current assets 3,050                     54,693             57,743                 

Noncurrent assets
Land, equipment, buildings 
    and improvements 3,264,369 -                   3,264,369            
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,086,802)             -                   (2,086,802)           
   Total noncurrent assets 1,177,567              -                   1,177,567            

   Total assets 1,180,617$              54,693               1,235,310             

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and 
    accrued liabilities 7,949$                    -                   7,949                   
Due to other funds 212,594 -                   212,594               
   Total current liabilities 220,543                 -                   220,543               

      Total liabilities 220,543                 -                   220,543               
Net position
   Net investment in capital assets 1,177,567              -                   1,177,567            
   Unrestricted (217,493)                54,693 (162,800)             
      Total net position 960,074                 54,693             1,014,767            
Total liabilities and net position 1,180,617$             54,693 1,235,310            

Clearfield City Corporation
Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2014

Internal Service Funds

108



Fleet Risk
Management Management Total

Operating Revenues
Charges for services 788,322$              296,275 1,084,597          
Miscellaneous 12,400 4,143 16,543               

Total operating
         revenues 800,722               300,418      1,101,140          
Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 154,413 -             154,413             
Maintenance
   supplies and contracts 418,169 254,508 672,677             
Depreciation and 
   amortization 229,223               -             229,223             

      Total operating
        expenses 801,805               254,508      1,056,313          

       Net operating income (1,083)                   45,910          44,827               

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
   Gain/(loss) on disposal
     of capital assets 63,219 -             63,219               
      Total nonoperating 
         revenues (expenses) 63,219                 -             63,219               

       Change in net position 62,136                 45,910        108,046             
   Total net position 
       - beginning 897,938 8,783          906,721             

   Total net position - ending 960,074$               54,693          1,014,767          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Internal Service Funds

Clearfield City Corporation
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in

Net Position - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

109



Fleet Risk
Management Management Total

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 802,353$      300,418       1,102,771   
Payments to suppliers (438,636)      (77,330)        (515,966)     
Payments to employees (154,413)      -                (154,413)     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 209,304       223,088       432,392      
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Advances (to) from other funds (1,159)          (223,088)      (224,247)     
Net cash provided (used) by
   noncapital financing activities (1,159)          (223,088)      (224,247)     

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Purchases of capital assets (246,308)      -                (246,308)     
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 38,163         -                38,163        

Net cash provided (used) by capital
   and related financing activities (208,145)      -                (208,145)     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
  cash equivalents -               -                -              
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning -               -                -              

Cash and cash equivalents - ending -$               -                 -               

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (1,083)$          45,910           44,827         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
   net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 229,223         -                 229,223       
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable 1,631             -                 1,631           
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid items -                 178,153         178,153       
Increase /(decrease) in accounts payable (20,467)          (975)               (21,442)        

Total adjustments 210,387         177,178         387,565       

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 209,304$       223,088         432,392       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Clearfield City Corporation
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Internal Service Funds

110



CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE

OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

111



Totals
June 30, 2014

General Capital Assets
Land 4,943,221$      
Water rights 25,200             
Buildings 25,100,511      
Improvements 1,952,707        
Machinery and equipment 7,257,998        
Infrastructure 33,834,833      
Construction in progress 595,212           

     Total general capital assets 73,709,682      

Investment in General Capital Assets by Source
General fund 20,772,289      
Capital projects funds 48,721,681      
Grants 4,215,712        

     Total investment in general capital assets 73,709,682$    

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of General Capital Assets - By Source

June 30, 2014

112



Water Machinery and Infra- Construction
Land Rights Buildings Improvements Equipment structure In Progress Totals

Function and activity
General government

Executive -$             -     11,969,989 -           127,436      -            -            12,097,425 
Justice court -               -     -             1,988        31,335       -            -            33,323        
Information technology -               -     -             -           1,735,882   -            -            1,735,882   
Finance and administration -               -     -             2,460        74,709       -            -            77,169        
Building -               -     -             201,292    187,419      -            -            388,711      
Other 2,439,736    25,200 -             -           -             -            -            2,464,936   
     Total general government 2,439,736    25,200 11,969,989 205,740    2,156,781   -            -            16,797,446 

Community development
Administration -               -     -             631           45,016       -            -            45,647        

Public safety
Police -               -     -             -           563,841      -            9,822        573,663      
Dispatch -               -     -             45,942      248,998      -            -            294,940      
     Total public safety -               -     -             45,942      812,839      -            9,822        868,603      

Highways and public improvements
Shops -               -     74,895       -           159,285      -            -            234,180      
Streets -               -     -             229,158    93,873       33,309,348 362,152    33,994,531 
      Total highways and 
          public improvements -               -     74,895       229,158    253,158      33,309,348 362,152    34,228,711 

Community services
Parks 2,503,485    -     818,510     1,471,236 437,019      525,485    147,536    5,903,271   
Aquatic center -               -     12,237,117 -           211,750      -            63,312      12,512,179 
Recreation -               -     -             -           77,066       -            12,390      89,456        
       Total community services 2,503,485    -     13,055,627 1,471,236 725,835      525,485    223,238    18,504,906 

Internal service fund - fleet -               -     -             -           3,264,369   -            -            3,264,369   
Total general capital assets 4,943,221$  25,200 25,100,511 1,952,707 7,257,998   33,834,833 595,212    73,709,682 

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of General Capital Assets - By Function and Activity

June 30, 2014

113



General Capital General Capital
Assets Assets

June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014
Function and Activity
General government

Executive 12,074,425$     23,000          -              12,097,425    
Justice court 33,323              -                -              33,323           
Information technology 1,279,927         475,611        19,656        1,735,882      
Finance and administration 78,258              -                1,089          77,169           
Buildings 314,977            73,734          -              388,711         
Other 2,464,936         -                -              2,464,936      

     Total general government 16,245,846       572,345        20,745        16,797,446    

Community development
Administration 47,382             -              1,735        45,647          

Public safety
Police 946,376            74,463          447,176      573,663         
Dispatch 294,940            -                -              294,940         

     Total public safety 1,241,316         74,463          447,176      868,603         

Highways and public improvements
Maintenance 8,001                -                8,001          -                 
Shops 246,056            -                11,876        234,180         
Streets 33,597,008       761,644        364,121      33,994,531    
      Total highways and 
           public improvements 33,851,065       761,644        383,998      34,228,711    

Community services
Parks 5,947,725         50,930          95,384        5,903,271      
Aquatic center 12,443,934       68,787          542             12,512,179    
Maintenance 931                   -                931             -                 
Recreation 87,743              2,366            653             89,456           

       Total community service 18,480,333       122,083        97,510        18,504,906    

Internal service fund - fleet 3,178,134         321,683        235,448      3,264,369      

Total general capital assets 73,044,076$     1,852,218   1,186,612 73,709,682    

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Changes in General Capital Assets - By Function and Activity

June 30, 2014

114



STATISTICAL SECTION

115



Statistical Section
June 30, 2014

Table 1-6

Table 7-10

Table 11-15

Table 16-17

Operating Information
Table 18-20

Clearfield City Corporation

This part of Clearfield City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Financial Trends

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the government's financial activities take place.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and
the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's
current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

116



This page left blank intentionally

117



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental activities
  Net investment in 

   capital assets 9,878,324$      9,796,336      9,792,559    11,226,398   11,229,615   10,684,837    12,506,584    13,775,641    12,312,930    13,743,040    
Restricted 573,713          4,510,594      5,406,581    2,368,930     3,157,193     5,199,538     4,958,333     3,015,238     3,693,214     3,151,603     
Unrestricted 5,496,229        3,348,510      1,651,639    2,146,117     1,952,266     896,019        1,730,456     5,697,952     7,698,069     9,997,648     

Total governmental 
  activities net position 15,948,266      17,655,440    16,850,779  15,741,445   16,339,074   16,780,394    19,195,373    22,488,831    23,704,213    26,892,291    

Business-type activities
Net investment in 
   capital assets 8,323,285        8,685,553      37,957,402  40,872,119   40,459,590   39,209,218    38,596,646    42,536,944    43,787,842    43,854,192    
Restricted 98,497            113,208         3,386,643    5,728,025     5,236,082     3,078,859     2,616,983     1,712,629     1,982,181     1,856,320     
Unrestricted 7,418,015        6,935,467      8,034,733    5,980,543     6,912,041     10,169,423    10,980,894    11,349,674    11,866,408    10,970,432    

Total business-type 
  activities net position 15,839,797      15,734,228    49,378,778  52,580,687   52,607,713   52,457,500    52,194,523    55,599,247    57,636,431    56,680,944    

Primary government
Net investment in 
   capital assets 18,201,609      18,481,889    47,749,961  52,098,517   51,689,205   49,894,055    51,103,230    56,312,585    56,100,772    57,597,232    
Restricted 672,210          4,623,802      8,793,224    8,096,955     8,393,275     8,278,397     7,575,316     4,727,867     5,675,395     5,007,923     
Unrestricted 12,914,244      10,283,977    9,686,372    8,126,660     8,864,307     11,065,442    12,711,350    17,047,626    19,564,477    20,968,080    

Total primary government 
   net position 31,788,063$    33,389,668    66,229,557  68,322,132   68,946,787   69,237,894    71,389,896    78,088,078    81,340,644    83,573,235    

Fiscal Years

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 1 - Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

118



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government 4,099,536$   4,989,256    4,682,965    4,720,553     4,665,323    4,944,458      4,363,191      3,771,942    4,408,533    4,419,080    
Public safety 4,788,486     4,707,841    3,440,153    3,646,990     3,640,464    3,789,561      4,038,550      3,893,612    4,298,248    4,258,275    
Highways and public 

  improvements 829,769        1,013,820    1,588,695    1,353,026     4,004,225    1,363,122      1,204,022      1,407,454    579,064       583,792       
Debt service 414,182        -              -               -               -               -                -                -               -               -               
Community services 1,801,677     2,542,861    2,926,392    3,201,188     3,362,671    3,381,382      3,518,420      3,883,509    3,755,723    4,196,122    
Community development 614,422        340,805       764,399       769,853        843,600       782,623         1,018,528      514,315       534,675       460,111       
Capital outlay -                -              -               -               -               -                -                -               -               -               
Interest on long-term debt 1,346,825     1,335,936    1,769,555    1,043,794     1,216,615    1,083,758      1,066,514      974,740       912,002       828,074       

   Total governmental activities 13,894,897   14,930,519  15,172,159  14,735,404   17,732,898  15,344,904    15,209,225    14,445,572  14,488,245  14,745,454  

Business-type activities:

Administration -                -              138,879       265,041        288,567       258,512         280,137         255,994       249,164       258,759       
Water utility 1,906,579     1,811,303    2,659,152    3,047,802     3,203,892    3,022,477      3,270,047      3,369,811    3,079,128    3,325,788    
Sewer utility 1,500,568     1,478,375    1,885,883    1,953,459     1,982,423    2,229,146      2,429,889      2,404,677    2,366,004    3,034,977    
Waste collection 1,144,860     1,081,481    981,352       1,010,683     994,856       1,068,563      1,056,648      1,096,444    1,047,633    1,083,652    
Storm drain 174,667        242,043       788,642       757,544        774,457       810,427         917,836         900,220       865,544       980,594       
Ambulance service 512,011        -              -               -               -               -                -                -               -               -               

   Total business-type activities 5,238,685     4,613,202    6,453,908    7,034,529     7,244,195    7,389,125      7,954,557      8,027,146    7,607,473    8,683,770    

Total primary government 19,133,582$ 19,543,721  21,626,067  21,769,933   24,977,093  22,734,029    23,163,782    22,472,718  22,095,718  23,429,224  

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 2 - Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

119



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 2 - Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Program Revenues

Governmental activities:

  Charges for services

General government 1,385,575$   1,076,566    1,290,713    1,424,031     1,682,490    1,506,417      1,533,299      1,521,045    1,293,996    1,185,291    
Public safety 1,470,906     1,661,720    1,574,291    1,526,867     1,509,713    1,432,264      1,297,907      1,349,386    1,282,823    1,219,731    
Highways and public 

 improvements 523,148        479,263       -               45,209          44,282         41,797           17,060           22,178         32,414         61,254         
Community services 585,698        1,373,500    1,703,051    1,716,925     1,748,047    1,723,027      1,852,665      1,788,547    1,690,649    1,758,678    
Community development -                -              -               -               -               -                -                -               -               -               

  Operating grants and contributions 1,439,909     1,062,939    1,736,182    1,011,690     1,016,117    966,684         887,377         924,175       883,706       899,337       
  Capital grants and contributions -                -              -               -               617,100       268,198         1,259,993      293,872       345,019       304,303       

Total governmental activities 5,405,236     5,653,988    6,304,237    5,724,722     6,617,749    5,938,387      6,848,301      5,899,203    5,528,607    5,428,594    
Business-type activities:

  Charges for services

Administration -                -              84,146         116,991        119,159       140,935         145,197         156,956       156,063       149,946       
Water utility 2,471,975     2,607,700    2,743,116    2,889,292     2,941,440    2,869,716      3,047,459      3,297,870    3,456,368    3,459,034    
Sewer utility 1,839,477     1,891,575    1,888,952    1,881,440     1,934,614    2,101,417      2,156,850      2,267,037    2,493,762    2,757,461    
Waste collection 1,440,182     1,428,771    1,296,784    1,189,402     1,208,019    1,215,655      1,216,840      1,223,850    1,230,271    1,239,842    
Storm drain 451,020        449,679       509,834       584,695        758,345       779,766         800,316         830,130       863,469       894,103       
Ambulance service 492,820        -              -               -               -               -                -                -               -               -               
Impact fees -                -              -               205,459        362,931       473,965         177,061         266,464       288,422       280,838       

  Capital grants and contributions -                -              -               -               -               -                -                290,000       1,461,653    -               
   Total business-type activities 6,695,474     6,377,725    6,522,832    6,867,279     7,324,508    7,581,454      7,543,723      8,332,307    9,950,008    8,781,224    
Total primary government 12,100,710   12,031,713  12,827,069  12,592,001   13,942,257  13,519,841    14,392,024    14,231,510  15,478,615  14,209,818  
Net (expense) / revenue

Governmental activities (8,489,661)    (9,276,531)  (8,867,922)   (9,010,682)   (11,115,149) (9,406,517)    (8,360,924)    (8,546,369)   (8,959,638)   (9,316,860)   
Business-type activities 1,456,789     1,764,523    68,924         (167,250)      80,313         192,329         (410,834)       305,161       2,342,535    97,454         

Total primary government (7,032,872)$  (7,512,008)  (8,798,998)   (9,177,932)   (11,034,836) (9,214,188)    (8,771,758)    (8,241,208)   (6,617,103)   (9,219,406)   

120



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 2 - Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Revenue and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental activities:

   Taxes

Property taxes 4,489,184$   3,326,539    2,778,450    3,454,703     3,760,325    3,582,694      3,549,977      4,976,559    5,249,766    5,200,014    
General sales and use tax 2,745,620     3,080,936    3,612,893    3,610,112     3,225,351    2,922,375      3,128,336      3,404,944    3,511,629    3,648,705    
Franchise tax 891,121        898,676       946,761       910,973        903,058       879,213         833,116         896,961       892,791       888,626       
Energy use tax 1,752,874     2,001,987    1,841,854    1,981,196     1,958,311    1,965,037      2,155,374      2,160,778    2,273,564    2,361,797    
Transient room tax -                -              -               -               -               8,231             5,927             6,565           5,380           7,139           

  Interest earnings 307,660        308,299       363,275       386,571        130,172       54,125           51,381           62,548         77,621         99,266         
  Miscellaneous (149)              (298,386)     (38,793)        6,100            5,950           5,450             10,950           11,100         12,300         (67,631)        
  Proceeds from settlement -                -              -               -               1,350,000    -                775,000         240,000       -               -               
  Transfers (155,172)       1,665,654    180,104       (2,818,360)   379,611       430,712         506,530         80,372         439,081       559,827       
  Contribution of capital asset -                -              -               -               -               -                (240,688)       -               -               -               

Total governmental activities 10,031,138   10,983,705  9,684,544    7,531,295     11,712,778  9,847,837      10,775,903    11,839,827  12,462,132  12,697,743  
Business-type activities:

  Interest earnings 176,429        315,367       443,179       556,539        296,874       86,970           60,988           80,165         84,951         41,848         
  Miscellaneous 12,008          (519,806)     28,754         (5,740)          29,452         1,200             352,711         8,080           48,779         880              
  Transfers 155,172        (1,665,654)  (180,104)      2,818,360     (379,611)      (430,712)       (506,530)       (80,372)        (439,081)      (559,827)      
  Contribution of capital asset -                -              -               -               -               -                240,688         3,091,690    -               -               

Total business-type activities 343,609        (1,870,093)  291,829       3,369,159     (53,285)        (342,542)       147,857         3,099,563    (305,351)      (517,099)      
Total primary government 10,374,747$ 9,113,612    9,976,373    10,900,454   11,659,493  9,505,295      10,923,760    14,939,390  12,156,781  12,180,644  

Change in Net Position

Governmental activities 1,541,477$   1,707,174    816,622       (1,479,387)   597,629       441,320         2,414,979      3,293,458    3,502,494    3,380,883    
Business-type activities 1,800,398     (105,570)     360,753       3,201,909     27,028         (150,213)       (262,977)       3,404,724    2,037,184    (419,645)      

Total primary government 3,341,875$   1,601,604    1,177,375    1,722,522     624,657       291,107         2,152,002      6,698,182    5,539,678    2,961,238    

121



Last Ten Fiscal Years

General General Energy  
Fiscal Property CDRA Tax Debt Service Sales and Sales &  Franchise Total Tax  
  Year   Tax   Increment Property Tax  Use Tax Use Tax     Tax    Revenue 

2005 2,325,678$  1,320,874         593,160          2,745,620       1,752,874      891,121        9,629,327$       
2006 1,336,573    1,354,807         635,159          3,080,936       2,001,987      898,676        9,308,138         
2007 986,513       1,300,310         491,627          3,612,893       1,841,854      946,761        9,179,958         
2008 1,293,655    1,399,669         761,379          3,610,112       1,981,196      910,973        9,956,984         
2009 1,386,700    1,592,494         781,131          3,225,351       1,958,311      903,058        9,847,045         
2010 1,336,861    1,526,772         719,061          2,922,375       1,965,037      879,213        9,349,319         
2011 1,064,353    1,803,431         682,193          3,128,336       2,155,374      833,116        9,666,803         
2012 1,519,514    2,367,203         1,089,842       3,404,944       2,160,778      896,961        11,439,242       
2013 1,424,107    3,098,449         727,210          3,511,629       2,273,564      892,791        11,927,750       
2014 1,364,045    3,042,856         793,113          3,648,705       2,361,797      888,626        12,099,142       

(1)  Reclassification of some franchise taxes to energy use taxes per
        state statute.

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 3 - Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by Source (1)

(accrual basis of accounting)

122



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General fund
Nonspendable 759$             18,755        313,874       51,611           80,885        287,123      47,220        61,907        80,285        150,117        

  Restricted -               -             370,053       1,310,699      1,297,551   1,531,770   1,658,586   1,574,563   1,490,318   1,428,739     
Committed -               -             -               -                -             899,687      595,334      514,529      1,232,272   1,340,742     
Assigned -               -             -               -                -             40,787        36,795        56,779        98,408        -                
Unassigned 1,933,088     1,656,701   1,592,608    2,450,054      2,931,551   1,572,607   2,309,607   4,172,083   3,798,077   3,802,746     

Total general fund 1,933,847     1,675,456   2,276,535    3,812,364      4,309,987   4,331,974   4,647,542   6,379,861   6,699,360   6,722,344     

All other governmental funds
Nonspendable 573,712        563,295      563,294       1,167,271      1,167,271   708,964      708,964      709,004      1,208,964   1,134,148     
Restricted for:

Debt service funds 15,613          52,315        399,947       402,925         393,285      386,768      385,647      140,597      -             89,858          
Capital projects funds 19,408          4,339,129   4,310,460    517,507         152,409      957,080      892,086      355,876      85,606        152,532        
Special revenue funds -               -             -               -                -             -             -             -             654,750      -                
Cemetery perpetual care 107,994        119,141      132,871       110,839         116,889      153,104      138,922      173,291      173,291      196,209        

Committed -               -             -               -                -             275,042      531,574      406,011      454,059      835,201        
Assigned, reported in:

Capital projects funds 5,299,746     1,412,262   1,414,219    819,219         918,798      146,036      181,775      156,645      1,178,595   489,406        
Special revenue funds 129,073        -             3,390           -                -             -             -             1,263,136   1,799,424   4,512,051     
Debt service funds -               -             -               801                801             -             -             -             -             -                
Cemetery perpetual care -               -             -               26,960           29,788        -             -             -             -             -                

Unassigned, reported in:
Capital projects funds -               -             -               -                -             -             -             -             -             (36,342)         
Special revenue funds -               (83,019)      -               (510,919)       (189,697)     -             -             -             -             -                

Total all other governmental funds 6,145,546$   6,403,123   6,824,181    2,534,603      2,589,544   2,626,994   2,838,968   3,204,560   5,554,689   7,373,063     

General fund balance unrestricted
% of total revenue for
current year 15.03% 11.94% 11.47% 17.79% 21.77% 19.08% 21.04% 32.78% 37.80% 37.70%

Note:  Information on committed and assigned fund balances not available prior to 2010 when the City implemented GASB Statement 54.

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 4 - Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

123



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
Taxes 9,754,063$   10,507,143    9,179,958   9,956,984  9,847,045  9,357,550   9,672,730 11,445,807 11,933,130 12,106,281
Rents and other services 819,835        577,727         873,375      994,127     1,276,766  1,080,221   1,154,622 1,148,197  890,085    799,995     
Intergovernmental 1,445,209     1,068,789      1,741,082   1,017,790  1,022,067  1,240,332   2,158,320 1,229,147  1,241,025 1,210,825  
Charges for services 1,448,606     2,332,049      2,661,630   2,652,473  2,648,675  2,626,047   2,688,744 2,651,439  2,557,761 2,626,777  
Impact fees 523,148        479,263         293,689      45,209       44,282       41,797        17,060      22,178       32,414      61,254       
Fines and forfeitures 1,035,736     1,140,610      1,092,308   1,042,473  1,009,685  940,385      824,050    836,329     777,396    700,060     
Interest 287,303        287,942         379,029      366,925     110,526     30,725        27,981      49,530       54,221      75,866       
Miscellaneous revenue 138,002        61,400           24,964        7,244         10,116       14,104        14,100      19,849       23,437      20,325       

   Total revenues 15,451,902   16,454,923    16,246,035 16,083,225 15,969,162 15,331,161 16,557,607 17,402,476 17,509,469 17,601,383
Expenditures
Current

General government 3,714,464     4,436,855      4,117,561   3,757,775  4,042,501  4,416,391   4,468,769 3,791,141  4,066,466 3,865,151  
Public safety 4,719,416     4,724,461      3,312,474   3,616,083  3,660,749  3,932,189   4,212,321 3,894,202  4,223,155 4,182,267  
Highways and public improv. 924,292        961,903         961,374      683,016     799,811     1,022,875   433,557    535,484     435,336    419,032     
Community services 1,788,078     2,372,712      2,558,125   2,877,875  3,005,011  2,964,755   3,157,436 3,418,717  3,435,059 3,735,613  
Community development 614,422        340,805         764,399      769,853     843,600     782,623      1,018,528 514,315     534,675    534,927     

Capital outlay 7,191,765     2,560,647      1,383,757   2,921,062  2,132,164  2,151,643   452,680    1,140,023  426,296    1,018,145  
Debt service

Principal retirement 1,647,009     1,629,104      1,413,854   1,440,866  1,442,039  1,677,281   2,513,348 1,757,000  1,618,000 1,680,000  
Interest and fiscal charges 1,496,126     1,252,059      1,691,335   1,241,303  1,219,625  1,071,084   1,057,949 978,676     914,058    853,556     
Cost of issuance 72,858          -                 192,554      32,500       -            99,910        -           -            -            -            
   Total expenditures 22,168,430   18,278,546    16,395,433 17,340,333 17,145,500 18,118,751 17,314,588 16,029,558 15,653,045 16,288,691

Excess (deficiency) revenues over
(under) expenditures (6,716,528)$  (1,823,623)     (149,398)$   (1,257,108) (1,176,338) (2,787,590) (756,981)  1,372,918  1,856,424 1,312,692  

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 5 - Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

124



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 5 - Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of bonds payable -$             150,000         -             1,300,000  -            2,223,000   -           -            -            -            
Issuance of refunding bonds 11,576,858   -                 9,700,000   -             -            2,210,000   -           -            -            -            
Payment to refunding 
    bonds escrows (11,542,000)  -                 (8,820,000) -             -            (2,223,000) -           -            -            -            
Premium on bond issuance 286,622        -                 (24,056)      -             -            33,794        -           -            -            -            
Issuance of capital lease -               -                 -             -             -            -            -           -            -            -            
Proceeds from sale 
    of capital assets 5,310            7,155             5,098          21,710       -            172,521      2,626        404,621     8,057        (31,161)     
Proceeds from settlement -               -                 -             -             1,350,000  -            775,000    240,000     -            -            
Transfers in 3,056,039     4,010,224      3,291,372   3,580,388  1,723,293  2,138,659   1,886,154 1,707,868  2,824,234 2,648,906  
Transfers (out) (3,211,210)    (2,344,570)     (3,111,268) (6,398,748) (1,344,390) (1,707,947) (1,379,257) (1,627,496) (2,385,153) (2,089,079)

Total other financing sources 171,619        1,822,809      1,041,146   (1,496,650) 1,728,903  2,847,027   1,284,523 724,993     447,138    528,666     

Net change in fund balances (6,544,909)    (814)               891,748      (2,753,758) 552,565     59,437        527,542    2,097,911  2,303,562 1,841,358  

Fund balances - beginning of year 14,624,302   8,079,393      8,208,976   9,100,724  6,346,966  6,899,531   6,958,968 7,486,510  9,950,487 12,254,049
Fund balances - end of year 8,079,393$   8,078,579      9,100,724   6,346,966  6,899,531  6,958,968   7,486,510 9,584,421  12,254,049 14,095,407

22.17% 18.83% 20.97% 18.62% 15.90% 17.60% 22.42% 18.63% 16.90% 16.40%
Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures

125



Last Ten Fiscal Years

General General Energy  
Fiscal Property CDRA Tax Debt Service Sales and Sales &  Franchise Total Tax  
  Year   Tax   Increment Property Tax  Use Tax Use Tax     Tax    Revenue

2005 2,450,414$        1,320,874         593,160          2,745,620       1,752,874      891,121          9,754,063$       
2006 2,535,578          1,354,807         635,159          3,080,936       2,001,987      898,676          10,507,143       
2007 986,513             1,300,310         491,627          3,612,893       1,841,854      946,761          9,179,958         
2008 1,293,655          1,399,669         761,379          3,610,112       1,981,196      910,973          9,956,984         
2009 1,386,700          1,592,494         781,131          3,225,351       1,958,311      903,058          9,847,045         
2010 1,336,861          1,526,772         719,061          2,922,375       1,965,037      879,213          9,349,319         
2011 1,064,353          1,803,431         682,193          3,128,336       2,155,374      833,116          9,666,803         
2012 1,519,514          2,367,203         1,089,842       3,404,944       2,160,778      896,961          11,439,242       
2013 1,424,107          3,098,449         727,210          3,511,629       2,273,564      892,791          11,927,750       
2014 1,364,045          3,042,856         793,113          3,648,705       2,361,797      888,626          12,099,142       

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 6 - Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by Source

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

126



Clearfield City Corporation
Table 7 - Taxable and Estimated 

 Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Residential Commercial Personal Total Estimated
Ratio of 
Taxable

 Fiscal Property Property Property Taxable Value Direct Actual Value to Estimated   
  Year (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Tax Rate (in thousands) Actual Value   

 2004-05 382,530$        415,766$          207,249$        1,005,545$      0.002980       1,420,205$          70.8%
 2005-06 396,973          406,509            209,386          1,012,868        0.002980       1,347,738            75.2%
 2006-07 427,770          422,495            196,376          1,046,641        0.002980       1,435,070            72.9%
 2007-08 473,136          442,417            225,418          1,140,971        0.001580       1,502,242            76.0%
 2008-09 556,255          529,723            226,953          1,312,931        0.001548       1,821,260            72.1%

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property

127

, , , , , , ,
 2009-10 603,241          451,475            235,125          1,289,841        0.001572       1,805,471            71.4%
 2010-11 541,143          612,511            215,698          1,369,352        0.001548       1,973,404            69.4%
 2011-12 507,329          569,874            240,900          1,318,103        0.001800       1,776,931            74.2%
 2012-13 530,775          493,899            267,077          1,291,751        0.001800       1,719,166            75.1%
 2013-14 539,807          518,593            283,013          1,341,413        0.001800       1,776,035            75.5%

Sources:  Davis County Auditor's Office
              Utah State Tax Commission

127



Clearfield City Corporation
Table 8 - Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Total Debt Total County Debt Total Total
Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Service School Operating Service County Special
 Year Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates Districts

2005 0.2321% 0.0659% 0.2980% 0.3921% 0.3446% 0.7367% 0.1695% 0.0169% 0.1864% 0.1486% 1.3697%
2006 0.2321% 0.0659% 0.2980% 0.3806% 0.3432% 0.7238% 0.1501% 0.0175% 0.1676% 0.1473% 1.3367%
2007 0.0920% 0.0660% 0.1580% 0.3494% 0.3388% 0.6882% 0.1424% 0.0108% 0.1532% 0.2830% 1.2824%
2008 0.0920% 0.0660% 0.1580% 0.4308% 0.2571% 0.6879% 0.1863% 0.0142% 0.2005% 0.2837% 1.3301%
2009 0.0944% 0.0604% 0.1548% 0.4193% 0.2571% 0.6764% 0.1653% 0.0123% 0.1776% 0.2543% 1.2631%
2010 0.0976% 0.0596% 0.1572% 0.4547% 0.2571% 0.7118% 0.1739% 0.0126% 0.1865% 0.2829% 1.3384%
2011 0.0871% 0.0677% 0.1548% 0.5289% 0.2571% 0.7860% 0.1817% 0.0128% 0.1945% 0.1179% 1.2532%
2012 0.1009% 0.0791% 0.1800% 0.6290% 0.2571% 0.8861% 0.1960% 0.0137% 0.2097% 0.2962% 1.5720%
2013 0.1100% 0.0700% 0.1800% 0.6139% 0.2571% 0.8710% 0.1935% 0.0126% 0.2061% 0.3441% 1.6012%
2014 0% 0.0772% 0.1800% 0.5958% 0.2571% 0.8529% 0.1987% 0.0174% 0.2161% 0.4618% 1.7108%

Source:  Davis County Auditor's Office

Percentages are applied to the taxable value of property as stated.

Overlapping Rates

   City    
Clearfield 

    Levy for  
  Total    Clearfield City Davis County School Davis County

128



Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage of Percentage of 
 Taxable Total Taxable  Taxable Total Taxable

             Taxpayer                   Value  Rank    Assessed Value       Value  Rank    Assessed Value  

Freeport Center Associates 189,443,140$    1.00 13.57% 115,752,259   1 11.66%
ATK Aerospace 113,681,186      2      8.14% 19,657,047     4 1.98%
Lifetime Products 40,378,662        3      2.89% 46,893,503     2 4.72%
Worthington Foods, Inc. 29,776,724        4      2.13%
Pacific Corp 27,125,509        5      1.94%
Union Pacific Railroad 22,035,931        6      1.58%
Belleau, Wayne 18,689,260        7      1.34%
Utility Trailer 17,853,999        8      1.28%
K & M Two 16,649,474        9      1.19% 14,698,377     8 1.48%
Art Mortgage Borrower PROP-CO 14,310,600        10    1.03%
Qwest Communications 21,777,236     3 2.19%
Boyer TRW 16,595,645     5 1.67%
Honeywell International 16,112,966     6 1.62%
Security Capital Industrial 15,735,700     7 1.59%
Gardenburger 11,874,648     9 1.20%
Americold Real Estate LP 10,410,327     10 1.05%

489,944,485$   289,507,708$

Sources:  Davis County Assessor's Office
                 Davis County Auditor's Office

2004 6,230,790

2014 2005

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 9 - Principal Taxpayers

129



Clearfield City Corporation
Table 10 - Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Tax
Fiscal Levy for Percent  Collections in 
 Year  Fiscal Year Amount of Levy  Subsequent Years Amount Percent of Levy

2004-05 2,823,641$        2,621,438$          92.84% 202,203$            2,823,641$         100.00%
2005-06 2,845,492          2,669,424            93.81% 176,068              2,845,492           100.00%
2006-07 1,808,518          1,709,123            94.50% 99,395                1,808,518           100.00%
2007-08 1,700,798          1,567,286            92.15% 133,512              1,700,798           100.00%
2008-09 1,908,163          1,780,102            93.29% 128,061              1,908,163           100.00%
2009-10 1,885,303          1,748,134            92.72% 137,169              1,885,303           100.00%
2010-11 2,024,290          1,810,238            89.43% 207,577              2,017,815           99.68%
2011-12 2,170,606          1,995,065            91.91% 166,924              2,161,989           99.60%
2012-13 2,026,140          1,793,649            88.53% 208,615              2,002,264           98.82%
2013-14 2,176,638          1,972,289            90.61% 171,433              2,143,722           98.49%

Source:  Davis County Auditor's Office

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Total Collections To Date

130



Clearfield City Corporation
Table 11 - Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Total Percentage
Fiscal Obligation Revenue Notes Capital Revenue Capital Primary of Personal Per
Year Bonds Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Leases Government Income Capita

2004-05 12,691,622$  17,078,871      559,443     229,743      -             55,347     30,615,026$  0.39% 1,113.27$ 
2005-06 12,000,794    16,231,138      670,132     148,261      -             -          29,050,325    0.34% 1,045.92   
2006-07 11,407,880    16,378,102      603,499     63,789        3,354,270   -          31,807,540    0.33% 1,131.94   
2007-08 10,789,966    16,948,462      534,072     21,596        3,147,247   -          31,441,343    0.31% 1,114.94   
2008-09 10,147,052    16,184,822      461,629     -              2,940,224   -          29,733,727    0.30% 1,047.85   
2009-10 9,469,138      17,128,221      234,348     -              2,723,201   -          29,554,908    0.28% 1,019.06   
2010-11 8,766,224      15,499,826      30,000       -              2,496,178   -          26,792,228    0.26% 889.75      
2011-12 8,038,310      14,478,431      -             -              2,259,155   -          24,775,896    0.24% 822.79      
2012-13 7,285,396      13,591,036      -             -              2,012,132   -          22,888,564    0.22% 760.11      
2013-14 6,497,482      12,676,644      -             -              1,755,109   -          20,929,235    0.20% 689.01      

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. See table 16
for personal income and population data.

131



Clearfield City Corporation
Table 12 - Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actual Taxable Debt   
Value of Gross  Service Net   Ratio of Net Net Bonded

Estimated Property (in Obligation  Monies Bonded  Bonded Debt to Debt Per 
Population thousands) Bonds Available    Debt   Assessed Value   Capita  

2005 27,500       1,005,545$      12,673,709$ 15,613$      12,658,096$   1.26% 460.29$      
2006 27,775       1,012,868        12,000,795   52,315        11,948,480     1.18% 430.19        
2007 28,100       1,046,641        11,407,881   801             11,407,080     1.09% 405.95        
2008 28,200       1,140,971        10,789,967   821,238      9,968,729       0.87% 353.50        
2009 28,376       1,312,931        10,147,053   1,176,443   8,970,610       0.68% 316.13        
2010 29,002       1,289,841        9,469,139     1,276,996   8,192,143       0.64% 282.47        
2011 30,112       1,369,352        8,766,225     1,380,978   7,385,247       0.54% 245.26        
2012 30,112       1,318,103        8,038,310     1,150,811   6,887,499       0.52% 228.73        
2013 30,112       1,291,751        7,285,396     1,017,826   6,267,570       0.49% 208.14        
2014 30,376       1,341,413        6,497,481     1,124,461   5,373,020       0.40% 176.88        

 Fiscal
  Year  

Note:  Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.  General 
Obligation Bonds are net of discounts and premiums.  

132



City's Percent  Amount  
2014 Estimated Applicable Net     Applicable

Taxable Portion of to    Outstanding to    
Name of Governmental Unit Value Taxable Value Clearfield ( C )   Debt (1) Clearfield

State of Utah 196,999,051,171$     1,404,989,776    0.71% 3,136,755,000$    22,371,218$     
Davis County School District 16,462,557,306         1,404,989,776    8.53% 409,130,000         34,917,021       
Davis County         16,462,557,306         1,404,989,776    8.53% -                        -                    
Weber Basin Water
   Conservancy District 42,461,125,033         1,404,989,776    3.31% 23,888,492           790,443            
North Davis County
   Sewer District 8,450,483,258           1,404,989,776    16.63% 37,852,000           6,293,329         

    Total overlapping debt 64,372,011       

Clearfield City - direct 1,404,989,776           1,404,989,776    100.00% 19,174,126           19,174,126       

Total direct and overlapping 83,546,137$

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 13 - Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

133

    Total direct and overlapping 83,546,137$    

1) Source:  Davis County Auditor's Office
    Includes general bonded debt only.

Note A:  The State of Utah general obligation debt is not included in the debt ratios because the State of Utah currently levies no ad valorem tax 
for payment of general obligation bonds.

Note B: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates
the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City. This process
recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying
the debt of each overlapping government.

Note C: For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable assessed value that is within the City's
boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value. 

133



Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Debt limit 55,514,397$ 56,808,200  43,310,887  45,638,800   40,446,240    40,117,640  44,438,200   52,724,120   51,670,040  53,656,520          

Total net debt applicable to limit 12,405,000   11,750,000  11,175,000  10,575,000   9,950,000      9,290,000    8,605,000     7,895,000     7,160,000    6,390,000            

Legal debt margin 43,109,397$ 45,058,200  32,135,887 35,063,800 30,496,240  30,827,640  35,833,200 44,829,120 44,510,040 47,266,520        

Total net debt applicable to
the limit as a percentage
of debt limit 22.35% 20.68% 25.80% 23.17% 24.60% 23.16% 19.36% 14.97% 13.86% 11.91%

Total Assessed Actual Value 1,341,413,000$  

Debt limit - 4% of total actual value 53,656,520          

Total amount of debt applicable to 
  debt limit (6,390,000)          

    
Note:  Under state finance law, the City's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 4% of total assessed property value. Legal debt margin 47,266,520$       

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 14 - Legal Debt Margin Information

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2014

134



Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Revenue Bonds
Net Revenue

Expenses Available 
Fiscal Water Utility Operating Net of For Debt  
 Year Revenue Transfers Interest   Service  Principal Interest Total Coverage

2005 6,369,380$       155,172$       4,726,674$       1,797,878$   -$              -$             -$           n/a
2006 6,668,146         (1,665,654)    4,610,998         391,494        -                -               -             n/a
2007 2,743,116         (115,224)       2,659,152         (31,260)         -                -               -             n/a
2008 2,886,915         2,010,045      2,921,805         1,975,155     205,000        125,997       330,997     n/a
2009 3,325,823         (300,297)       3,029,365         (3,839)           1,680,000     -               1,680,000  (0.00)          
2010 3,120,066         (268,716)       2,878,417         (27,067)         215,000        113,343       328,343     (0.08)          
2011 3,271,021         (316,147)       3,097,283         (142,409)       225,000        104,677       329,677     (0.43)          
2012 4,540,679         (122,898)       2,965,378         1,452,403     235,000        97,633         332,633     4.37           
2013 3,628,948         (263,711)       2,962,738         402,499        245,000        88,167         333,167     1.21           
2014 3,605,224         (356,677)       3,200,814         47,733          255,000        78,300         333,300     0.14           
2004 6,230,790 1,236,824 3,896,269 3,571,345 167,000 9,886 176,886 20.19

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 15 - Revenue Bond Coverage

135



Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal
Income Per

(Amounts Capita
Fiscal Expressed Personal Median School Unemployment
 Year Population In Thousands) Income Age Enrollment Rate (%)

2005 27,500       7,833,940$       29,109$         24.0    5,948             5.3
2006 27,775       8,527,000         30,590           24.0    6,070             3.8
2007 28,100       9,601,267         33,310           24.0    5,463             3.3
2008 28,200       10,170,729       34,384           24.0    5,638             4.3
2009 28,376       10,019,710       33,182           24.0    5,565             8.9
2010 29,002       10,409,081       33,817           24.0    5,713             9.8
2011 30,112       10,409,081       33,817           26.0    5,700             8.5
2012 30,112       10,409,081       33,817           25.8    5,625             7.4
2013 30,112       10,409,081       33,817           25.8    5,605             7.7
2014 30,376       10,409,081       35,719           25.8    5,725             7.0

Data Sources:
  Population:  Davis County Department of Community & Economic Development
  Personal Income:  US Bureau of Economic Analysis
  Per Capital Personal Income:  US Bureau of Economic Analysis
  Median Age:  Estimated based on 2000/2010 United States Census Information
  School Enrollment:  Davis County School District
  Unemployment Rate:  US Department of Labor, Local Area Unemployment Statistics

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 16 - Demographic and Economic Statistics

Note: Personal income information and per capita information are totals for the year and based on
totals for Davis County in its entirety. Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average.
School enrollment is based on the census at the start of the school year.

136



Table 17 - Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Employer Employees Rank
Percentage of Total 
City Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of Total 
City Employment

Department of Defense 23,000           1 63.50% Unavailable
Lifetime Products 1,750             2 0.06% Unavailable
ATK Thiokol 1,300             3 0.05% Unavailable
Alliant 950                4 0.04% Unavailable
Lofthouse Bakery Products, Inc. 920                5 0.03% Unavailable
IES, LLC 800                6 0.02% Unavailable
Arrowpoint Solutions, Inc. 450                7 0.02% Unavailable
Futura Industries 420                8 0.02% Unavailable
Northrup Grumman 350                9 0.02% Unavailable
Management & Training Corp 250                10 0.02% Unavailable

Source:

Clearfield City Corporation

2014 2005

www.jobs.utah.gov-jobseekers-firmfind-largest companies-Davis County-download Clearfield City Business License Division -
Total Employees claimed on business licenses & top employers. Note: Business License report does not include exempt
agencies and employees  of Department of Defense:  http://greaterogden.home.att.net/hillafb.html

137



Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Function

General Government
Judicial 2       3       3       3       3       3       4       4       4       4       
Legal 2       2       1       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       
Executive 4       4       4       4       4       4       4       4       4       4       
Finance 5       5       5       5       5       5       5       5       5       5       
Buildings & Plants 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       
Planning & Zoning 2       2       2       2       2       2       1       1       1       1       
Human Resources 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       
Information Technology 1       1       2       2       2       2       2       2       3       3       

Public Safety
Police Administration 8       8       7       7       7       7       7       7       7       7       
Patrol & Investigations 28     26     24     28     28     29     28     28     28     28     
Liquor 1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       
Dispatch/Emergency Services 9       9       9       9       9       9       9       8       8       8       

Public Works
Public Works Administration 2       2       2       3       3       3       3       2       2       2       
Shops 3       3       4       4       4       4       4       3       2       2       
Roadways 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       
Inspection & Engineering 2       2       2       2       2       2       3       2       1       1       

Community Services
Administration 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       3       3       
Parks 6       6       6       6       6       6       6       5       5       5       
Recreation 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       2       3       3       
Aquatic Center 7       7       7       7       6       7       10     7       7       7       

Community Development
Community & Economic
  Development Administration 1       1       - 1       1       1       1       1       1       1       
CDBG 1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       
Permitting 1       1       

Enterprise Funds
Utility Administration 6       6       3       3       4       4       5       3       3       3       
Water 5       5       6       6       6       6       8       5       5       5       
Sewer 3       3       3       3       3       4       3       3       3       3       
Storm Sewer 1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       

Total Employees 109   108   103 110 110 113 118 105   107  107 

Data source:  Clearfield City Human Resource Department

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 18 - Full-time City Government Employees By Function

138



Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Police
Incidents 15,647      10,297      17,764      17,223        16,832        15,609        16,876         17,654         17,015        14,925      
Parking violations 68             261           462           560             560             525             1,015           725              634             -           
Youth court cases 26             11             58             56               12               -              - - -              -           
Traffic violations 7,977        9,049        8,068        8,311          10,042        10,026        4,389           9,255           7,700          9,233        

Highways and streets
Street resurfacing -           1               -            -              -             27               4                  3                  3                 3               

Recreation
Units of service 91,928      84,499      140,208    166,655      177,400      177,082      193,304       189,734       - -           
Aquatic center admissions 88,143      66,374      87,419      75,488        83,896        82,079        100,665       99,328         90,359        90,359      

Public works
Building permits issued 308           324           296           287             307             339             245              233              226             221           

Water
New connections 101           72             66             71               53               55               51                51                51               51             
Water main breaks 57             70             103           80               -             7                 - - -              -           
Utility customers 6,304        6,366        6,508        6,571          6,573          6,564          6,578           7,025           6,705          6,886        
Average daily consumption
    Commercial 1,020,446 1,099,320 1,156,340 1,219,471   2,660,085   1,224,436   1,345,822    1,490,129    1,481,288   1,665,795 
    Residential 2,213,047 2,646,052 3,114,816 3,281,000   3,233,000   2,835,066   2,982,874    3,260,901    3,497,022   3,491,011 

Data source:  Clearfield City Public Safety, Public Works, Community Services, and Finance Departments.

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 19 - Operating Indicators by Function

139



Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Public safety
Police stations 1              1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1               1               
Fire stations 1              -           -           -           -           -           - - - -            

Highways and streets
Streets (miles) 76.5         77.1         77.3         77.2         78.2         78.2         78.2         78.23        78.23        78.23        
Streetlights 758          758          1,171       1,171       1,176       1,180       1,182       1,183        1,183        1,183        

Recreation
Parks acreage -           81.456     81.456     81.456     81.456     81.456     81.456     81.456      81.456      81.456      
Parks 11            12            12            12            12            12            12            12             12             12             
Soccer fields 2              3              3              3              3              3              3              3               3               3               
Swimming pools 1              1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1               1               
Tennis courts 5              5              5              5              5              5              5              5               5               5               
Skate parks -           1              1              1              1              1              1              1               1               1               
Boweries 4              5              5              5              5              5              5              5               5               5               
Softball/baseball diamonds 8              10            10            10            10            10            10            10             10             10             
Community centers 1              1              2              2              2              2              1              1               1               1               
Trails -           -           1              1              1              2              2              2               2               2               

Water
Water mains (miles) 117.54     119.58     110.00     110.00     114.00     114.40     114.40     114.50      114.50      115.00      
Fire hydrants 891          899          950          1,300       1,300       1,303       1,303       1,308        1,308        1,310        

Sewer
Sanitary sewers (miles) 82.00       82.00       72.33       72.33       73.00       73.00       73.00       73.25        73.25        73.25        
Storm sewers (miles) 52.00       52.79       56.00       56.00       68.00       68.00       70.25       71.00        71.00        71.25        

Data source:  Clearfield City Public Safety, Public Works, Community Services, and Finance Departments.

Clearfield City Corporation
Table 20 - Capital Asset Statistics by Function

140



OTHER REPORTS

141



This page left blank intentionally

142



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
The Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 
Clearfield City, Utah 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,  the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Clearfield City Corporation, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise Clearfield City Corporation’s basic financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2014.   
 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Clearfield City’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Clearfield City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Clearfield City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant  deficiency  is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.



Compliance and Other Matters

Purpose of this Report

Ogden, UT
December 12, 2014

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ulrich & Associates, P.C.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Clearfield City’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards . 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Clearfield City Corporation in a
separate letter dated December 12, 2014.

144



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE ON: 
- COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL STATE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 

- COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM 

- INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

-SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of City 
Council 
Clearfield City 
Clearfield City, Utah 

Report On Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements and for Each 
Major State Program 

We have audited Clearfield City Corporation’s compliance with the applicable general state 
and major state program compliance requirements described in the State Compliance Audit 
Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor, that could have a direct and material 
effect on the Clearfield City Corporation or each of its major state programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2014.   

General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2014 in the 
following areas: 

Budgetary Compliance 
Fund Balance  
Justice Court  
Utah Retirement 
Systems  
Transfers from Utility Enterprise 
Funds 
Cash Management 
Conflicts of Interest 
Nepotism 
Utah Public Finance Website 
Budget Notices and Format 

Clearfield City Corporation received state funding from the following programs classified 
as major programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Class "C" Road Allotment (Department of Transportation) 



Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Clearfield City Corporation’s compliance based on
our audit of the compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Compliance
Audit Guide . Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
Clearfield City Corporation or its major state programs occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Clearfield City Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are
required to be reported in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations. Our opinion on
compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with general
state compliance requirements and for each major state program. However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination of Clearfield City Corporation’s compliance. 

In our opinion, Clearfield City Corporation, complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
Clearfield City Corporation or on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30,
2014.  

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above
and the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Opinion on General State Compliance Requirements and Each Major State Program

Clearfield City Corporation’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings. Clearfield City Corporation’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

146



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a general state or
major state program compliance requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a general
state or major state program compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a general
state or major state program compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report On Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Clearfield City Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Clearfield City Corporation’s
internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on Clearfield City Corporation or on each major state program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance with general state compliance requirements and for each major state
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State 
Compliance Audit Guide , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Clearfield City Corporation’s internal control over compliance.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose. 

147



Ogden, Utah
December 12, 2014

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards as Required by the State Compliance 
Audit Guide

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clearfield City
Corporation as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Clearfield City Corporation’s basic financial statements.
We issued our report thereon dated June 30, 2014, which contained unmodified opinions on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the State Compliance Audit Guide and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Ulrich & Associates, P.C.

148



Statement of Condition - 2014-1

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

Statement of Condition - 2014-2

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

State Law requires that loans from a public utility enterprise fund have established terms
including rates and repayment schedule.

Because no detailed formal agreement has been established as of year end, the City is not in
compliance.

The City is not in compliance with cash management requirements.

We recommend that the treasurer review and include all cash balances on the year end report and
file the report timely.

We recommend that management present loan terms to the city council for their approval. 

Staff was made aware of this error early in the audit process. Consequently, on November 25,
2014 the City Council approved Resolution 2014R-23 establishing terms for the loan from
Clearfield City's Utility Administration Fund to the Clearfield Community Development and
Renewal Agency.

Clearfield City Corporation
State Legal Compliance - Schedule of Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The City is not in compliance with utility enterprise funds requirements.

Cash Management : The City did not timely remit the "Deposit and Investment Report" for the
June 30, 2014 balances. Further, the City did not include cash balances relating to debt reserve
requirements in the amount of $140,372.

State Law requires that the public treasurer file a written report at year end that contains
information on the deposits and investments of the entity. This form is used by the Money
Management Council to determine if the entity is in compliance with the Money Management
Act.

Because of a change in treasurer responsibilities, the proper amounts were omitted and the report
was not remitted timely.

Enterprise Fund Transfers, Reimbursements, Loans, and Services: A series of interfund loans,
that took place between 1999 and 2008 between Community Development & Renewal Agency
Fund (governmental) and the Water Utility Fund (enterprise). This interfund loan has no formal
document for terms of the repayment.

The required report was turned in on August 20, 2014 and administrative controls have been put
into place to ensure that all future reports will be submitted in a timely manner with complete
information. 

149



Clearfield City Corporation
State Legal Compliance - Schedule of Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Statement of Condition - 2014-3.1

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

Statement of Condition - 2014-3.2

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

Budgetary Compliance :  The Park Fund exceeded budgeted total fund expenditures at year end.

The City is not in compliance with budget requirements.

We recommend that the City review procedures to ensure complete budgets are available for
approval by the council.

State Law requires that officers or employees of the entity do not incur expenditures or
encumbrances in excess of the total appropriation for any fund.

The fund was overlooked during the amending process.

Budgetary Compliance: Amounts reported to the City Council quarterly did not agree with
amounts in the general ledger.

State Law requires that management provide quarterly financial reports to the governing board in
sufficient detail to provide information for the board to make decisions.

Budgeted amounts for transfers to and from funds were presented as actual amounts, but had not
taken place as of the statement date.

The City is not in compliance with reporting requirements due to an error in the timing of journal
entry for transfers. This resulted in one material number being incorrect at the time of
presentation. All other information presented to the City Council was based on actual and
reasonably estimated operating numbers. 

We recommend that the City review procedures to ensure complete and accurate reports are
available to the City Council.

We concur with the recommendation and will work to improve our amended budget process in the
future.

We agree that amounts reported for December 2013 for the General Fund included a transfer to
the Capital Improvements Fund at the budget level not that actual amount. We do not believe the
information as it was reported negatively affected the Council’s decision-making nor did it result
in budget issues. 

150



Clearfield City Corporation
State Legal Compliance - Schedule of Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Statement of Condition - 2014-4

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

Statement of Condition - 2014-5

Criteria

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Response

Utah Public Finance Website: The City did not timely report required public financial
information to the Utah Public Finance Website as required by state law.

State Law (UCA 63A-3-402) requires the City to post revenue and expense information quarterly
and within one month of the end of each quarter. Additionally, the law requires employee
compensation summary information be posted within three months after the end of each fiscal
year.

The City is not in compliance with reporting requirements.

We recommend that the City review procedures to ensure complete and accurate reports are
posted timely.

The required information was posted on October 23, 2014 and administrative controls have been
put into place to ensure that all future reports will be submitted in a timely manner.

Because the City has not completely used the excess fund balance for designated projects, the
general fund is over legal requirements.  This was a finding in prior years.

The City is not in compliance with fund balance requirements.

The City plans on utilizing the funds to aid in the many infrastructure projects throughout the
City. The City Council has appropriated $1,340,742 of the excess during the original budget
process. Management plans to present additional amounts to the City Council during an
upcoming amended budget process.  

We recommend that the City review the unreserved fund balance and plan the coming years
expenditures accordingly.

Fund Balance: Unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund exceeds 25% of the total current
year revenues by  $1,733,036.

State Law requires that general fund balance does not exceed 25% for cities or 75% for towns of
the total revenue of the general fund for the fiscal year under audit under Utah Code 10-6-115(2).

Because of a change in treasurer responsibilities, the required information was not timely
submitted to the Utah Public Finance Website.

151



For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Grant Name Award Amount
Year of Last 

Audit Expenditures

Utah Department of Transportation
Class C Road 2013 771,589$         
SR193 Landscaping 343,000$        6,417.00$        

Utah Department of Public Safety
Eliminate Alcohol Sales to Youth Grant  $               660 660$                
Citizen Corp Grant 400$               400$                

Attorney General's Office
ICAC Task Force 8,097$             

Commission on Criminal and Juvenile Justice
Justice Court Live Scan System 7,300$            7,298$             
Utah State Asset Forfeiture Grant 2,143$             

TOTAL GRANT, CONTRACT, AND LOAN FUND EXPENDITURES  $         796,604 

Clearfield City Corporation
Schedule of Expenditures of State Grants, Contracts, and Loan Funds

152



 CLEARFIELD CITY RESOLUTION 2015R-02 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET AND 

APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH 

THEREIN 

 

WHEREAS, Clearfield City is six months into its budget period which began on July 1, 

2014 and ends on June 30, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved some expenditures that were not included in 

the original budget; and  

 

WHEREAS, Utah state code allows the City Council to make adjustments to the budget; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, proper notice of the public hearing for this matter was given; and 

 

WHEREAS, Clearfield City has considered and approved those amendments. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Clearfield City Council that the amendments 

to the Clearfield City budget beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015 as set forth in 

Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference are authorized and 

approved. 

 

The Mayor is authorized to sign any documents reflecting those amendments. 

 

Passed and adopted at the Clearfield City Council meeting held on January 13, 2014. 

 

 

 

Dated this 13
th

 day of January, 2014. 

 

ATTEST     CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

___________________________  __________________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder  Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor  

 

 

 

 VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  

 



 CLEARFIELD CITY RESOLUTION 2015R-01 
 

A RESOLUTION ENCOURAGING THE STATE OF UTAH TO ADDRESS 

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION FUNDING  

 

WHEREAS, a safe and efficient transportation system creates the foundation for 

economic growth and improved quality of life; and 

 

WHEREAS, the creation and maintenance of transportation infrastructure is a core 

responsibility of State and local government; and 

 

WHEREAS, Utah’s population is expected to grow by 1 million residents by 2040; and 

 

WHEREAS, Utah’s residents demand new comprehensive transportation options such as 

bike lanes, multi-use paths, off-road trails and transit in addition to traditional roads; and 

 

 WHEREAS, research from the Utah Department of Transportation indicates that road 

maintenance efforts save cities from road rehabilitation that costs six times as much as 

maintenance, and saves cities from road reconstruction that costs ten times as much as 

maintenance, and 

 

 WHEREAS, investing in transportation results in tremendous economic development 

returns for both municipalities and the state; and 

 

 WHEREAS, improving comprehensive transportation in Utah will reduce private vehicle 

usage which will in turn lead to improved air quality; and 

 

 WHEREAS, poor air quality discourages economic development, business recruitment 

and tourism visits, and contributes to asthma and other health ailments; and 

 

 WHEREAS, nearly 1 in 10 Utah adults suffer from asthma and struggle to breathe during 

poor air quality days; and 

 

 WHEREAS, nearly 57% of Utah adults are overweight, approximately 200,000 Utahns 

have diabetes, and diabetes and obesity related health care costs in Utah exceed $1 billion; and 

 

 WHEREAS, investing in safe and connected trails, bike lanes, sidewalks, and multi-use 

paths will encourage Utahns to be more active, spend more time with their families via active 

transportation, and result in improved personal and community health; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the current motor fuel tax of 24.5 cents and 1% local option sales tax are 

insufficient to satisfy current and future transportation needs; and 

 

  



WHEREAS, Utah has led the nation in creating an Unified Transportation Plan to address these 

comprehensive transportation and quality of life issues and the City now asks the State and local 

governments to work together to find comprehensive funding solutions which will address 

transportation, economic development, air quality, and health needs.  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Clearfield City Council: 

 

 SECTION 1. Comprehensive Transportation Funding. The City Council supports 

proposals which meet comprehensive local transportation needs, promote the Unified 

Transportation Plan, and provide for future growth. The City supports studying a transportation 

funding option which would allow for the statewide implementation of a quarter cent ($0.0025) 

local options sales tax to be used for transportation. The City also supports studying motor fuel 

taxes, “B and C” road funding, and other transportation funding options. Motor fuel taxes are not 

equitably borne by road users with the advent of higher MPG vehicles, electric and hybrid 

vehicles, and other fuel-saving technologies. Additionally, since the motor fuel tax has not been 

adjusted since 1997 and is not indexed, the current purchasing power is inadequate. The City 

requests the Utah Legislature to carefully examine all funding options.  

 

 SECTION 2. Comprehensive Transportation Options. The City supports the 

expansion of the uses for which transportation funding can be spent to reflect the individual 

needs and discretion of local governments. Transportation, air quality, and public health can be 

enhanced when active transportation and transit are eligible for transportation funding. Examples 

of items which could be eligible may include trails, bike lanes, sidewalks, safety equipment, 

traffic calming, signage, and lighting. Investment in active transportation options will encourage 

residents to travel via walking, biking, and transit, result in a healthier population, reduced car 

emissions, decreased health care costs, and improved quality of life. The City supports additional 

funding mechanisms which will result in expanded active transportation infrastructure. The City 

also supports continued investment in public transit as outlined in Utah’s Unified Transportation 

Plan. Transit can help relieve traffic, promote walkable communities, and improve air quality.  

 

 SECTION 3. Coordinating Efforts. The City encourages City staff to work with State 

elected officials, the Utah Transportation Coalition and the Utah League of Cities and Towns.  

 

 SECTION 4. Distribution of this Resolution. A copy of this resolution shall be sent to 

the Governor, the President of the Utah State Senate, the Speaker of the Utah House of 

Representatives, the municipality’s State Senators and State House Representatives, and the 

Executive Director of the Utah League of Cities and Towns.  

 

 SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective upon passage.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Passed and adopted by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 13
th

 day of January, 2015. 

 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

________________________________ 

Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 

  

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 

 

AYE:   

 

NAY:  

 

EXC USED:  



 

1 
 

 CLEARFIELD CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 

MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

November 25, 2014 
(This meeting was held following a City Council work session  

and prior to the regularly scheduled City Council Meeting.) 

 

PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Chair 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Director  

    Kent Bush   Director 

Ron Jones   Director 

 Mark Shepherd  Director 

 

EXCUSED: Mike LeBaron   Director 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Brian Brower    City Attorney 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief  

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Antone Clark – Standard Examiner, Kathryn Murray, Mark Cram – Siemens, Lin 

Alder – McKinstry, John Hansen – Developer, Brad Allen - Realtor 

 

Chair Young called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON DOWNTOWN CLEARFIELD FACADE AND SITE IMPROVEMENT 

PROJECT 

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, pointed out one of the tactics in the Vision 2020 Strategic Plan 

called for the establishment of a revolving loan fund to improve the commercial corridor along 

Main and State Streets. He reported the Economic Development Task Force had discussed the 

issue and given the City’s history with economic development loans in the past, it concluded a 

revolving loan fund wasn’t the best approach. He continued the Task Force had suggested 

offering a grant program in which a promissory note would be executed for which a lien would 

be placed against the benefitted property and after ten years the note would be released. He 

added if the property were sold within the ten years the City would be repaid from the proceeds 

of the sale.  

 



 

2 
 

Mr. Allen emphasized the project was not be a budgeted item. He distributed an proposed 

Application Packet for the program to the Board and the viability of the proposed project was 

discussed.  He added appropriation of funds would need to be addressed through an amendment 

to the 2015 budget.  

 

Mr. Allen reviewed the parameters with the Board: 

 Use $100,000 from the CDRA fund balance as the startup funding for the program. 

 Require a dollar for dollar match. 

 The maximum grant amount would be $25,000. 

 The property owner’s project would need to value at least $50,000. 

 The Trust Deed would be used to record the City’s interest in the property. 

 The City would reconvey the Trust Deed after ten years. 

 

Mr. Allen suggested initially limiting the grant fund program for properties from Center Street 

north along North Main. He requested direction from the Board.   

 

Chair Young inquired what recourse the City would have if grant funds were used for the 

purpose of a façade improvement that didn’t meet the City’s vision. Mr. Allen responded the 

City hadn’t determined the criteria by which the improvement would be judged. Mr. Allen 

referred to the packet and a discussion took place. Mr. Allen mentioned a site plan was required 

to be approved through the Planning Commission.   

 

Chair Young suggested allowing applicants to apply for the grant funds and awarding the funds 

based upon the project. Mr. Allen responded that criteria would be an easy change; the document 

would just need to reflect Round 1 would be to select the first project. Mr. Allen shared an 

example as to how the grant funds could benefit a business. 

 

Mr. Allen requested direction from the Board specific to the $25,000 cap for any identified 

project. A discussion took place and the Board believed the $25,000 was appropriate. Mayor 

Shepherd believed the grant program would illustrate the City’s commitment to improving its 

image.  

 

Director Benson inquired how business owners would be notified about the proposed grant 

program. Mr. Allen responded in addition to a direct mailing information would be in the 

newsletter and in other social media sources. The Board directed Mr. Allen to proceed with 

establishing the program.  

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 



 

1 
 

CLEARFIELD CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 

MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 

November 25, 2014 
(This meeting was held following the regularly scheduled City Council Meeting.) 

 

PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Chair 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Director  

    Kent Bush   Director 

Ron Jones   Director 

 Mark Shepherd  Director 

 

EXCUSED: Mike LeBaron   Director 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Brian Brower    City Attorney 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief  

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Kodi Nelson   Justice Court Supervisor 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Bob Bercher, Reuben Renstrom – Justice Court Judge, John Sandberg – Clearfield 

Justice Court Judge, Kathryn Murray, John Hansen 

 

Chair Young called the meeting to order at 7:27 p.m. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL 

AGENCY (CDRA) MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 28, 2014 WORK AND POLICY 

SESSIONS  

 

Director Jones moved to approve the Clearfield Community Development and Renewal 

Agency (CDRA) minutes from the October 28, 2014 work and policy sessions as written, 

seconded by Director Shepherd. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Directors Benson, Bush, Jones and Shepherd. Voting NO – None. Director LeBaron was not 

present for the vote.  

 

 

 

 



 

2 
 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2014R-13 SETTING TERMS FOR A LOAN BETWEEN THE 

CDRA AND THE CITY  

 

Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director, stated the CDRA had previously borrowed 

money from the City in order to help fund the CDRA in its authorized activities and to further its 

purposes for the good of the City, its residents and businesses. The resolution formally 

established the terms for repayment of the funds, including accrued interest. He indicated the 

loan should be paid in full in 2024.   
 

Director Shepherd moved to approve Resolution 2014R-13 authorizing and setting terms 

for the loan between the CDRA and the City and authorize the Chair’s signature to any 

necessary documents, seconded by Director Benson. The motion carried upon the following 

vote: Voting AYE – Directors Benson, Bush, Jones and Shepherd. Voting NO – None. 

Director LeBaron was not present for the vote.  

 

 

There being no further business to come before the Community Development and Renewal 

Agency, Director Bush moved to adjourn as the Community Development and Renewal 

Agency at 7:28 p.m., and reconvene as a City Council in a work session, seconded by 

Director Shepherd. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Directors 

Benson, Bush, Jones and Shepherd. Voting NO – None. Director LeBaron was not present for 

the vote.  



 CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 2015R-01 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET AND 

APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH 

THEREIN 

 

WHEREAS, Clearfield Community Development and Renewal Agency is six months 

into its budget period which began on July 1, 2014 and ends on June 30, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has approved some expenditures that were not included in the 

original budget; and  

 

WHEREAS, Utah state code allows the Board to make adjustments to the budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, proper notice of the public hearing for this matter was given; and 

 

WHEREAS, Clearfield Community Development and Renewal Agency has considered 

and approved those amendments. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Clearfield Community Development and 

Renewal Agency that the amendments to the Clearfield Community Development and Renewal 

Agency budget beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015 as set forth in Exhibit “A” 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference are authorized and approved. 

 

The Chairman is authorized to sign any documents reflecting those amendments. 

 

Passed and adopted at the Community Development and Renewal Agency Board meeting 

held on January 13, 2015. 

 

Dated this 13
th

 day of January, 2015. 

 

ATTEST     CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AND RENEWAL AGENCY 

 

 

___________________________  __________________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, Secretary   Bruce Young, Chair  

 

 

 

 VOTE OF THE BOARD 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  


	A011315
	112514wminutes
	120914wminutes
	120914minutes
	FY2015 Budget First Budget Amend-Staff Report  Table
	FY15 Dec Budget Amend Staff Report
	First FY2015 Budget Amend Dec 2014
	Final


	CAFR Executive Summary
	CAFR Clearfield Final electronic
	2015R-02 Budget Amendments FY2015
	2015R-01 Transportation Funding
	112514CDRAwminutes
	112514CDRAminutes
	2015R-01 CDRA Budget Amended FY2015



